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The Palwo are a branch of the Lwo who settled on the
northern part of Bunyoro-Kitara kingdom, Their history
is essentially that of rivalry between two ethnic groups,
the Lwo and the Bantu, vying for supremacy in the empire of
Bunyoro-Kitara, Originating from the Sudan, the Lwo settled
in the hitherto exclusively Bantu inhabited empire,
ovérthrev the ruling dynasty, and set up a new one, Vhile
intermarrying with the njor'ilty. Bantu population, the
Lwo kings ensured that only sons born to them by their Lwo
wives (full-blooded Lwo) succeeded them, Tt was an attempt
by the Lwo to make the throne their exclusive preserve,

When one of the Lwo kings found himself compelled by
circumstances to bypass convention and chose one of his
children born by a Bantu woman to succeed him, the Lwo
protested, They attempted to undermine the authority of
this Bantu king who had no other altermative than to wage
a war to 'crush the rebellion', Henceforth children born
by Bantu women ascended the throne, The period of the
rule of the Lwo appeared to have ended.

While taking refuge from the war which crushed their
rebellion, a good number of the Lwo left Bunyoro-Kitara
and established their hegemony in the neighbouring areas.
But some of them later came back and with the coming of
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more Lwo from the Sudan and Northern Uganda, the Lwo
population in Bunyoro-Kitara a century after their rebellion
was back to nearly what it was before the war,

But the memory of their clash with the Bantu king
was not forgotten by the Lwo, To them, it was humiliating
to be deprived of a throne which for centuries had been
occupied by their own people, Taking the Neorthern extreme
of present day Bunyoro district as their base, the Lwo
directed their activities for the following two centuries
towards regaining their lost privileged position in
Bunyoro~-Kitara empire,

However, in spite of their success in undermining the
authority of some Bantu kings and launching series of
military attacks on them, in spite of their economic boom
caused by the activities of foreign traders, and which the
Lwo attempted to turn into military advantage, they never
succeeded in wimning back the throne of Bunyoro-Kitara,
Kabalega, a Bantu king, permanently converted them into an
insignificant minority in the empire.
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Abarusura - Kabalega's regimented
equipped, permanent army

Aligo - A guild of elephant
hunters.

Baragana - Poor men working in King's
palace for their livelihood,

Barusura - King's private body guards

Datet - Iron makers.

Jagho Plural (Jaghi) - Provincial Chief in
Palwoland,

Juok (Plural Jodi) ~ Traditional god,

Kibandwa -~ Chief Priest.
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Omukama (Plural Abakama) - King of Bunyoro
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PREFACE

The Palwo now inhabit Kibanda county of Bunyoro district
in the north-western part of present day Republic of Uganda,
They are a product of the circumstances to which the entire
Lwo group have been subjected, Having been compelled to
leave their homeland in the Budan, the Lwo travelled south
towards Uganda and reached Pubungu where a quarrel among
the sons of Olum, the leader of Lwo, resulted in a big apnt.l
It was from this split that the Palwo as well as the Acholi
and Langi emerged, The first group of the Palwo settled in
the northernmost part of Bunyoro-Kitara empire then ruled
by the Bacwezi dynasty, Another wave of Palwo migrants
overthrew the Bacwezli and set up a new dynasty of kings
called the Babito, The importance of the Palwo in the
pre~colonial history of Uganda lies in the fact that
practicslly all parts of Uganda® werc affected by the
activities of members of the Babito dynasty. This was
perhaps what prompted Uzoigwe to declare that the "Pre-
Colonial history of Uganda must pivot around the axis of
the Kitara kingdo-".3

1, For details of the ligmtion of the Lwo see J

Crazzolara, The ILwoo Part I: Migrations, (Verma. 1950).

2, See R, Oliver, "'rhe Interior. 1500-1840", in R, Oliver

and G, Mathews, ( ; Histo¥ of Egst Erten, Vol, I,
(0.,U.P,; London, 1 s D

3. J. Nyakatura, %ﬁ%}% Translated by
Teopista Muganwa, e ntroduction and Notes

by G. N. Uzoigwe, W8, WMakerere Univereity Kampala,
Introduction p, xx.
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But the Palwo who seemed to have dictated the course
of the pre-colonial history of Uganda have been neglected
by scholars, Professor Ogot could not help expressing
surprise at why such an historically important group have
been neglected by even nnt.lnm‘;o].c»g!.si;s.1 The answer
perhaps lies in the nature of Palwo soclety and the his-
torical circumstances to which the Palwo have been subjected,
These have combined to make a construction of the history
of the Palwo not only a difficult but also a particularly
uninviting task, It is perhaps necessary to have an insight
into these clrcumstences,

It is generally believed that centraliged socleties
present less problems for study because their social and
political organisations are more conducive to the accumulation
of traditions., Thelr royal chronicles form the basis of
their oral traditions, Buganda, Bunyoro and Nkore are
some of the Uganda kingdoms whose traditions have been
collected by foreign and local historians, These traditions
give a picture of the history of those areas and an intro-
duction to the various theories and hypotheses, They
provide a starting point for the runrchc.a The Palwo

1. Bo A. om, 8 O f h ’ (!.A.P.B.
Nairobi, 1967), D.

2, M, 8, Kiwanuka, for instance acknowledges the ueemlnau
of recorded tradition to his research, See
Kiwanuka, Kings of Buganda, (E.A.P.H, Raimbi. 1971 )
Introduction,
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do not fall within this centralised group whose
traditions have been collected, Though the seven
chiefdome to which Northern Bunyoro was eventually
divided were presided over by individuals called Rwhodi
(vhich, literarily translated, means king), the extent
of their centralisation cannot in any way be compared
with that of Buganda and Bunyoro, Moreover, the area
occupled by the Palwo was an integral part of Bunyoro-
Kitara empire, "Palwoland" was Just a province, ruled
over by a Saza (Provincial Chief) appointed by the
Omukama of Bunyoro-Kitara, The court in Palwoland was
not as elaborate as the one in Bunyoro, It was not big
and centralised enough to warrant the existence of King's
chroniclers as it was in Bunyoro and Buganda.
Centralisation may be conducive to the collection
of oral tradition of an area; but, it is certainly not a
pre-condition, Ogot has mentiomed that A.C.K. Oboth Ofumbi’
collected traditions on the Padhola, a segmentary society,

Y BeAs OM' m.. P 21,
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8imilarly, Lawrence has written on the Tteso of Uganda.l

Regardless of the system of government, an area with a
considerable amount of social and political etability is
bound to have some of its traditions recorded and kept for
future use, Political stability wae one of the things
that eluded the Palwo, The attempt of the Palwo to re-
gain their control of the empire from the "Bantu usurpers"
was protracted and made it impossible for the Palwo to
settle on a particular spot for a long time, Their
attempt to undermine the authority of the first Bantu
king resulted in the persecution of the Palwo, Some of
them especially those connected with the royal family

had to leave Northern Bunyorc for other places, While
some of them came back to continue the struggle, others
chose to stay permanently in thelr "New Found land" having
established authority over the people they met on the spot.>
Descendants of such men who now claim citizenship of
these new areas would have been useful informants, But
the series of wars against the Bantu in the nineteenth
century caused the untimely death of many members of Palwo
raling dynasty,” Vhen Kabalega finslly defeated them,

1, J.C.pn, Lawrence, The Iteso, (0.U.P,, London, 1955)
2, This will be seen in Chapter three below,
3. Bee Chapter Six below,
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he took some of them to his capital situated in the Bantu
section of the empire,’ In 1911 the outbreak of sleeping
sickness resulted in the evacuation of many of the Palwo to
other areas, notably Acholi and southern Bunyoro,

The 1911 evacuation perhaps proved most disfunctional
to the collection of oral tradition among the Palwo, It
was carried out just at the time Christianity and Western
education were being introduced to them, It was in Acholi
and Bunyoro that the Palwo were christianised and educated,
Most of them however became assimilated and regarded them-
selves as citizens of the areas to which they were eva-
cuated, Those who remained in Kibanda county were, at
least during the early period of colonial administration,
uneducated, Unfortunately, it was during this perlod that
literate Africans, namely, Nyakatura in Bunyoro, Kagwa in
Buganda, and Anywar in Acholi, were being encouraged to
collect and record the oral traditions of their areas,
Though Nyakatura and Anywar made references to the Palwo,
these references were only in so far as they help in
understanding the history of their areas, They could not
be expected to collect traditions of the Palwo, Educated
Palwo men would have done the job, But at this time, even
if the missionaries and the colonial administration were
interested in any aspect of the lives of the Palwo, it would
have been impossible to find literate Palwo men to do the Jjob,

1, 8See Chapter seven below,
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From the above, the explanation for the scarcity of
material on the Palwo becomes easy to understand, The
circumstances of their history were such that in the
twentieth century they became so numerically unimportant
that scholars and even their neighbours failed to realize
their existence. Except for the older generations of
Acholi and Bunyoro, majority of the people in Uganda are
not aware of their existence., Such an "insignificant"
group cannot be expected to attract the attention of foreign
scholars, The result is that since the Palwo were not able
to record their traditions, and they were not numerous enough
to be noticed by foreign scholars, there is no single publi-
cation either in the vernacular or PEnglish on any aspect of
their lives, The writer did not come across any written work
on the Palwo, Little wonder that earlier scholars did not
study the Palwo, They would have had to make a start from
no where in particular, It is the challenge of this unpleasant
task that the writer decided to face,

The lack of any form of written evidence compelled a
near complete dependence on oral tradition, Except for
the last half of chapter seven when evidence collected from
Entebbe Archives in Uganda is used, this thesis is based
largely on oral tradition, Oral tradition has been
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described as "testimoniee of the past which are deli-
berately transmitted from mouth to nonth".l The case
for oral tradition as a valid source material for his-
tory has already been made and need not be repeated
here,? Vaneina's declaration that "there is nothing
intrinsically less valuable in oral tradition than in

a written one",” sums up the attitude of the writer to
oral tradition, For the purpose of this exerecise, 140
interviews were conducted among individuals of Palwo
origin, This does not include the 20 interviews of
Acholi clans who claim to have left Northern Bunyoro as
a result of the persecution of the first Bantu king,
Apart from the occasional trips to Kampala, the period
between March and December 1971 was spent in interviewing
people, The interviews on which the thesis is based are
titled Palwo Historieal Text (P.H.T.). They are in the
possession of the writer and will be deposited at the
Ibadan University Library.

l, J. Vanaina. "Recording of the Oral History of the
Bakuba", Journal of African History, Vol. 1, No. 1, 1960,

% !{;}' a:-.:?:: g‘)’ B. A, Ogot %. t&lﬁ{-.
Vansina and n.ghwi » and H, Thomas, (eds, ).
i ’ (oup.. London 1964),

3. -I. vniuna, "Recording of the Oral History of the Bakuba"
oc.cit,
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The relisnce on oral tradition perhaps explains
one of the peculiarities of this thesis, As will be
observed, its size appears relatively small when compared
with earlier thesis produced in this Department, It has to
be so because, unlike all other theses, there was very little
documentary evidence at the disposal of the writer, Oral
evidence, first collected in 1971, cannot be expected to be
as voluminous as those collected and written in the late
nineteenth or early twentieth century, The present study is
an analysis of all the traditions that could possibly be
elicited from the Palwo,

Another peculiarity of this exercise is the system
of dating adopted, The most difficult problem facing a
historian using oral tradition is that of chronology,
Difficult as it is, if oral history is to be differen-
tiated from myths, fables, and legends, a time scale on
which a chronology is to be built is a necessity, Until
1710 when absolute dates were supplied, the writing of
Palwo history is based on the chronological formula first
evolved by Professor Oliver in South West Uganda,’ and

confirmed by Professor o;:tz and Webster's experiences

1. R, Oliver, "Preliminary Survey of Ancient Capital
sites of Ankole", Vol, 23, l(o. 1. 1959
and "Notes on some tes in Bugand

Uganda Journal, Vol, 23. llo. 1, 1959.
2, B. A, Ogot, op.cit,
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among the Padhola of Kenya and the Iteso of Uganda
respectively. "The chronology", says w.bster,l "ecan be
applied to all parts of the interlacustrine region",

The formula does not aim at establishing absolute
but rather relative dates, The relative dates are based
on generations, A generation is the time that elapses
between the birth of a man and that of his first surviving
child, The length of a generation based on experiences
in the interlacustrine region was taken to be twenty-seven
years, Thus taking the length of a generation to be
twenty-seven years, a chronology was worked out for the
Pnlwo.z

Vansina® might be right in saying that the technique
is not easy to handle and remains somewhat suspect, David
Henige" aloo has reservations sbout the validity of the
formula, Uzoigwe on the basis of the fact that Kiwanuka
exposed a margin of 22 years in the reign of one of the
Kabaka says the issue of chronology has to be looked

1, J. B, Webster, T
coples ava Ty

epartment, rere University, xanp-h) Makerere
University 1971,

2, See Appendix of this work for a table of important
dates in Palwo history,

3. J. Vansina, R, Nauny and L, U, Thomas, op,cit.

L, David P, Henige, "Oral Tradition and Chronology",
Journal of African History, Vol, II, No, 3, 1971.

5., Nyakatura, op,cit., Introduction, p. xix,
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afresh into, What the critics appear to have lost
sight of, is the fact that the system is not aiming at
ectablishing absolute but relative dates, not specific
years, but a range at least smaller than such expressions
as "late seventeenth or early eighteenth century", It is
pertinent to note that none of the critice have suggested an
altemative and until a better altemative is suggested,
Oliver's dating formula will continue to be used,

In this exercise, the formula was used in the first
three chapters, Henceforth Nyakatura and other Bunyoro
sources provide fairly absolute dates, As from the reign
of Olimi Isansa 1710-1730 the reign of the Banyoro Abakama
are dntod.]' In almost all the instances when the formula
was adopted, the dates arrived at were corroborated by
relevant, dbut independent, researches carried on at the
same time or before the writer's., For instance, the date
of the arrival of the Babito (1409-1436) was corroborated
by Oliver's conclusions on the disappearance of the
Bacwezi which were based on archaeological excavations,

1, By knowing the kings who reigned in Bunyoro at the time
dﬂ‘:: events occurred, one could get fairly absolute
es,

2, 8ee R, Oliver, "A Question about the Bacwezi", Uganda
Vol, 11 No, 2, 1953, His conclusions were
ased on excavations carried out at Bigo Hill, Oliver
is of the opinion that the Bacwezi disappeared in the
very early part of the fifteenth century, Also
J. B, Webster, places
the establishment o e a .
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The date of Palwo migration to Acholli and other areas

was also supported by evidence from areas to which they
migrated and by Nyakatura.® These tend to aad some validity
to Oliver's formula and point to the near-accuracy of dates
arrived at by using the formula,

 One other peculiar thing sbout thie study is the
unusually long period, 1400-1911, which it attempts to
cover, The factors which were responsible for the

dearth of material on the Palwo have been mentioned., In

the circumstances, perhaps the most convenient way of
writing a meaningful history of the Palwo is to focus on
their rivalry with the Bantu for the control of the

empire of Kitara, The rivalry during which the Palwo

were compelled to move from place to place and sought to

use factors of religion and economy to achieve their aim,
spread over five centuries, Any attempt to concentrate

on one section of this period to the neglect of others

will result in an unbalanced picture of the Palwo, It

seems the most convenient way of writing a coherent history
of this numerically insignificant® but historically important

1, Webster dates the nrr!.val ct A@ago at 1720-1760
see J, B. '.bstor, : 1 : ettleme :
Inte ustrine Rep

2. For instance the total ation of Palwo's county
of Kibanda in 1959 was 12,628, See B, W, Langlands,
e tion 8t; Makerere

Geogra Occasional Paper No, 35, » De 6.
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group is to focus on their activities during the whole
of the five centuries,

Yet another peculiarity of this exercise is that
until chapter four, no particular area was demarcated as
the home of the Palwo (Palwoland) - hence the use of
"Northern Bunyoro", This is because it was not until
¢,1830 that they settled permanently in Northern Bunyoro,
Hitherto they had cause to move from one territory to
another,

The title "Political History" haes been chosen because
the struggle for the control of an empire is essentially
a political act, However, this is not to say that the
five centuries with which we shall be concerned is full
of political events to the neglect of other issues, not-
ably religion and economics, But as far as the writer
is concerned in this study, religious and economic factors
are important and relevant only in terme of their political
significance, The importance of Palwo gods lay in their
contribution to the success of the Palwo in undermining
the authority of the Bantu "usurpers"”, The economic boom
is important only for the encouragement it gave to the
Palwo in their attempt to defeat their opponents, Throughout
the five centuries one will not fail to notice that the
overriding issue was the political struggle for the control
of Bunyoro-Kitara empire,
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The writer has chosen to write Lwo and Palwo in
spite of the fact that some earlier writers have spelt the
two wowds in slightly different waye.» Lwo and Palwo
are written as such because the inhabitents of Palwo's
comty of Kibanda pronounce and write like that, Ogot
also suggested that the Alur, Padhola, and Kenya Luo have
undergone certain morphological changes which are lacking
in the Acholi, Lango, and Palwo.> This perhaps explains
the differences in which these two groups of Nilotes
pronounce and write "Lwo", It is perhaps worth noting
that even Ogot who writes Luo for the entire group writes
"Palwo" for this branch of the Lwo, Moreover most writers
on the Lwo of UM3 write Lwo for the entire group and
Palwo for those in Northern Bunyoro.

1 (')'Trzm?r;;s'&%& X, I1I, 111,

(v) B, A, Ogot, op.cit.
2, Inia.n p. 32,

3. J. B, Webster and ommgw

Aconya, In Press with erature au,
R, S, Anywar, MW
M%-o e Press,

by P
J. Onyongo-ku~-0dango, 1 story of the Cen
Lwo, Typescript, Makerere University Kampala, 1971.



The Palwo are a branch of the Lwo, A discussion of their
early history should therefore begin with an insight into
the origin and migration of the Lwo, Available literature
indicates that the Lwo along with the Nuer and Didinga con-
stituted the Nilotic racial croup.l The question of their
original homeland has so far defied any satisfactory solution,
Crazzolara places the Nilotic cradleland around the Bahr-el-

Ghazal region in the present~day Republic of Budan.z Odongo

1, There are two accounts of the migration of the Lwo from
their cradleland (1) J. P, Crazzolara, op.cit.
(2) J. Onyago-ku-Odongo, op.cit.
The exercise on pp, l-4 is an attempt to fuse the two
accounts, the contents of which are basically the same
especially with regards to splits, quarells and division,
but which differ greatly in details i,e, names of places
and personalities involved in the issues, TFor instance,
Odongo snd Cragzzolara differ on where the cradleland was,
and the route followed by the migrants, While Crazzolara
tends t0 postulate a straight north to south movement,
Odongo postulates a movement from north to east of
present Palwoland, They however agree that there were
splits but differ as to where they occurred, The popular
'spear and bead story' is the same in structure but as
to who was involved and where it occurred, they have
different opinions, In reciting the story, the writer has
chosen to present the personalities mentioned by
Crazzolara because some of the names mentioned by
Crazgzolara were also mentioned by Palwo informants,

2, Crazzolara, op.cit., p. 31.
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claims that it was on the western shores of Lake Rudolf,
Wherever it might have been, a combination of the factors of
over-population, shortage of pastureland, and hostility of
their neighbours compelled the Lwo to leave the place, Ogot
suggests that the Lwo left the Nilotic cradleland at ¢,1000
A.D.z Odongo also arrived at the same oonelusicn.3 In view
of Odongo's corroboration, Ogot's date seems convineing,

The migration of the Lwo into Uganda featured series
of quarells and disagreements during which one branch after
another broke from the main bulk to settle at different
places, One of such separations was at Wipac where, as

: &

Crazgzolara records, one Dimo led a group away in a southernly
direction.u From Wipac, other Lwo groups went to settle at
different places, The Padibe went towards Baar, the Patiko
moved towards the Nile, and Nyimur Alur crossed the Nile
and moved to present-day West Nile Distriet, Other minor
separations occurred until the group reached an area called
Pubungu.

While Crazgzolara seems t0 trace the north-western
migration route of the Lwo, Odongo concentrates upon the
north-eastern route, The Lwo, according to Odongo, moved

1. Onyago-ku-Odongo, op. cit.

2, 0Ogot, op, cit., p. 41,
3. Odongo arrived at the same date while carrying out his
research independent of that of Ogot.

4, Crazgzolara, op, cit., p. 38.
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from Lake Rudolf to a place called Tekidi, which may have
been in the Ogili mountains of Agoro region, In Tekidi, there
was a split given in terms of 'the spear and bead a‘hory'l in
which one group moved west to the Nile and settled in Pawir
and another headed south towards Nyanza, Putting the tradi-
tions of Odongo and Cragzzolara together, it is possible that
the first Lwo settlements in Pawir came out of both the
eastern and western wings of Lwo migration, However, there
is conflict in the 'spear and bead quarell' as narrated by
both authors, Crazgzolara argues that this guarell took place
at Pubungu, while Odongo argues that it was at Tekidi,
According to Crazgzolara, Pubungu occupies a unique
position in the history of Lwo migration and in the evolution
of the Palwo, Alur and Acholi, The traditions of origin of
Acholi and Alur stress the arrival of the whole group of
migrating Lwo at Pubungu, "It is therefore, the most
prominent place in the history of the Lwo of Uganda".? At
Pubungu, there was a debate as to whether the migrating Lwo
groups should continue marching southwards, or settle per-
manently at that spot which looked so conducive to human

1, For the details of the story see pp. L4~5 of this chapter.
2, Crazzolara, The Lwoo Part I: Migrations, ». 59.
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settlement, WMost of the migrants were weary of the seemingly
endless journey t0 an unknown destination, Some were however
pushed on by the spirit of adventure and favoured a continued
march, Thus, there was a disagreement which can be said to
have been partly responsible for the break-up of the Lwo

at Pubungu,.

If Pubungu was described as conducive to human settle-
ment, Tekidl was also said to be a fertile mountainous area
inhabited by a people called Muru who were so friendly to
the incoming Lwo that a great deal of contact and inter-
marriage occurred between the two 3:'0\:93.1 Pubungu or Tekidi
was however not destined to be the final resting place of
the Lwo, Apart from the disagreement earlier mentioned, a
more important reason for the break-up of the settlement
was, according to Odongo and Crazzolara, the quarell over
the "lost spear and the swallowed bead”.? Both writers
relate the same story but differ in the names of the per-
sonalties involved, According to Crazzolara, the quarell
was among the sons of Olum, the leader of the migrating Lwo,
Olum had three sons, Nyipir, Tilfool and Labongo, Nyipir one
day used Tilfool's spear to attack an elephant which escaped

1, B8ee Crazzolara, op. cit.,, p. 59 and Odongo, op, cit.
2, 1Ibia.
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with the spear hanging on its body, Tilfool insisted on
having back his own spear and refused all substitutes, Nyipir
had to go into the forest to look for the spear, He was
fortunate t0 meet a woman who gave him not only the exact
spear he was looking for, but also some beads and millet.
Nyipir returned his brother's spear -~ but not without bitter-
ness for having compelled him to risk his life in search of
it, Sometime afterwards, Tilfool's son was playing with
Nyipir's beads and swallowed them, Nyipir saw this as an
opportunity to revenge against Tilfool for his uncompromising
attitude over the spear, He insisted on having back his exact
beads and the child's belly had to be ripped open, The child
died shortly afterwards, These incidents created such ani-
mosity that it became clear that the brothers could not
continue living together. Tilfool was reported to have
crossed the River Nile and settled in the forest where

Nyipir had recovered his spear, He, according to Crazzolara,
became the ancestor of the Alur, Nyipir went in another
direction, At this point Labongo who was said to have
accompanied his two brothers had to return to Kilak and,

with his supporters, he settled in present-day Acholi land,
Olum, the father of the quarelling brothers led the remaining
Lwo towards Bunyoro, They were sald to have arrived at
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chopel where they settled, 'The dispute' was also said to
have caused a large exodus of population from Tekidi to the
Nile area, Pakwac and Puirz. The branch of the Lwo who
settled in Pawir became known as the Palwo, Since Pawir was
the earliest and most important of the territories esta-
blighed in the region, all those who later came to settle

in the area west and south of Pawir were also known as the
Palwo,

It has been necessary to relate the story of the gquarell
because of its relevance to the origin of the Palwo, Except
for the Palwo of Pajao, every other section of the Palwo
community ascribe their origin to the gquarell over the lost
spear and swallowed bead even though with some variations
as to the place, time, and personalities involved. Because

1, The word 'Chope' is the other name by which the Palwo
is known, It was said to have originated from a visit
to the Palwo by some Banyoro at a time when the men were
out in the farms. On meeting only women the visitors
asked for the men and they were told Chope-pe "Cho"
meaning 'man' '?e' meaning 'none'., The area then began
to be known as 'Chope' the people being Bachope (Muchope
singular), The people resent this name and insiet on
being addressed as Palwo, Unfortunately, however, the
term Chope has gained such currency that even their
fellow Lwo refer to them as Bachope e,g. Odongo,

2, Odongo, op. cit.
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the story is popular among many Lwo groups, even those as
far apart as the Boor and Kisumu, Cragzzolara has suggested
that the story is not of Lwo but of ¥adi origin,® The Madi
are a group who occupied a considerable part of the terri-
tories aléng which the Lwo passed in the course of their
migration, In some areas, the Lwo absorbed the Madi while
in others, the ILwo were compelled to abandon the Madi
settlements and moved further, The result is that various
branches of the Lwo are separated by Madi-speaking people.
On the basis of the fact that the Madl were the pre-Lwo
inhabitants of most of the area now occupied by the Lwo,
Crazgzolara thinks that the "lost spear and swallowed bead"
story was of Madl origin and was only taken over by the Lwo
when they met and absorbed the Madi.’

However, Crazzolara's contention seems not to be
supported by available evidence, For instance, the inhabi-
tants of Pajao (one of the later Palwo chiefdoms) are of
Madi origin, They came to Northern Bunyoro from Madi-lula

and their present Lwo language still has some Madi ac.scelm.3

1, Crazzolara, op, cit., p. 61.
2, 1Ibia,

3. The origin of the Pajao will be discussed fully in
chapter II, pp. 36~37 below.
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These people are completely ignorant of the lost spear and
swallowed bead story., They are not even familiar with the
places and pereonalities cannected with the incident, There-
fore, since the Lwo are very familiar with the story and the
people who are of Madi origin are not aware of it, one is
inclined to agree with A,C.A, Wright who argued that "the
fact that the story was of sufficiently dramatic nature to
have imposed itself on the imagination of Lwo people as far
apart as those of Boor, Wau, and Kisumu shows that it is of
Lwo origin®,t

granted that the story is of Lwo origin, the question
of where the quarell occurred needs to be looked into,
According to the traditions supplied by Crazzolara, the
quarell over the lost spear and swallowed bead occurred at
Palmngn.z Pubungu is the area presently kmown as Pakwac in
Uganda's west Acholl distriet, The story of the quarell is
knovn to, and used to explain the origin of all Lwo groups
including the Boor., Put the Boor were one of the first groups
to separate from the main bulk of the migrating Lwo, They
live in the Sudan and did not come as far south as Pubungu,

1, AJ.C.A, Wright, "Lwo Migrations: A review" Uganda Journal,
vol, 16, no, 1, 1952, p, 83.

2, Craszgolara, op, cit., p. 59.
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If it is true that the story is not only known to, but also
used to explain the origin of the Boor,]' one begins to doubt
whether the incident occurred at Pubungu, It must have been
in a place as far north as, if not farthér than, the Sudan
where the Boor live, Moreover, Pubungu is so near to where
the Palwo now live that if the incident really occurred there,
the Palwo would not have hesitated t0 mention it, But no
single Palwo informant said that the guarell occurred in
Pubungu, Instead places farther north including the Sudan
were untionadz as the scene of the quarell, It is on this
basis that one is prone to acecept Odongo's reasoning that
the spear and bead quarell occurred when the Lwo were still
living together (most likely in the Sudan) and before they
were widely dispersed, Thus it was passed down among all the
Lwo and often employed to explain later acyaratims.’

If the spear and bead story was invented by the Lwo to
explain their dispersal, they have done nothing peculiar,

Other groups have engaged in similar practice. For

1. 7Ibid., pp. 113-114,

2, Isaya Byewarjom P,H,T, 91, Chopelwor, 5/8/71. Francis
Kirube, P,H,T., 108 Mutunda 16%771. Antonio Onyuru
P,H,T, 107 Mutunda 15/9/71., Other places like North
Africa, Libya were suggested,

3. Odongo, op, eit.
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ingtance, the Yoruba of Nigeria explain their dispersal in
terms of the decision of the sons of Oduduwa (the ancestor)
to separate and establisgh their authority in different ama.]'
The 'common consent story' is believed to have been invented
to Justify their separation, The real cause of the separation
might have been one, or a combination of the factors of over-
population, quarells among brothers, or the desire to move
into new areas, In the case of the Lwo, the spear and bead
story might have been invented to serve the same purpose as

the common consent story of the Yoruba, The cause of the
separation might have been a result of one, or the combination

of factors of overpopulation, shortage of pastureland, and
hostility of their neighbours, In any case, whether the

quarell occurred or not, most of the Palwo groups trace
their origin to it.

The Palwo settled at the northern extreme of present-
day Bunyoro distriet. Their place of settlement includes the

area conteining the Murchison Falls National Park and Kibanda
County, The former Palwo county of Kihukya was converted into

the present-day Murchison Falls National Park after the Palwo
had been forced to leave the sres in 1911 by the Colonial

Government, The Palwo first came to this area either during
the late fourteenth or early fifteenth century, They did not

all settle under one single authority but in what might be

1, ror g:taus on the History of the Yoruba see 8. Johnaon.
8 ; 0 he liest
mmmmmmmm
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called chiefdoms governed by whoever happened to be selected
as leader or whoever led the respective migration groups
into the area and usually addressed as 'rwhot'.l Seven of
these entities namely Pawir, Koc, Kisona, Kisoga, Paitwol,
Munyai and Pajao could be identified, In fact most writers
refer to the whole area as Pawir, regardless of the fact
that it was only the oldest of the Palwo chiefdoms, This is
not to deny the fact that Pawir's influence was spread to
other areas by its inhabitants who went to utabugh chief-
doms in these places, Indeed so great was the influence of
Pawir that its emergence must now be discussed,

Emergence of Pawir

Pawir elders ascribe their origin to a quarell over
the lost spear and swallowed bead but with some variation
in details,? In their version, the bead had been swallowed
before the elephant was speared, Labongo whom Crazzolara
presented as being relatively uninvolved in the quarell was

1, The word chiefdom has been used for the sake of conve-
nience, They could also be called principalties or even
kingdoms, After all, the head was a man called rwhot
which literarily translated, means king, Xingdom is not
used in order to avoid confusion with Bunyoro-Kitara
Kingdom of which the area inhabited by the Palwo was
an integral part,

2, P.H,T, 91, as prmomy cited.
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sald to be the one who had been uncomproamising over his bead
and had to go into the jungle to look for the elephant he

had struck with Nyipir's spear, After returning the spear,

he collected his close relatives and separated from the main
group, Nyawir, as the aunt of Labongo, was the eldest member
of this group and was said to have taken an active part in
deciding the routes to be followed by the migrants, Labongo
died in the course of the migration and Nyawir assumed
leadership, The migrating Lwo later arrived at a place called
Awechi, named after one of them who decided to stay there
because his wife was at the point of being delivered of a
baby and therefore could no longer continue marching, The
others kept on moving and arrived at Kamdini situated in presen
day Lango district. Some of them decided to cross the River
Nile and settled on the opposite side, Others chose to go as
far as Kidilandi, Between Kamdini and Kidilandi, the migrating
Palwo were said to have been subjected to attacks by the
people living in these areas. Their cattle were raided and
some of them were physically assaulted whenever they resis-
ted the cattle raid, At Kidilandi, a king named Arum, after
whom Karuma Falls was believed to have been named, was
exercising authority, Some of the Palwo chose to stay with
him, Nyawir and the majority of the migrants crossed the
Nile and decided to stop at Bedmot which became more or less
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the capital settlement, She chose Bedmot because of its
fertility arising from its proximity to the river, Added to
this was the fact that the majority of the migrsnts had
become exhausted after crossing the Nile, Bedmot and the
surrounding area where this first group of Paslwo migrants
stayed was later lmown as Pawir in memory of Nyawir,
Probably as a result of the attacks they had suffered
from some of the people they came across in the course of
their migration, Nyawir was ever exhorting the Pawiri to be
vigilant lest they might suddenly be deprived of their land,
They built their fenced huts near the Nile and experienced
a short period of famine before the crops they planted
were ready for harvest, In consequence of this famine, the
Lwo learnt how to eat the fish, According to tradition, the
Lwo did not know the art of fishing or the food walue of
fieh until this time., The tradition of how the Lwo learnt
how to eat fish which seems to be an explanation of what
common sense dictates is as follows: On one occasion,
some of the children went to fetch water, The calabash
with which one of them was trying to take water from
the river caught some fishes. Being unfamiliar objects
to them, the children took the fishes to their parents., A
Palwo woman suspected that the objects might be fit for
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1 ghe offered to cook and eat the fighes, Her

consumption,
survival or death would dictate whether or not the objects
were fit for human consumption, She survived and from then
fishing became a popular occupation, By the time fish became
recognised as an item of food, the crops planted were already
yielding good harvests, ILife became easier, and as the popu-
lation increased, the people moved from Bedmot to colonise
sorrounding areas., New settlements like Tochi and Karawong
emerged, These settlements were usually headed by members

of Nyawir's clan, the Dukeno, As these settlements were still
within the chiefdom of Pawir, they remained surbodinate

to the authority of the king of Pawir, But Pawir and the new
settlements that emerged from it were located within the
Bunyoro-Kitara empire then ruled by a dynasty called the
Bacwezi, It was from the Bacwezi that the Palwo took catrol
of the Kitara empire for some time, At this point it is
necessary to discuss the Bacwezi in order to understand

Palwo gtruggle with them for the control of Kitara.

The Bacwezi and the Palwo of Pawir

Who the Bacwezi were is very difficult to say,

1, 7Tbid,
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Huntingford and Ingham® suggest that they were Hamites.,
Crazzolara® believes that the Bahima (a pastoral group in
southern Uganda) were one people with the Bacwezi and all

of them were Lwo, It was these conguering Lwo who were first
known as the Bacwezi, and then later as the Bahinda of Ankole
and the Batutsi of Rwanda, He strengthens his argument by
pointing out that the drums, spears, bows, arrows and
calabash found among the Bacwezi kings were ILwo articles.
Nyakatura's story of the Bacwesi inviting their brothers
from the north to step into their shoes when they were com-
pelled to disappear seems to buttress Crazzolara's conten-
tion, Oliver, however, dismisses Nyakatura's story of the
disappearance of the Bacwezi as an attempt to supply a
fictitious continuity between the Babito dynasty and its
predecessors, Basing his argument on Ankole tradition
supplied by Katate, he says that the Bacwezi emerged not

1, G, W, Huntingford, "The Peopling of the Interior of Rast
Africa by its modern inhabitants in R, Oliver and G.
Mathews", (Bds.) Hi B Vol, 1 (Oxford
Clarendon London "Some Aspects
of the History of Wstem Ugnnda" MAML Vol. 21,
No, 1, 1957.

2, Crazzolara, op, cit.,, pp. 94~97, 102-103.
3. Nyakatura, Mo’ PP, 32-34,
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fram the north but from the south, "First emerging as royal
clan among the Batutsi aristocracy, they extended their
authority to the north up to the Nile area, This northern
extension of their empire was checked by the advance of the
Nilotie Luo".l Tar from the Bacwezi voluntarily inviting
their brothers Babito to succeed them, Oliver argues that
"the earthworks to the north of thelr capital at Mubende

and Wtusi stand as evidence of their intention to defend
their territories against the Nilotic mnders".z Karugire
thinks that Crazzolara's view of the Lwo origin of the
Bacwezl 1s mistaken because "although it is now generally
accepted that the ruling house of Bunyorc was descended from
the Lwo-speaking peoples, there is no evidence at all to
adduce the same for the royal families of Rwanda and n'oro".’
Voreover, the fact that the Bacwezl were said to be light
skinned and the Lwo were unusually black weakens the
argument that the Bacwezi were Lwo, Even Odongo who is not
slow in claiming credit for the Lwo does not claim that the

1, R, Oliver, "A Question sbout the Bacwezi", loc, cit.
2.
3.
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Bacwezl were Lwo, It therefore seems difficult to accept
Cragzzolara's claim that the Bacwezi were Lwo,

However, the fact that no one is sure of the origin of
the Bacwezi is not sufficient justification for wWrigley to
diemiss them as "imaginary gods rather then un".1 The
Bacwezi did exist and muled over the Kitara empire, Opinions
differ on the period they were said to have "disappeared",
Oliver's view that they disappeared in the fifteenth century
seems most convinecing, having as it were, the force of
archaeologicel excavations behind it,” Pawir treditions agree
with Oliver's story that the Bacwezi at the time of their
disappearance were extending their rule northwards to the
Nile, The Bacwezi, according to the Pawir informants, came
to Nyawir'e palace and got Nyawir and her people to accept
them as rulers. The Bacwezi gave Nyawir royal instruments
such as drums, stools, spears and beads, The Bacwezl taught
Nyawir how to organize her territory and collect tribute,
Thereafter Nyawir paid tributé twice yearly to the Bacwezi,

1. C, C, Wrigley, "Some Thoughts on the Bacwezl",
Ugsnda Journal, Vol. 22, No, 1, 1959,

2. R. Oliver, "“A Question about the Bacwezi", loc.cit.
3. Isaya Byewarjo, Chopelwor, P.H,T,, 92, 17/8/71.
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the first during the harvest season and the second during

the empango festival, Nyawir also retained a portion of

the tribute for herself, che sent the harvest tributes
through her lieutenants such as Uyo and Dadao Rucho who,

in return, received gifts from the Bacwezi kings, But

Nyawir was always physically present at the Bacwezl capital
during the empango festival, The empango was the celebration
marking the anniversary of the Omukama's accession, It

was an océuion for the provincial representatives to
dénommto their loyalty and obedience to the Omukanma,

Other representatives of the Bacwezi 'central' administration
were aleo present, It seems the Bacwezl had established
some centraliged authority over Kitara empire before the Palwo
came, It is pertinent to examine the nature of this
political organization,

Eitara Political Structure

The Kitara empire was a hierarchically organised state
with the Omukama at the apex of the pyramid of authority and
a munber of appointed officials and village headmen at its
base, With a widely dispersed population, poor communication
and simple technology, it was impossible to establish and
maintain a high concentration of political power, The
Omukama therefore conferred authority on some people to rule
on his behalf, There secems to have been two administrative



» 1%
systems in Kitara, Metropolitan Bunyoro, the central core
of the Kitara empire, was divided into Sagzas and ruled by
princely appointees of the Omukama, In these places, for
example Bugahya, Kyalm and lMuwenge, the office of the Saza was
not hereditary, The Omukema could replace the princes with
any of their brothers, But in the peripheral states such as
Pawir, Buhweju and Bugzimba which hed previocusly been inde-~
pendent, but were by one way or the other brought to acknow-
ledge the suzerainty of the Abakama, the local chiefs con-
tinued to rule and were succeeded by thelr descendants, The
Omukama 's suzerainty was however acknowledged by the payment
of tributes,” This system of incorporating already estab-
lished states into the empire by making the local rulers
serve as thelir representatives seemed to have paved the way
for larger political units during the Bacwezl era, It partly
explains the vast extent of the Kitara empire,

In both of these administrative areas, the rulers
whether local and hereditary, or princely appointees, were
more or less, micro kings exercising wide executive and
judicial powers, The Bacwezl kingdom of Kitara thus looked
like a loose assoclation of semi independent states ruled

1, Carole Buchanan:
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by princes or local rulers and loosely connected with the
capital through the payment of tributes and attendance at
empango festivals, Though it might be loose, the fact is
that the Bacwezi evolved and maintained a system of rule in
the Kitara empire, This system was also sdopted by their
Babito (Palwo) successors.

The above perhaps justifies Oliver's declaration that
"The political legacy of the Bacwezi /o the Palwg/ involved
& system of administrative officisldom accuetomed to ruling
small districts as the local representative of = centralized
nation”,’ This statement tends to give the impression that
the Palwo of Pawir leamed the notion of kingship from the
Bacwezl, It seems that they had no idea of kingship before
coming to Kitara. But this is not true. The political system
in Pawir before the coming of the Bacwezi could not be
described as segmentary, When after settling at Bedmot, the
population increased to the point where some people migrated
to other areas such as Tochi and Kwarong, Nyawir took care
to appoint members of her own Dukeno clan to exercise
authority over them, Dadao Rucho who ruled at Tochi returned
regularly to Bedmot to offer tributes of foodstuffs to Nyawir.

1., Oliver, "A Question sbout the Bacwezi", loc, cit.
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Legal cases were also referred from Tochi and Kwarang to
Nyawir for settlement.' The system of kingship and centralised
government among the Palwo of Pawir might not have been as
elaborate as that of the Bacwezi who ruled a much wider area
but the Palwo were not unfamiliar with the idea of centralised
rule, Bacwewl's instructions to Nyawir were perhaps an
elaboration of an idea already familiar, It would be wrong
to assume that it was the Bacwezl who instructed the Lwo in
the ideas of kingship,

Where and when one might ask did the Lwo acquire the
idea of kingship and centralised government? A.C.A. Wright
suggests the probability that at some point in their south-
ward migration, the Lwo came in contact with the Hamites who
had an elaborate kingship ritual which showed traces of
Weroitic cultural influence, Contact was followed by inter-
marriage with the Lwo, "The Lwo legend of Ocak, the milk
drinker, a light coloured stranger, who seduced the Lwo girl
Kilak from whom sprang Nyambongo founder of the Babito
dynasty" is, in his opinion, the traditional justification
of these events, This mixed marriage is said to have taken

1, Isaya Byewarjo, Chopelwor, P,H,T., 93, 18/8/71.
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place in the Atura-Pakwach-Nimule triangle at a time when
there were Hamitic movements between western Abyssinia and
Uganda,t

Another proof of the fact that the Lwo had had ideas
of kingehip before coming in contact with the Bacwezi is the
fact that Rukidl founder of the Babito dynasty was sald to
be the son of a Lwo king Oweny and a woman from the pastora-
liet Bahima group., In fact, Odongo supplied a Lwo king list
which showed that since ¢.1000 some formal leadership tradi-
tion had been existing among them, TIn ¢,1193-1220, during the
reign of Rwot Opii, the Lwo state became more centralised.
The king in addition to his secular powers was also conferred

2 The Lwo who later on had cause to

with religious powers,
settle in other areas adopted the system which operated
under Rwot Opii, Among these Lwo groups were those in
Pawir and Alur,> Thus Nyawir, the leader of the Lwo in
Pawir, seems to have inherited ideas of kingship from her
ancestors. However, much as ideas of kingship were not new
to Nyawir, it is clear that it was the Bacwezi who first
gave her a drum and this instrument was likely new to her

and her people.

1. A.C.A. mﬂ.t' °E‘ g;!o

2, Odongo, op, ecit.
3. Ibia,
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Some years after the Bacwezi had visited her, Nyawir
wae said to have disappeared in a rather mysterious manner,
One version of the story as supplied by oral tradition says
that one morning when the people went to pay her a visit in
the palace, they found a big hole around the place and gra-
dually the palace and everything inside including Nyawir
began to sink in the hole, People were surprised but there
was nothing they could do.® Another version by Crazsolara
describes Nyawir as being one of the two wives of Olum Panya
the leader of the migrating Lwo who were sent to Bunyoro by
their husband to wait for him at appointed places, Olum
promised to come later and take them with him to his new
residence, Nyawir happened to be by the side of a cattle
water hole when she heard that her husband had passed by
without caring for her, She fell into the water hole from
heart-break and disappeared together with her attendants,
her cattle and all her property.z The story of a human being
disappearing or sinking into a hole seems difficult to
believe, May be the circumstances surrounding Nyawir's death
was not such that the Palwo informants can account for or
be proud of, The story of Nyawir's disappearance into the

1. P,H.T., 93, as previously cited.
2, Crazzolara, op, eit., p. 111,
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hole might have been an attempt by tle Palwo to create an
aura of respect for their hereditary ancestor and perhaps
a justification for deifying her,

The choice of Uyo ¢.1436 as successor to Nyawir was
almost sutomatic,’ Apart from having been Nyawir's principal
adviser and chief executive, he was virtvally the oldest
man in Pawir at the time of Nyawir's death, He was crowned
ceremoniously, Nine days of mourning were observed after
Nyawir's disappearance. On the tenth day, Uyo was made to
sit on Nyawir's stool, wore her garments, and was handed
the drums, spear and beads hitherto used by Nyawir., Lakturn
and other elders spoke at the ceremony advieing him to follow
the footsteps of his predecessor, Uyo was later on taken to
the Bacwezi for imtroduction,

It was during Uyo's reign that some kind of reverence
began to0 be paid to Nyawir's memory, One of Nyawir's child-
ren, Okelo Nyawir, was told in a2 dresm that the Pawiri
should start offering sacrifice to Nyawir at the spot where
she had disappeared, Okelo Nyawir assumed the role of the
chief priest whenever the sacrifice was offered, usually
at the beginning of the planting season, Failure to offer

1, P.H,T., 91, as previously cited.
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the sacrifice could result in famine, Goats were slaughtered
and eaten, and plenty of beer was cansumed at that spot
vhere Nyawir disappeared, People ate and drank as much as
they could, leaving behind the remains including the pots
used for cooking, It was believed that Nyawir used to con-
sune whatever food and drink was lctt."

Uyo and Nyawir were both members of the Dukeno clan,
They were, however, not of the same family, In fact, Uyo
seemed t0 have represented the head of anothe r important
segment of the clan, The succession of Uyo and the worship
of Nyawir suggest that the descendants of Nyawir assumed a
religious role wvhen they lost their political authority,

That such a thing is possible has been indicated by Rennie

in his paper on Rwenda,? Furthermore, Odongo has shown that
in the kingdom of Puranga, the original dynasty held both
religious and secular powers, When that dynasty was replaced,
there was a separation of functions, the old royal family
becoming the hereditary chief priest and the new royal family
having authority only over political matters,’ The same holds

1, P,H,T., 92, as previously cited,
2. . K, Remils, The Pre-Oolenisl History, of Reands,
Makerere Seminar Paper, No, ) .

3. Odongo, op, cit.



-26-

true for the empire of Kitara where the displaced Bacwezi
rulers began t0 be worshipped after their disappearance and
the new Babito rulers attempted to legitimise their rule by
the worship of Wamara, the last of the Bamzi.l Among the
examples above, there is an important difference., In the case
of Nyawir and the Bacwezi, the spirits of the departed dynasty
actually assumed the role of gods while in the case of Puranga
the old dynasty merely formed the chiefly family ministering
to an already established divine oracle,

Some time during Uyo's reign, the people of Pawir passed
through a very difficult period, A small pox epidemic claimed
the lives of many, Then, there was an outbreak of famine,

The harvests were poor and even the Tochi river failed to
provide fish, The situation was so bad that Uyo could not be
paid the annual tributes by his subjects.> As a result, he
in turn failed to meet his annual tribute obligation to the
Bacwezl, The Bacwezl did not, and perhaps could not, make
any effort to compel Uyo to do what was expected of him,

1, Carole Buchanan, op, cit.

2. PH,T., 93, as previously cited.
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The appalling situation at Pawir was perhaps part of
the general catastrophe which overtook the whole of the
Bacwezl kingdom of Kitara shortly before the advent of the
Babito, Nyakatura® explains the misfortune of the Bacwesi
as a consequence of the rudeness of Wamara's wives to Kantu,
an old man, but a blood friend of, and diviner to, the last
Mucwezi Omukama, Kantu was said t0 have come to Wamara's
palace at a time when the Omukama was preparing to go out
hunting, Wamara however ordered one of his servants to take
Kantu to his wives and be given whatever he wanted, The
Omukama's wives not only refused to give him water for which
he asked, but also forcefully pushed him out where he was
trampled upon by the king's cattle, Kantu was said to have
cursed the Bacwezi, Thereafter, there followed a period of
decentralisation and fragmentation punctuated by famine and
disease all over the Kitara Kingdom, The Bacwezi lost the
respect and admiration people had for them, Putting the
Pawir traditions together with those in Kitara, it seems that
there is a general agreement that the end of the Bacwezi

1, Nyakatura, «3 DPDe 27-29, There are several
versions of ] of the disappearance of the Bacwezi,
All of them point to unfavourable political and economic
situation as the cause, It is only Nyakatura who
describes the reasons for the political and economic
decay, Among the Palwo and Banyoro parties to a blood
friend pact agree to help each other in time of need.

It is believed that anyb who directly offends his
blood-friend will meet with some migfo rtune,



dynasty was accompanied by a severe famine and epidemic, The
famine had an effect on the political history of Kitara., It
led to the replacement of the Bacwezl with the Babito as
rulers of the empire,

Arrival of the Babito
It was during a period of famine when Uyo was still the

revhot at Pawir that the Babito arrived in Pawir from the
north.l Rukidi, a Lwo man who later became founder of

the Babito dynasty came to Karawong (some would say Panyadoli),
carrying a bag of porridge on which he and his companions

fed while most people were suffering from hunger, The

Bacwezi asked Rukidi for porridge but Rukidi would give

it to them only in return for royel drums, The drums being
the sacred instruments of authority were too valuable to be

1. Zachariah Manyum, P,H.T, 27, 17/4/71., Xings in mngcro-
Kitara are supposed to have ; spiritual source for their
authority, They are believed to have been given the
power to rule by the gds. The instrument of authority
was the drum, By giv away the drums the Bacwezi have
placed temporal over itual considerations., The
Palwo story of the com of Rukidi is an attempt to
emphasize this, Rukidi in an effort to get himself
accepted by the inhabitants of Kitara empire especially
in the Bantu-speaking areas tried to esteblish a link
between himself and the departed Bacwezi, The Babito
were sald to be spreading the story of their heing
brothers of the Bacwezi and that it was tle Bacwezi
who invited them to take over power, They also worshipped
spirits of the departed Bacwezi, see Carole Buchanan,
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exchanged for porridge. The Bacwezl thus went away in hunger.
Three days later; the Bacwezi could no longer bear the
hunger and handed over the drums, By exchanging the drums
for mere porridge, the Bacwezi committed& the most sacrile-
gious of sins, The gods were sald to be angry and the already
bad condition of the empire became worse, To start with, the
quantity of porridge proved insufficient to satisfy members
of the household, Far from curing their hunger, the small
quantity only served to stimulate their appetites and pro-
voked bitter quarelling as each individual triel to get more,
The gods were sald to have invoked their anger and a series
of misfortunes started befalling the Bacwegi, 2trange sounds
were heard in the palace, and meny of the princes dled,
Things came to a head when the palace started giving way,
The Racwezl attempted to summon peonle to come to their aid
but having given their drums to Rukidi, there was no way of
ecalling the people. The palace collapsed, many of them died,
and those who survived disappeared in the direction of Lake
Albert,

It ean be seen that the Palwo explanation of the Bacwezi
decline Aiffers from that of Nyakature,  who sseribes it to

1., Nyakmturs, m., PP. 27-29.
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failure to carry out an obligation to a blood friend. It is
perhaps an attempt to offer a religlous Justification for
their eventual assumption of authority in Kitara. It may
also be an effort to present the situation in Kitara empire
as demanding a new set of rulers who could put an end to the
famine the effects of which even the Bacwezi did not escape.
Whatever might have been responsible for the decline of the
Pacwezi, all sources agree that the Bacwezl disappeared and
the Babito (Lwo) took over the control of Kitara.

After the disappearance of the Racwezi, Rukidi, the
leader of the Lwo, established himself as king and from
Pawir he extended his influence to the Bantu-speaking southern
province of the former Abacwezi empire of Kitara. In
recognition of their Lwo ancestry, Rukidil and his successors
shifted the capital back to Pawir even when the expansion
into the Rantu-speaking areas was still in progresa.l Pawir
1ufomant32 recall how the inhabitants of other parts of the
Kitara empire came to their territory to offer tributes and
attend empango festival during the reign of Rukidi and at
least his two immediate sucecessors. Perhaps in an effort to

1. Zachariah Manyura, P.H,T., 17, Kircke, 10/L/71.
2. e.gs Isaya Byewarjo P,H.T., 92, Chopelwor 6/8/71.
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emphasize the "Lwoness" of the dynasty, the Abakama married
at least one Palwo woman and appointed sons born by these
Palwo women as their successors, The names and clans of the
mothers of the Abakama as recorded by Nyakatura in his 'bookl
show that many of the Abakama had Palwo mothers. The tendency
of some Abakama to ignore this tradition as they stayed
longer among the Bantu was to be a source of friction between
the Palwo and the Bantu within the Kitara empire.

It is possible to see the Palwo story of the coming of
Rukidi as an attempt to glorify their past. The story is not
however without evidence to establish a claim to validity.
Pawir is in the northern extreme of the Kitara empire and
if it is agreed that the Babito are Lwo who came to Kitara
from the north, then it is logical to assume that they are
Palwo. Archaeology, however, reveals that the Bacwezi capital
was at one time in Mubende® and other areas but nowhere in
Pawir was mentioned as a capital. This does not invalidate
the possibility that the Bacwezi, like most of the precolo-
nial African rulers especially in Bast African kingdoms,
were shifting their capitals and it might happen to be

1. Nyakatura, ',gm_gg.. also see Appendix for a list of
Abakama's wives and their origin.

2. E. C. Larning, "Excavations at Mubende Hill", Uganda
» Vol. 13, No. 1, 1966.
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somewhere in Pawir at the time the porridge incident occurred.
Archaeology may one day prove this. It is also possible that
when Rukidi came, he did not meet the real Bacwezl but their
agents of authority. But between the time the porridge
incident occurred, and Rukidi's arrival in Bunyoro, the mis~
fortune which compelled the Bacwezi to disappear had already
befallen them and Rukidi simply came to take their place.
The fact that a time lag has been alleged to exist between
the disappearance of the Bacwezi and the appearance of the
Babito strengthens this possibility.>

Nyakatura does not agree that the Babito are Lwo even
though he admits that Rukidi and his men came to Kitara from
the north and stayed with the Palwo before moving south.
But he agrees that the Babito spoke a language different
from that of the Banyoro.z This was probably Lwo., Nyakatura
explains the succession of at least four Palwo Abakama
after Rukidi not in terms of the desire of the Babito to
preserve the Lwo exclusiveness of the Omukamaship but in
terms of the widely recognised aggressive tendencies of the
Palwo. According to Nyakatura, when an Omukama died, there

l. Carole Buchanan: op., cit,
2. John Nyakatura, Hoima, P.H.T. 130, 25/10/71.
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was always a struggle for sm:ceeaion.1 Each of the contest-
ing princes was supported by the inhabitants of the areas
from which their mothers came. The Palwo were able to impose
their nominee on other people because a refusal to grant

the Palwo's request might result in their causing trouble
within the palace. The first four Babito Abakama were buried
in Northern Bunyoro because, according to Nyakatura, their
capitals were situated there.

Despite Nyakatura's view, the balance of learned opinion
is that the Babito were Lwo. While it may be true that the
Palwo were aggressive, it seems unlikely that they were ever
numerous enough to continually control succession to the
throne. At the time of the first four Babito and even in the
later period, the Palwo element within Kitara was small in
relation to the Bantu. Perhaps, something more than a succe~
ssful application of brute force can explain the succession
of the Palwo to the Omukamaship. In any case, the fact that
Rukidi, a Lwo, manipulated the Bacwezi out of the palace and
installed himself as the Omukama, had his capital in Palwo
territory, was buried there, and among his many sons picked
on the one born by a Palwo woman as his successor, is important.
It showed that even if the Palwo used force to impose their

1., TIbid.
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own men as Abakama, the force was only used to ensure that
what seemed a well established procedure of Palwo exclusive
right to the Bunyoro-Kitara throne was not disrupted. It
was an attempt to uphold tradition by force if necessary.
Thus the Palwo managed to displace the Bacwezi and
established themselves as rulers of Kitara empire. Tradition
is silent @bout the events in Kitara for the next one century.
However, the position which the Palwo had acquired enabled
more of their men to expand in Northern Bunyoro in subse-
quent centuries, The nature of this expansion will be dealt
with in the next chapter,
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As mentioned earlier, the migration of the Lwo
into Uganda was in series, As more migrants came, Pawir
expanded, It was as a result of such population increase
that new settlements like Tochi and Kwarong emerged out-
side Bedmot the capital of Pauirl. The process of Pawir's
expansion continued even after the establishment of the
Babito dynasty. More princes of the ruling Dukeno clan
were sent to govern these new settlements. In the period
C.1571~-1625, a famine was said to have broken up the Lwo
settlement in Pawir. This ushered in a new periocd of Lwo
migrations®, It is likely that many people left Pawir for
other places of abode in Northern Bunyoro. However, none
of these new territories emerged as a distinct political
entity until the early eighteenth century. But before that
happened, considerable expansion had been going on else-
where, This expansion led to the emergence of the chiefdom
of Pajao founded by a Madi man called Modo who settled
among the Palwo.

1, See Chapter One p. 14 above.
2., Odongo, op. cit.
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The Chiefdom of Pajac

According to tradition, Modo came from Madilula
where he had been living with his relatives’. He left
because of a dispute with one of his brothers called
Kalele. One day Modo's wife prepared a meal from Obol
(vegetable) for the entire group. Kalele's wife with
her husband's connivance stole the meal and used it to
feed her family. When Modo rebuked Kalele's wife, the
husband supported his wife. A hot exchange of words
eacalated into physical combat in which Kalele lost his
life, Much as the clan disapproved of Kalele's behaviour,
they felt that the offence was not of such magnitude as
to warrant death. Modo's sense of shame would not allow
him to continue living with the group. He left with
members of his household and marched towards Northern
Bunyoro. He crossed the Nile and decided to settle at
Bwera which later became and remained the capital of
Pajao C.1652~79.

Modo was taken by some of the people he met on the
spot to the Omukama of Bunyoro-Kitara. He was well
received. Apart from allowing Modo and his large follow-
ing to settle at Bwera, the Omukama gave him instruments
of authority such as a drum, spear, stool and beads in

1. Zachia Jao, Kinagarana, P.H.T., 75, 15/5/71.
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exactly the same manner as the Bacwezi had treated
Nyawir. One of the Omukama's wives was asked to
accompany Modo end provide him with the necessary
guidance in the day-to-day administration of his territory.
This use of women as political residents appeared to
be a common feature of Kitara's administration, VFor
example, Omukama Nysmutukura Kyebambe III (1786-1835)
sent his daughters Batebe and Mpanja to rule on his
behalf in the area of Kazingo and Mugusul. ¥odo was
strictly forbidden from having any sexual dealings with
the woman. A few years after Modo had established his
authority and extended the chiefdom beyond the immediate
area of Bwera, the Omukama's wife who was the political
resident,became pregnant for Modo. Upon being informed,
the Omukama sent his men to attack and kill Modo and members
of his household. MNodo's body was burnt and the ahses
were thrown into Lake /Albert.

The 'unfeithful' woman was not killed but sold in
her pregnancy as slave to a Langi. It was at Lango
that Kagoro, her son, was born. The prince grew up and
regarded himself as a Langi until one day he came to
know the story of his origin. After confirming the
story from his mother, Kagoro decided to go back to

1, J. Wilson, gp.cit.
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Pajao, He took his dog and spear, crossed the Nile, and
went straight to meet the Omukama of Kitara, Like his
father before him, Kagoro was well received and given the
instruments of authority. This time no Omukema's wife was
asked to instruct him. He returned to Ewera, beat his drum
and the people came to pay homage.

The Pajao traditions about Modo and Kagoro probably
reveal what they were designed to conceal; that Kagoro
and Modo were not related. For one thing, the story of
the coming of Kagoro from Lango does not lend itself to
credibility, It sounds strange that a bastard son of an
unfaithful Omukama's wife such as Kagoro could be so well
received and given aunthority to rule by the same Omukama.
It seems improbable that there was any blood relationship
between Modo and Kagoro. In any case, "Kagoro” in the above
story must have been a mublto, The accession of the Kagoro
mentioned in the above story seems to mark the beginning
of the rule of the Babito in Pajao. Modo and his followers
represented a non~Lwo group who settled in Pajao with
the permission of the Omukama. Giving Modo the instru-
ments of authority and yet appointing his wife as a
political resident to keep an eye on him suggested that
the royal court was not entirely convinced of Modo's
loyalty, Whether adultery was the actual offence is
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immaterial: what 1s clear is that Modo was disobedient
and was executed as punishment, The Omukama then
decided to bring a royal prince to rule, This was not
only to ensure loyalty but also to emphasise Babito pre-
eninence instead of Wadl which Modo represented, It was
then the fiction,; which linked Kagoro with Modo in order
to secure Kagoro's acceptance by ¥odo's followers, who
were predominantly non-ILwo, and non-Bantu, grew up.

This device of establishing an apparently fictitious
relationship linking an old with a new dynasty was very
common in African history, A similar story was used to
legitimise Ndori, the new king of Rwanda in the early
seventeenth centuxy.]' Both the Bahinda and Nkore and
Babito of Kitara sought to create fictitious relation-
ehips with the former Bacwezi rulers.” In Rwanda, Ndori
was supposed t0 be a mysterious son of the former king
Who came from Karagwe.’ Rukidi the founder of the Babito
claimed to have been a son of Wamara again coming from
Bakidi, a distent place,* In Kitara itself c.1652-1679
the king had died childless and a female regent, Mashamba,
took over the throne, The kingmakers finally 'found' one
of the queens who was impregnated by the late king and

l, J. K, Rennie, op, cit., p. 32.
2, Nyakatura, op, eit. p. 51.
3. J. K. Rennie, Mo P. 32,
4. Nyakatura, op, eit,, p. 51.
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crowned her male offepring as Kyebarmbe I,” Nyakaturs admits
that some people were suspiclous that Winyi, the new king,
wvas not the son of the late king, The incident in Bunyoro
took place only shortly before the reign of Kagoro (c¢,1679~
1706) in Pajao., One last point needes to be mede about
Kagorc, He could not have been brought up among the
Langi who did not leave the Otuke ares until c.17802.
However, the reference to Langl probably refere to the
Iseera agriculturists who were living fto the north and
east of the Pajao-Pawir area,

However, by the time of Modo's execution, Pajso had
grown beyond the confines of Bwera. New territories such
as Change, Payuda, Alokolenga, and Kikangara had emerged
as a result of the influx of migrants from the north,

1

All these new territories of Pajaoc were headed by men

vho later became Jaghi. Originally these Jaghi were
probably the pioneer leaders of settlers into the areas,
They, however, recognised the subordinate status of their
territories to Bwera, the capital of Pajao, Though the
expansion of the territories took place during lodo's
life time, he seemed not to have inteérfered in their
internal affairs, especially with regards to succession,
so0 long as they recognised his suzerainty by paying

1,

Ibid.
xﬂmm escript, rere Unlversity, 1972.
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tributes, When one of the Jaghl died, the inhabitants
of that province met to decide who should succeed, after
which he was introduced to Modo, B8uccession was not
strictly hereditary but there was always preference for
the wisest of the late Jamo'-l sons because of his
familiarity with the mammer in which affairs were con-
ducted, Modo had exercised less control over his pro-
vineial Jaghi than was the custom in Pawlr, This was
probably because in Pawir, as the Chiefdom expanded,
members of the Dukeno royal clan were appointed as the
subordinate leaders or sub-chiefs as, for example, in
Tochi and Kwarong, Moreover, in Pawir, the out-lying
settlements were largely groups which had left Bedmot,
the capital, and thus their closer attachment to the
capital ensured their loyalty to the Rwhot. In Pajao, the
outlying settlements were founded by diverse migrant
groups from the north, While they recognised the supre-
macy of Bwera, their attachment to the capital was in-
evitably less, Therefore, they were not as loyal as those
who left Bedmot,

The difference in the relationship between the Rwhot
and Jaghi in Pawir and Pajao continued even after the
death of Nyawir and Modo and became a permanent feature

1, Zachia Jao, Kinagarana, P,H.T. 75, 15/5/71.



-l2 -

of their political life, Because Nyawir appointed the
first Jaghi at Tochi and Kwarang, the practice of Bedmot
exercising control over succession in the provinces was
established, Wherever a Jagho dled in Pawir, the choice
of the successor was made by the Rwhot at Bedmot, though
a son of the dead man was usually chosen, It was not a
question of the inhabitants of the provinces making the
selection as was the case in Pajao under Modo, The
choice was made in the capital and imposed on the provinces,
Kagoro, Modo's successor, was anxious to make himself
acceptable to the people of Pajao., An attempt to take
away powers from the people of the provinces would have
militated against his acceptance, It was wise to leave
things as they were. In spite of that, other factors
led to ecrisis which brought about the fragmentation not
only of Pajao but also of Pawir, These led to the

emergence of other chiefdoms.

The generation following the reign of Kagoro wit-
nessed the emergence in Northern Bunyoro of five chiefdome,
Munyai, Paitwol, Koc, Kisoga, and Kisona, It is very sig-
nificant that all these chiefdomes were established in
the period when there was an almost continuous exodus
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of Palwo out of Pawir into Acholi, This exodus is
believed to have been caused by the search for better
economic and political opportunities. The period wit-
nessed an outbresk of famine in Pawir, Ever since
Nyawir and her people settled there, more Lwo migrants
had come to settle at Pawir, With time, Pawir could not
contain all these people. This over-population coupled
with famine might have produced a population explosion
which resulted in the movement of groups of people out-
side Pawir, One of such groups of people were the Koc,
Koe elders not only say that they lived at nwiz-,:l some
would even say that they lived there during the peiiod
when Nyawir was exercising authority., Others say they
came later, Whenever they arrived in Pawir, it seems
clear that in the early part of the eighteenth century,
the Koc were one of the many groups that left Pawir,
Duliech, the first king the Koc could remember, reigned
1706-1733. Some of those who left Pawir went through
Pusoga o Padhola as recorded by Cohen® and Ogot.>

The chiefdoms of Kisoga and Kisona were founded by two

1, tonio Oyuru, Mutunda Combolola headquarters
p.n.'r. 107, 19/9/71. 3

2. D. '. CQG, e

3. 0801’-' M&.. p. 103.
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princes of the royal Dukeno clan of Pawir, Lochara,

and Aduor respectively, Tradition is silent about the
eircumstances surrounding their foundation, However,

it seems as if Kisoga and Kisona were provinces of

Pawir ruled by Jaghi appointed from Bedmot, and that
during the period ¢,1706~1733 they secured their inde-
pendence from Pawir, This may have been the culmination
of a long process whereby Pawir gradually lost control
over its outlying provinces until these provinces no
longer paid tribute to Pawir and had their secessions
confirmed.! This fits into Craszolara's theory of people
leaving Pawir in search of better political opportunities
such as the one that resulted in the foundation of Umiya
Myimah in Acholi,? Munyel chiefdom was founded by the
Madi-Palwo who left Pajao as a result of congestion.
Paitwol is also said to have come into existence at the

same time and in the same nnnar.z'

1, Even informants at Pawir admit that before Aduor
became king at Kisona, people had been living at
Kisona, They went there from Pawir,

2, Crazgolara, The Lwoo, PART II: Traditions, (Verona
195’4)’ P. 51 -

3, Zachariah Manyuru, Kiroko, P,H.,T, 102, 1/9/71,
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After the establishment of these chiefdoms, important
evente which point to the nature of Palwo political
organisation occurred. Duliech, the Rwhot of Koc who
reigned in ¢,1706-1733, appointed héhi_;me as his successor,
Ochor, a brother of Machinde, contested hie father's
decision end gathered forces to prevent his brother from
ascending the throne, However, with the support of his
father's palace guards, Ochor was able t0 implement
Duliech's deeision,’ In the period ¢.1760-1787, the
gselfish behaviour of Rwhot Olendu during an outbreak of
~famine in Koc, cost him his life, Olendu was said to have
taken his family to an island near River Damanji where
there was an abundance of yam, He made no effort to
cater for the people most of whom were forced to migrate
to the north of the Nile, When he came back, some of his
subjects attacked and killed h:.m.2

In C,1706-1733, Okelo was the Rwhot of Nunyai., On
his death he was succeeded by Okwir, Okwir had only one
son, Wagnor, whom everybody expected to succeed his father,
Okwir however refused to nominate Wagnor, This was be-
cause of Wagnor's questionable character., FHe had several
times stolen milk meant for his father's visitors. In

1, Antonio Oyuru, MWutunda, P.H.T. 107, 16/9/71.
2, TIbia,
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spite of repeated warnings, he refused to desist from
the practice. On one occasion, he stole clothes belong-
ing to Kiija Kidopo a village chief at Maysmda.® FHis
royal blood shielded him from punishment. But his father
took notice of the behaviour, Consequently he disrecommended
Wagnor for the succession, Dalokar Jagho, cne of the men
who had been helping Okwir to collect tributes, was chosen
as the Rwhot,

In Pawir, Ojok Apeche ¢.1679-1706 appointed Jambe

Uyo to succeed him, Oplo, an elder brother of Jambe
who had led many successful raids against neighbouring
territories, saw no justification for his father's decision,
If military valour was an essset to Oplo, his apparently
insatiable appetite for blood and booty which led him to
raid the inhabitants of his own Pawir chiefdom had alienated
him from his people, They were prepared to have anybody
except Opio as king because they feared that Opio's
reign might be one of terror, Opio went to recruit some
of the men with whom he had conducted raids and at first
appeared poised to depose Jambe Uyo, He was however
betrayed by Danduru, one of the men he had recruited but
who shared the anxieties of the populace as to the desir-
ability of having Opio installed as king, The night

1. 'mlll Odlﬂdl Ojok, ‘d-, oh" At’ﬂp .H.To 9“'
Miruka headquarters Dima, 19/8/71.
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before Opio's intended attack, his camp was unexpectedly
attacked by Jambe's forces and many of his goldiers

were killed, Opio escaped death and fled with his
relatives to the North of the Nne.l

Paluo Political Structure

The events in the Palwo chiefdoms especially the
disputes over succession point to the importance which
the Palwo attached to the person and office of the Rwhot,
In order to see the importance attached to the office
of the Rwhot it is pertinent to examine the political
structure of the Palwo, Indeed, the Palwo Rwhot occupied
a position similar to that of the Bunyoro Abakams
in the political hierarchy, This is not surprising
in view of the fact that Palwo political strmucture was
patterned along that of the Bacwezl in Kitara even though
the Lwo had ideas of kingship before their arrivel in
Northern Bunyoro, In effect, the Palwo political structure
was essentially similar to that of the Bacwegi, though
some minor differences existed in detail, It should
be streesed that although the area inhabited by the
Palwo was an integral part of Kitara, until the eighteenth
century, the Palwo enjoyed a congiderable degree of
internal autonomy, The Palwo Rwhodi enjoyed complete

1, Antonio Oyuru, Gombolola headquarters Mutunda, P.H,T.
. 107’ 16 / m ’ ’ ’
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independence of action in their territorlies, Like the
Abakama there was in theory no limit to their powers.
Bven in practice, they had considerable influence, The
Palwo Rwhot held among his people a position of out-
standing privilege and authority, His exalted status
was reflected in the ceremonial surrounding him, He was
addressed by his official title and people of'ten punctuated
their remarks by such flattering terms as "lord of the
s0il", “protector of the people",' He and whatever
pertained to him were described in a special vocsbulary
understood only by the inhabitants of the palace, Court
etiquette demanded that those seeking audience should be
kept waiting for a long time, People comversed with him
through an interpreter, His household was the largest
in the territory and most of the resources used in main-
taining it came from his subjects, Ever since the coming
of the Bacwezi to Nyawir's Court, the Palwo Rwhot had been
in the possession of regaiia including, among other things,
spears, stool, crown, and drums -~ the last regarded as the
most sacred instrument of authority,

Thus the pomp and pageantry which surrounded the
office of the Rwhot made it so attractive that any prince

1., gzachariah Manyuru, P.H.T. 24, Kiroko, 24/4/71.
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with the slightest opportunity attempted to occupy it.
Perhaps one surprising thing about the Rwhotship is the
fact that despite the importance and respect attached
to the office, there were no clearly formulated rules
to govern succession to the post, Nelther primogeniture
nor ultimogeniture was the rule, Any son of the Rwhot
could succeed him, The Rwhodi used to nominate thelr
heirs during their life time, Though preference was
always given to their direct descendants, proof of good
character was usually a pre-requisite for nomination, If
none of the children was good enough; any other person
could be nominated.l

But nomination by the former king was not in itself
a sufficient guarantee of succession, The new king had
to be acceptable to the people and senior chiefs, NMore-
over, he needed sufficient military strength to contain
the activities of his rivals, The careers of Opio in
Pawir and Machinde in Koc illustrate this poi.nt.z

Whoever managed to0 establish himself as a Palwo
Rvhot had a fairly wide horizon within which to exercise
influence, The Rvhot had a say in the appointment of
provineial chiefs in their chiefdoms, The manner in

1, As it happened during Okwir's reign, his only son,
Wagnor, was of guestionable chearacter. Okwir refused
to nominate him and appointed one of his officials
Daloka Jagho see pp., 45 above,

2, 8ee pp. 45-U4b6 smbove,
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vhich the Rvhodi exercised influence in the appointment
of these men however varied, In Pawir, the Jaghl were di-
rectly appointed by the Rwhot of the ehierdo-.l In Pajao,
the local people were left to make thelr choice after which
the man appointed was presented to the Rwhot for conﬁmttm.z
The system which obtained in the other chiefdoms is not
clear, It is however certain that the Rwhodi had a say
in the appointment of Jaghi.

Regardless of the manner in which they were appointed,
the Jaghi ruled their areas in the interest of the Rwhodi,
They collected tributes and adjudicated on petily cases,
Berious cases such as murder and witcheraft were deemed
to exceed their competence. These were referred to the
Rwhodi, The Jaghi also recruited for the Rwhodi, men
who took part in raids conducted on adjoining territorles.

The Jaghi were however not the only group of officials
appointed directly or indirectly by the Rwhodi, Appoint-
ments to offices of the Dadit Barusura (head of the
Rwhot's personal guards) Datigo (the gate keeper) and
Dagobul (keeper of the Rwhot's drum) were made by the
Rwhodi,’ These men and the Jaghi constituted the Rwhot's

1, See Chapter One p. 20 above.
2, Bee Chapter Two pp. L4O-41 above.
3, Zacharish Menyuru, P.H.T. 38, Kiroko, 31/5/71.
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advisory council, They recommended policies and made
decisions on important issues.

The above is the political system which operated
in the Palwo chiefdoms, In spite of the difference in
their point of origin, geographical proximity seemed to
have promoted social and cultural contact as well as
identify of political systems and institutions, It
would even seem that the Palwo chiefdoms operated a
kind of political confederacy, something like the Council
of Rwhodi which Webster® describes for Agago area of
east Acholi in the nineteenth century, It would appear
that the confederacy even decided the issue of succession
disputes within the individusl chiefdoms without reference
to the Omukama of Kitara, TFor example, collective kingly
pressure was applied in the succession disputes which
broke out in Pajao at the death of Kagoro between his
sons Oweny and Chwa,
Pajao Succession Dispute

The succession dispute in Pajao is said to have had
its roots in the disagreement between a hunter farmer
called Ojok and his wife, The couple lived near Kagoro's
palace towards the end of the Rwhot's reign.? Of all the
animals hunted, Ojok's wife had a particular dislike for
1. J. B, Webster, %_MM&, Makerere Seminar

Paper, No, 1, 1 .

2, Okelo Wange, P,H,T, 105, Kirwala, 4/9/71.
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the tortoise and would not taste its meat, One day,
Ojok decided to trick his wife by giving her a mixture
of buffalo and tortoise meat t0 cook, After she had
eaten it, she was told how she had been tricked, Ojok's
wife was very annoyed and decided to revenge against
her husband, It happened that Kagoro was ill at that
time. Ojok's wife went to the palace and accused her
husband of being responsible for the Rwhot's illness,
She alleged that her husband went to Payuda to bring
the head of a baboon which he concealed in the front
of the Rwhot's palace, Among the Palwo, t0 hide a
baboon's head in front of someone's house is perhaps the
greatest manifestation of ill-will, The victim was not
supposed to survive after seven days unless a Kibandwa
(medicine man) discovered and performed the necessary
riml.]' Two days after the unfounded allegation against
Ojok was made, Kagoro died, It was difficult to eradicate
the impression that it was Ojok who had killed the king,

Among Kagoro's many sons were Oweny and Chwa, The
latter was said to have been of consistently bad behaviour,
Consequently, his father sent him to Kikangara so as to
isolate him from the palace, Though he was accorded all
the honour due to a prince in his new residence, Chwa

1 . nid.
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naturally was not favourably disposed towards either
his father or Oweny who was the heir apparent, Chwa
was thus not in the palace when Ojok's wife maliciously
implicated her husband in Kagoro's death, Nine days
after the king's burial rites, Oweny was crowned in
succession to his father, Meanwhile Chwa had not been
informed of what was happening at Bwera., VWhen he heard,
he felt cheated and was not disposed to co-operate with
his brother.

Oweny ascended the throne ¢,1706 with the impression
that Ojok the hunter and farmer was responsible for
the death of his father, Kagoro, He was thus determined
to avenge his father's death, A month after his accession,
he sent his men to attack and kill all members of Ojok's
Dunywen clan, All of those captured were executed,
Oweny did not stop there, He went to the extent of
cutting off the private parts of Ojok and his relatives
and arranging them on small pileces of wood which he dis-
played on both sides of the road leading to his palace,
The people of Pajao did not quarrel with Oweny for taking
revenge against the alleged killer of his father but the
barbaric act of exhibiting their private parts was frowned
upon, Opposition to Oweny increased when Ojok's wife con-
fessed that her allegation against her husband was false,

1, 1Ibid,
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She admitted that she went too far in attempting to
revenge on her husband for having tricked her into
eating tortoise meat. It became clear that Ojok had
not deserved to die, Oweny's act of savage barbarism
was unjustified, The people clamoured for Oweny's
abdication, The 'gods' it seemed, joined the chorus of
protest, There was prolonged drought and famine, The
people interpreted this as a sign of the ged's support
for their demand for Oweny's abdication., Oweny would
not move, The Pajao sent a delegation to Chwa in
Kikengara, asking him to return and replace his brother,
Chwa wae only too happy to agz-n.l Accompanied by
recruite from Kikangara, Chwa entered Bwera and the popu-
lace rose in his support., Oweny was expelled, Chwa
beat the drum and he was hailed by the populace. Co-
incidentally, the period of drought and famine came to
an end, To the people, this was a triumph for truth and
their will,

Oweny, who had taken refuge at Change would not
however accept defeat. A year after Chwa had been on
the throne, he collected some people from Change and
launched an unexpected night attack on Chwa's palace at
Bwera, Chwa was over-powered, When Oweny beat the drum,
the people were unhappy, and the gods again appeared to
have displayed their anger by bringing more drought and

1, Ibid,
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famins, The Jaghi felt compelled to act to rectify
the situation, They decided to summon a meeting of
every adult male in Pajao and invite the Rwhodl of
other chiefdoms to intervene in the dispute. On the
appointed day, the Rwhodi of Munyal, Kisoga, Kisona,
and Pawir were said to have been prount.l The most
senior of the Jaghl, Ochet of Payuda, opened the dis-
cussion, He related all that had been happening,
emphasising Oweny's unprecedented brutality based as
it were on wrong information, and the hostile reaction
of the people, and the gods, The famine, he said, was
caused by Oweny's clinging to the throne despite the
displeasure of the people, the disapproval of the Jaghi
and the anger of the gods. Ochet argued that the only
solution was for Oweny to abdicate., The Rwhodi of Kisoga
and Pawir also Joined in the call for Oweny's abdication,
The call for his abdication was too strang for Oweny to
resist, Ile left the palace and went to live at Change.
His descendants were treated as commoners,

It is perhaps necessary to note the influence of
the 'judicial confederacy' on Oweny. He had not been
unaware of the fact that majority of the people of Pajao
did not want him, He had stayed on the throne in epite
of their opposition, But when it came to a point when

1, TIbia,
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the Rwhodi of other chiefdoms joined in the call for
his abdication, he realised the futility of continued
reeistence, Though the chiefdoms were independent of
each other, and no chiefdom had the right to interfere
in the 'internal affairs' of asnother, it seems that the
other Rwhodl felt that they had a collective right to
intervene once they had been so invited by the Jaghi of
Pajao, The chiefdoms might be politically independent
of one another but there was a great deal of economic
and social interdependence. Pajao for instance depended
for its foodstuffs on neighbouring Munyai which sold grain
and bananas in return for Pajao's fish and meat, Oweny
as Rwhot in Pajao ecould not be sure of a continued supply
of food from Munyai ruled by a Rwhot who had called for
his abdication, In any case, the other Rvhodi would have
nothing to do with Oweny as long as he turned down their
advice to abdicate, A Rwhot thus internally and externally
isolated could not survive. This Oweny realised and he
submitted to the will of the majority.

Another interesting factor in the Pajao succession
dispute was that the Omukama of Kitara had absolutely
nothing to do with it, One of the major reasons for the
existence of the Council of Rwhodi may have been to keep
the royal court of Kitara as much as possible out of the
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affairs in the area inhabited by the Palwo, But the
aftermath of Pajao succession dispute was the Omukama's
appointment of saza chiefs in Northern Bunyoro,

Almost immediately following the Pajao succession
dispute, and in consequence of it, the Omukama of Bunyoro
Kitara moved to strengthen central control over the Palwo
chiefdome, Omukama Winyi III appointed one of his children
to look after the Palwo chiefdoms in hie interest. The
prince, officlally known ae a Saza chief, wes to ensure
the Palwo's payment of tribute and their presence at the
Omukama's court during the empange festival,® Until this
time, the Palwo Rwhodl such ze Uyo in Pawlr and Kagore
in Pajac, had been in the habit of sending tributes to
the Kitara capital on their own initiative, With the
establishment of more chiefdoms in Northern Bunyoro, the
Omukama probably felt the need to appoint someone to
coordinate the activities of these chiefdoms., The prince
appointed was Bikaiju,

Bikaiju was a royal son by a Palwo female slave in the
court of Kitara, It would seem that in the court this
fact was considered enough not to make him a possible
heir to the throne because in tradition mothers of kings
have to be free born, It may be that it was in order to

1, 7Ibia,
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prevent him from being king that he was sent away from
the capital and appointed as Saza Chief in NWorthern
Bunyoro, If it was the intention of the Omukema's court
that Bikaiju's appointment would bring the Palwo more
securely under central contral, they miscaleulated; for
the Palwo looked at Bilmiju as one born by a Palwo woman
and even though his mother was of slave origin, they
believed that he was preferable to someone whose mother
was a Bantu, Therefore, they saw him as a rallying point
for prensing their claim of exclusive control to the throne
of Kitara,

It will be recalled that Rukidi, founder of the
Babito dynasty and his successors, had been in the habit
of appointing princes born by Palwo women as their succes-
sors, Whether this was a mere convention or a clearly-
formulated prineciple governing succession to Xitara in
the Babito period, is 4ifficult to say. The Palwo,
however, regarded it as a well laid down prinecipls, the
violation of which would render the regime illegal and
provide the Palwo with a theoretical justification for
rebellion. This Palwo belief seems jJustified by the
fact that a glance at the mothere of the Abakema as

recorded by Nyuatunl shows that, except when Mashamba

1, Nyakatura, op. eit.
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was a queen regent because the previous king had died
childless, the succession had passed to princes born
of Palwo women, or, if not that, at least from mothers
vhose clans originated north of the Nile that is Lwo
or Yadi who later became Lwo, Omukama Winyi was the
first to brealk this pattern by sppointing Nyaika,
Bikeiju protested at his father's choice and appealed
to Palwo sentiments for support, He found no difficulty
in collecting soldiers to wage & war against the Bantu
"asurper", To the Palwo, Bikaiju was a hero: a symbol
of resistance agsinst an attempted encroachment of their
rights, Bikaiju arrived at the royal court and with
the support of other princes overthrew Nyaika who was
then occupying the throne, Because Bikaiju killed his
brother, Kinyoro sources present him as a usurper and
he is referred to as Kyebambe (usurper) II in the king
1ist of Bunyoro,® The Palwo d0 not regard Bikaiju ae
a usurper since as far as they were concerned, Nyailm
whom he killed had no right to the Omukamaship, The
Palwo therefore called Bikaiju Omukama Bikailju.
Strangely enough, Bikaiju (C,1679-1706) overturned
the principle of Palwo succession desplite the fact that

1, His official title according to Nyakatura was Omukama
Eyebambe IT Bikaiju, He was called Kyebambe meaning
usurper because he killed his brother Nyaika and
usurped the throne; see Nyakatura, op., eit., pp. 32-34.
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he had fought for it, He negated what he professed to
stand for by appointing his son born by a Bantu womsn

to succeed him, Omukama Bikaiju had many wives one of
whom was Kitanire, This woman was engaged in secret
adulterous practices with a man called Katenga, While
on a visit to Kitanire, Katenga injured Bikaiju in an
assasination attempt, The Omukama called on his sons

to avenge the wound inflicted upon him., It was Olimi
Isansa, son of a Bantu woman-lady Mpanga Omganwayo who
killed his father's assailant, In appreciation, Bikaiju
offered Olimi the succession; thereafter, Bikaiju took
poisén and died, He had to do this because Kitanire,

by inflicting a wound on Bikaiju, had shed the Omukama's
blood, According to tradition, any Omukama whose blood
was shed should no longer live after the incident,

An additional reason for Bikalju's choice of Olimi
as his successor, in spite of Olimi's Bantu origin, was
that the state of affairs within Kitara dictated the
necessity for a strong personality to become the Omukama,
Most of the provinces were exhibiting secessionist ten-
dency and Kaggwe had been lost to Buganda during Bikaiju's
veign,’ If the decline was to be halted, a strong man
had to be chosen as Omukama, Olimi seemed to be the

1, Nyakatura, op, cit. p. 53.



strongest of the princes,

It is also poseible to explain Blkaiju's action by
the fact that, for two hundred years prior to his reignm,
the Babito monarehy, originally of foreign Lwo origin,
had sought to mix and identify themselves with two cul-
tures, the Bantu and Nilotie, A good example of this
was the dbilingualism of the court, The Bantu and Lwo
languages were both used in conducting the affairs of
state, The men whom the Bacwezi were said to have left
behind to instruct the Babito in the art of governing
also taught the Babito rulers the Bantu lanange.]‘ of
course Bantu was the medium of expression at the court
during the Bacwezi period, MWoreover, young Babito
princes were sent during their youth to Mwenge to be
essimilated into the Bahuma-Bantu eulturoz ~ a practice
which would not have been neeessary if the court itself
had been the cultural heart of the state, It seems
1ikely that for a long time after the foundation of the
Babito monarchy, the court at lesast was a good deal more
Iwo in culture than it had beecome by C.1679, The Bantu
language and culture had been growing at the expense of

1, Nyakatura, op, ecit., pp. 22-25,

2, G, N. Uzoigwe personal discussions, MNakerere University
April 1972, Uzoigwe claims to have got this information

from Nyakatura and Daudi Kibira.
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Lwo language and culture, The monarchy must of necessity
reflect these changing conditions, Omukema Winyi IIT had
seen the logic of this and recommended Nyaika, a Bantu
prince, as his successor, But Bikaiju upset this plan,
He succeeed in doing this largely for two reasons,
First, his going back to the former precedent of making
the throne exclusive to the Palwo earned him the support
of the Palwo element in Northern Bunyoro, Secondly,
Nyaika being a minor did not have much support not only
from his fellow Bantu princes who envied him, but also
from the generality of the people,

But once on the throne, the political and cultural
pressures forced Bikaiju to adopt his father's policy.
Thus, the story of Olimi avenging the wound inflicted by
Kitanire on his father may have been merely an excuse to
institute a change which was long overdue if ths monarchy
wae to keep pace with the changing conditions within the
state, Whatever cultural and political justification
Bikaiju had for his action, it nevertheless betrayed a
shallow commitment to the principle of Palwo succession
to the Omukamaship, It shows how Bilkaiju in the pursuit
of political ambition - that is, the preservation of the
Kitara empire and the continmued rule of his descendants -
could discard an age-long tradition, It was a classic
example of expedience taking precedence over tradition,
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But, as will be seen in the next chapter, it was also
a very costly expedience.
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CHAPTER III

PALWO EXODUS m! AND ACTIVITIES OUTSIDE

Causes of the Exodus
The primary cause of the exodus was the reaction of

the Palwo against Bilkmiju's 'rape' of cherished tradition,
As has been mentioned in the last chapter, the Palwo
supported Bikaiju's coup~-d-etat largely because they

felt he was a champion of their exclusive right to the
throne of Kitara, But the Palwo were shocked to see

that Bikaiju discarded this principle on political grounds,
He appointed as his successor, Olimi Isansa who was born
by & Bantu woman, The Palwo immediately decided that
0limi Isansa who reigned in C,1733-1760 would not have
things easy., Opposition to him was led by Biakaia who

had been appointéd by Bikaiju ae Saza Chief in Northern
Bunyoro, Their chief ground of opposition was that Olimi had
no right to become the Omukama since he was not born by a
Palwo woman, Biakaia, who probably had been looking
forward to becoming the Omulmma, went to stay in Palwo
chiefdoms and, contrary to what was expected of him as
Saza chief, severed connections with the capital, As a
county chief, he had been expected to increase the

control of the capital over the Palwo chiefdoms., But
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instead, he visited the Rwhodl at Kisoga, Kisona and
Pawir expressing his disappointment at, and disagreement
with, hie father's decision to appoint Olimi as the next
Omukama, Quite naturally, the Palwo of these chiefdoms
shared Biakaia's feelings and supported his decision to
withhold tributes meant for the Omukama, It was a
manifestation of their dissatisfaction with the accession
of 01imi whom they regarded as a mm.l

But it was not an easy task to dethrone Olimi Isansa,
He proved to be a militarily powerful king, He conguered
Nkore and successfully withstood a Buganda assault on
his territory,” Purthermore, he defested the Gisalm
armies which were raiding ae far north as Mwenge and he
extended and consolidated Banyoro influence around the
Lake George area, establishing Babito dynasties in Kitagwenda
and Busongora, He also established Babito dynasties in
Buhweju and Buzinmba, all of which paid tribute to him, He was
described as a hero king,> famous for his military exploite.
Besides, he achieved special popularity among the non-Lwo

1, Just as the Banyoro regarded Bikaiju as a usurper,
the Palwo regarded Olimi Isansa as a usurper because
he was not born by a Palwo woman and s d not there-
fore be the Omukama, Thus they call him Olimi Keyebambe

(usurper) .
2, Nyakatura, op, cit., pp. 63-64.
3. Ibia.
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elements of Kitara empire because he was the first true
all-Bantu king of Kitara, All these made him too formidable
for Palwo rebellions contemplated by Biakaia,

0limi was not unaware of Biakaia's opposition to
his rule, and, indeed took instant steps to ecrush 1%,
When in addition to withholding taxes, Biakaia failed to
arrange for the presence of the Palwo at the Omukama's
court during the empango festival, Olimi attacked the
Palwo, The principal motive was to kill Biakaia but
since the Palwo connived at Biakaia's insolence, they
suffered as well, The inhabitants of Kisona and Pawir,
where Biakaia pitched his tent suffered most,' Biakaia
as well as many Palwo was killed, A large number of
those who managed to survive left Northern Bunyoro, in
an escape from "Kyebambe's persecution," Olimi Kyebambe's
persecution thus set in motion large numbers of Palwo
refugees moving in all directions from Northern Bunyoro
for safety,

The Palwo Exodus

The exodus of the Palwo to the north and south east
of northern Bunyoro has been dated to the period C.1679-
1760, Webster has argued that the exodus was broken into

1, Isaya Byewarjo, P,H,T. 93, Chopelwor, 18/8/71.
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two parts, that it ceased moving into the Agago area
during the Nyamdere famine of the 1720's but began again
shortly after, contiming until about 1730.1 A number of
political upheavals in Northern Bunyoro as well as the
unsettling and persecution resulting from Biskaia's rebellion
against 0limi Kyebambe were responsible for this exodus,
There was the succession dispute between Uyo and Oplo
(¢41679-1706),2 01ini Kyebambe's persecution in c,1733-
1760° and ¥achinde's struggle agaimst Ochor in c¢.1733-1760.%
Apart from political upheavals, economic and social
unrest also forced many of the Palwo to migrate north of
the Nile, The Palwo's eastern neighbours, the Langi,
were in the habdbit of raiding the Palwo, The inhabitants
of Koc kingdom in particular were several times subjected
to looting and kidnapping, Finding life insecure, some
left Northern Bunyoro to migrate nmﬂwards.s
Palwo elders give the impression of their being the
most unfortunate group of people in Uganda, It is their
view that they have had more than their fair share of

1, J. B, Webster, M

972. (Typescript).
2, 8ee Chapter IT pp. 46-47 above,
3. fee Chapter III p, 66 above.
L. See Chapter II p, 45 above,

5., Antonio Onyuru, P,H,T, 106, Gombolola headquarters,
Wutunda, 15/9/71.
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inexplicable natural disasters in the form of droughts,
famines and epidemics,’ The izhsbitents of Pajso recall
that during Kagovre's reign (¢.1679-1706) there was a severe
fenine during which the waters of the Nile dried up,” In
Pawir, during Jembe Uyo's reign also (¢,1679-1706) the
last four months of the year were said to be periods of
excessive sunshine resulting in a shortage of foodstuffo.”
The reaction to these famines was emigration out of the
Palwo chiefdone,

Bast Acholi informante mainly sseribe the coming of
the Falvo to "0ilsbwsmi's" persecution,' This is, however,
understendeble in thet the persecution was the most specta~
cular of the evente leading to Palwo migration north of
the Nile. As hrs boen nentioned oax-:l.im.-.5 other events were
also responsible for the exodus of the Palwo, For instance,
Maura Garry has identified five groups of Palwo arriving in
Pajule between 1700 and 1800.6 It is certain that not all
of them came as a result of 0Olimi Kyembambe's persecution,

1, Yor example, see Ibid,

2, PH,T, = 75y Zachia Jao, Kinagavena 15,7.71.

3¢ PN, - 93, as v cited, These incligents
anong otheve SoniTivUted o & Geslins in tion
of the Palwo, For details on Palwo popula history
see Ade. Adefuye, .

L. J. B, Webster, Acholl Higstorieal Texts.
5. Bee pp. 67-68 of this chapter,
6. MNaura Garry, 9p. cit.
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Moreover, Crazzolara’s story of Olimi lsaving Fawir for
the north after having found thet all positions of authority
were held by others® is an instance of migration out ef
Northern Bunyoro in reaction to the unfavourable political
situation within the Falyo chiefdoms, Evidence from Lire-
Palwo says that Omongo, Acer and Atira were mdo;t’-
poseibly & corruption of Opio - who lost the contest for
the throne in Pawir against Jambe Uyo (c,1679-1706),

The activities of all these Palwo who fOr one reason
or the other were compelled to leave Northern Bunyoro was an
important development in the political history of the areas
to whieh they moved, In West Acholi, it has been discovered
that groups of "slwo who moved there after losing the dynastic
struggle in Bunyoro introduced new concepts of government
to the region.” In Pajule, Lagovo Aboga and Owiny Oput
were Palwo refugees whose ideas and personalities encouraged
the formation of larger politicel ecntitdes.” In Rast Acholi,
the presence of the Palwo contributed to the emergence,
expension, snd sometimes maintemance of kingdoms,’ Tn Alur,

1, Crazgolara, The Lwoo Tart II: Treditiong, p. 312,

2. J, B, Vebster, Wmm
Makerere Seminar Paper, NO, J, .

3. Ronald Atkingon, State
Hestern Acholl,

Le Maura Garry, Mmm u.._qn
5. J. B, Vebster, Acholi Historieal Texts, Nos. 14, 17, 74
and .1.
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the coming of the Palwo contributed to the enlargement
of Lwo chiefdoms and to the assimilation of non-Lwo

2 In Busoga, groups of Lwo who left Pawir were

elements,
sald to have assumed a governing position among the Bantu
speaking groups with whom they came in contact.

The Palwo came to these areas mainly because of thelr
defeat in a struggle for succession to Kitara throne, The
office of the king in Kitara was of such importance that
any prince with the slightest poesibility of success
utteupfed t0 occupy it., And since the successful candidate
wielded a considerable amount of prestige, if not power,
the unsuccessful candidate (if still alive) and all those
allied to him usually escaped to other places for safety.
The Palwo left their territory after having lost a struggle
for succession, It is not therefore surprising that their
activities in almost all the places they migrated to had
to do with kingship, the formation of political entities,
and the establishment of dominant groups -~ an attempt, it
seemed, t0 make up for what they had lost in Bunyoro.

The Palwo attempted to achieve that aim in their new
places of abode by introducing concepts derived from their
experience in the Kitara empire. Briefly, the essentials
of the concepts introduced by the Palwo were: the institution
of the royal drum as a symbol of power and authority, and as

1, A. Y, Southhall, "Alur Tradition and Its Historical
8ignificance”, Uganda Journal, Vol. 18, No. 1, 1954,
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an instrument of rain making, The drum gave prestige to the
chief, With the prestige surrounding his person, the chief
was able to form large chiefdoms and incorporate surrounding
smaller ones into his own., But he allowed the smaller chiefdoms
a large measure of autonomy, This provided for the expansion
of the existing Lwo states - something quite reminiscent of
the activities of the Bacwezi among the pre-Bacwezi chiefdonms,
There was also the introduction of tribute paying, consisting
of part of each game animal caught as a proof of acknowledge-
ment of chief's suzerainty, Finally, the Palwo introduced

a system of succession, This was one in which the Rwhot

was allowed to nominate his sucecessor, But disputes over

the legality of the nominations caused a fragmentation of
political units, The aggrieved party broke away to form

his own kingdom,

However, it must not be taken that Palwo impact was
uniform throughout their new places of refuge, In virtually
all the places to where the Palwo migrated, they were
preceded by non-Bantuized Lwo-speaking groups, The re-
action of the earlier Lwo settlers to the Palwo immigrants
varied, Among the Alur, west of the Nile River, the Palwo
were elither not successful in establishing chiefdoms or
failed to maintain them after their initial establishment,

In these areas, it seems that the Palwo ideas of drums to
enhance the Rwhot's status and larger political units based
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on incorporation of emaller chiefdoms wae taken over
by the earlier Lwo chiefs end used to thelr own advan-
tage, Among the Alur, it scens that the Palwo found
open honu{w. Thus, Acer, the only state they established,
was finally teken over by a prince of Okoro, a state esta-
blieshed earlior, Detween the Mile and the Aswa, Palwo-
ruled chiefdoms weres not noticeably successful, However,
Payera, adopting the Palwo imovstions, began a rapid and
spectacular expansion, In Pajule, the sntitlies over which
the Palwo managed to establish themselves were not large
encugh to warrant the term Xingdoms, After the outbreak
of the Laparanal Famine, Liing, a Palwo adventurer, might
have succeaded in csteblishing s kingdom had 1t not been
for opposition from hic fellow Talwo, In the esst, Omongo
succeeded in establieching hiumself over some menbers of the
Agengo protective allisnce; dbut he soom met with opposition
from the established Tira kmmm.l The backbone of
Lira's resistance was, however, broken by the outdbreak of
the Laperanat Famine, In Busogs, the Palwo displaced the
former Mlors and established their mle over Bantu speak-
ing peoples.

One major obstacle in the way of greater success
by the Palwo migrants was the lack of unity, It seems
that the Palwo behaved like Pabito princes, quarrelling
among themselves, dissipating their energies vhich often

1, J,. B, Vebster, Lipa ralwo: An Expanding Acholi State



&7 s
resulted in the fragmentation of the political entitiles,
Kingdoms of Labongo, Parabongo and Kwong were all set
up by a father and two sons, This fragmentation occurred
in the first generation when the influence of the Palwo
was still strong, This seems to justify Webster's observation
that when other Lwo groups adopted the Palwo ideology they
were more successful than the Palwo themselves in its
mlmnution.l of all the major Lwo kingdoms, namely
Payera, Patiko, Atyak, Padibe, Pabbo, Koec, Pajule and Lira-
Palwo, only two of them had Palwo royal families, Pajule
had a very tenuous unity because five Palwo groups were
vying for power,

However, in all the places where the Palwo managed
to establish fairly centralized government over largely
acephalous kinship-based communities by introducing con-
cepts derived from their contact with the Bacwezi, the
pattern conformed to what obtained in the Palwo chiefdoms -
entities presided over by kings who had a considerable amount
of pomp, pageantry, and adulation, but very little political
power, The king ruled on the advice of councils, the member-
ship of which he had little way of influencing and the recom-
mendations of which he could not afford to reject outright,
The impact of this political system was most successful in
West Acholi,

1, J. B, Webster, Migration and Sgttlement in the Inter-
lacustrine Region
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Palwo Activities, West of the Aswa (West Acholi)

The period 1680-1780, when the Palwo arrived and
introduced the new concepts, witnessed a revolution in
the political history of mesent-day west Acholi, The
spread of the concepts led not only to the foundation
of twenty to twenty-five independent small kingdams but
also to the fusion of various ethnic groups that make
up the west Acholi people,

In order to appreciate the impact of Palwo activi-
ties in this area, 1t is necessary to look at the situation
there before the arrival of the Palwo, There were three
main ethnic and linguistic groups west of the Aswa River:
the Paranilotes, Lwo and Madi, The earliest of them were
the Paranilotes who are believed to have arrived some time
arcund ¢,1490-1571.1 At one time, the Paranilotes spread
over a large part of present-day west Acholl and even to
West Nile, Next were the Lwo who began to enter west and
east of the Aswa River at the beginning of the fifteenth
century, The earliest were those who founded the kingdom
of Padibo.z Another group moved in from modern Pakwach,

A third branch of the Lwo came through Karamoja and entered
present-day Acholi in the eighteenth century, The third

1. R, Atkinson, op, cit,

2, Paul Owot, Padibe During the Aconya, Makerere Graduating
Essay, 1970,
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pre-rFalwo group west of the Aswa River were the Madi
who came out of Boar and moved into west Acholl in the
period 0.1600-1800.1

The three groups were organized in small scale poli-
tical units which could be described as embryonic chief-
doms, Both the Madl and the Lwo, for instance, had royal
clans and hereditary chiefs with regalia, Clans composed
of people formerly of different ethnic origins had emerged.
There were also extra-clan groupings headed by one of the
clan heads of the grouping which co-operated for purposes
of Jjoint defence, But, by and large, the three groups
struggled to preserve their cultural and linguistic dif-
ferences, There was no questlon of a common language.

This was the situation in ¢,1680 when groups of Palwo
started arriving from Bunyoro, A small Palwo group under
the leadership of a man named Alero and who probably had
his relatives in south-west Acholl, was the flirst to
introduce the new concepts into the territories west of
the Aswa River, Coming with a drum, he introduced the
concept of tribute paying and royal drums to the four Lwo-
speaking groups led by Atiko, Aylra, Acwe and Aboma, As from
the late seventeenth century, royal drums and itribute began
to feature in their traditions, Alero emerged as king over

0.

1., J. B, Webster, Migration and Settlement in the Inter-
lacustrine Region
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these territories and the former leaders ruled their areas
on his behalf paying tributes to him, The PALERO Kingdom
which emerged consisted of the territories formerly ruled
by the men with whom Alero came in contact, Alero had
therefore brought four territories hitherto independently
administered under one central administration.

In explaining why the Lwo-speaking groups were the
first to adopt the new concepts, Atkinson  mentioned the
Lwo language as providing important common ground between
the introducers and recipients of the concepts. Another
reason was "proximity of and a sequence of contacts among
most of the Lwo-speaking groups west of the Aswa at the
time of the initial introduction of the new political
uen."z

The Lwo were the first but not the only group to
adopt the new concepts, The first non-Lwo group to be
introduced to the new ideas was the small Paranilotic
Palaro grcnp.3 Here there was an element of force invol-
ved, Before 1720, an army came from Northern Bunyoro to
fight against the Palaro group, Palaro was defeated, its
leader Obura was killed and his son was taken to Bunyoro
by the victors, There he was instructed in the art of
government, He returned and became the Rwhot of Palaro,

1, Atkinson, op,cit. p. 1,
2, 7Ibia.
3. Ibia,
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where he ran his administration in line with the ideas
learned from Bunyoro, In 1706-1733, a wandering rainmaker
from Palwo chiefdoms waes said to have brought secrets of
ritugl and government to the leader of the then small Pabo
group of Madi origin in the Mount Xilak area, From there,
the idea spread t0 the neighbouring and related Lamogi,

An outbreak of famine in the easternmost part of
west Acholi and a consequent complex series of migrations
led to the introduction of the conecepts into Puranga, Koro
and Bolo.]‘ The famine started in the middle of the eighteenth
century and a large number of people at first moved from
the east to the west of the Aswa, EREventually, large
nunbers of people moved into eastem Acholl near the famous
mountains of Labwor and Otuke, The land resources of these
areas were overcrowded by the coming of the migrents and
some Lwo-speaking groups, namely Kolo and Bolo, moved to
the confluence of the Aswa and Agago Rivers vhere they met
the Koc vho introduced the new concepts to them, The Koe
group are believed to be those who left the Palwo chiefdom
of ¥oec in the late seventeenth century., They came to
present-day Acholi with a royal drum and other regalia,

They settled at the confluence of the Aswa and Agago and
established their mle over the Tseers group they met there.
When the Puranga, Xoro snd Rolo came, the ¥oec spread the

1, TIbid.
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concepts to them and assimilated them into their chief-
dom, By 1760, Palwo concepts of government had been
adopted by twenty groups in present-day west Ad:on."

As mentioned earlier, the carriers of these ideas
were the Lwo groups who were usually the firat to come
into contact with the concepts, But the question arises
as to why people gave up their independent existence as
clans to become part of an alien Palwo-introduced system?
The answer lies in the fact that the circumstances in
which most of the groups found themselves at the time
showed that there was more to gain in doing so, In some
cases, for example Puranga and Koro, those who joined were
refugees fleeing from human or natural enemies, They saw
their only hope in aligning themselves with a larger group
such as a kingdom, The Kingdom could then protect them,
share food with them, and give them the advantages of
wider social and economic co-operation, There 1s also
the fact that even in peace time, it was advantageous to
join extra clan groupings, FEcanomic interdependence made
life more comfortable and indirectly guaranteed protection
against external attacks., Moreover, the Palwo refugees
had something extra to offer to the groups with whom they
came across, The regalia, royal drums, and powers of

1, 1Ibia.
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rainmamal which some of them brought from Bunyoro
tended to make their hosts look at the Palwo with an
aura of respect and fear, They thus joined the kingdoms
established by the Palwo,

The incorporation of clans west of the Aswa into
kingdoms marked the beginning of present-day west Acholi,
Clans no longer lived separate lives nor retained their
original languages, There was a fusion of peoples,
Custom and Culture mingled, producing s synthesis which
is today regarded as typical of West Acholi, There
was also the emergence of Lwo as the dominant language.
There are three possible explanations for this, In the
first place, the political system that became established
in the area was introduced by Iwo-speaking Palwo and
adopted first by other Lwo speakers, In the second
place, Lwo was by far the easiest to learn of the three
languages spoken in the area (Madi end Iseera inclusive).
Once the three linguistic groups were brought under one
kingdom Lwo was the natural choice out of the three
languages, Finally, since there had been no overwhelmingly
dominant language, Lwo was sble to supplant all others,

1, For example, Lagoro Aboga., See pp, 86-87 below,
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In West Acholi, it seemed that the Palwo succeeded
in getting their concepts adopted, not because of their
acknowledged superiority to the people they came across,
but becaunse conditions in the west of the Aswa at the
time of their arrival favoured the adoption and spread
of thiiz- concepts, Perhaps the most important contribution
of the Palwo to west Acholi history was the establishment
of kingdoms, It should, however, be remembered that in
the pre-Palwo epoch there had been some extra-clan groupings
presided over by one of the clan heads, The existence
of these groupings made the adoption and spread of the
concepts easier. Some of the leaders of these groupings,
like Patiko and Paboo, adopted the concepts and their
groupings became the core of the new kingdoms, In west
of the Aswa, as has been seen, the presence of Lwo elements
facilitated the spread of the concepts t0 non-Two speaking
peoples, The disloeation caused by famine compelled
many clans %0 join the kingdoms, A number of reasons
therefore contributed to the success of the Palwo in
west Acholi, It is now necessary t0 examine the degree
of their success in other areas like Alur, Busoga, Pajule,
and Agago.

Palwo in Alur
Among the Alur, the Palwo did not establish kingdoms,
Their presence, however, contributed to the enlargement and
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conﬁolidation of chiefdoms already established by the
Lwo communities, The Alur are presently classified as
Nilotes because the Lwo have assimilated other groups
of people who had earlier on settled in the territory.
Among the people absorbed were Kebu, Madi, Lendu, and
Bendi, According to Southhall, the Lwo were the first
to arrive in the area, They were closely followed by
the ¥adi, also from the north buf intermingled with the
I.wo.1 The Kebu came later and divided into a number of
independently moving groups some of which mingled with
the Lendu, some with the Madi and others with the Lwo,
After the Babito had taken over in Kitara, some Lwo moved
in, after which more Madi arrived., In ¢,1571-1598 one
Nyipur, a Lwo, establighed the chiefdom of Attnk.z He
was succeeded by his son, Umer, In the same generation
a branch of the Lwo founded the chiefdom of Panyikanyo,
south of Panylumur, after assimilating the diverse elements
hitherto living in the area,

In the late seventeenth century, the Palwo started
nz'x'i.vins.5 Their leader was Acer. He was sald to have
ectablished a chiefdom which was constantly at war with
its neighbours, Ultimately, the Palwo chief was replaced

; Sonthhall, 02‘0; Ec
2, Ibid,
3. 7Tvia,
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by a prince from the royal house of Attyal-Okoro founded
by Nyipir. Another Palwo group called the Pamera came
and accepted the leadership of the Paminya, a Lwo group
who had earlier on established a chiefdom in that area,
The Parombo group also settled in Uluru chiefdom founded
by the ILwo and even acted as agents for the chiefs of
Ukuru in supplying them with salt fram Panyimr.l Thus,
in Alur, contrary to what happened east of the lNile, the
Palwo hastened the process of assimilation of the non-Lwo
groups and consolidated the already existing Lwo chiefdoms,

The Palwo in Agago

Agago is enother srea to whickh the Palwo migrated.
Pefore their errivel in Agego, the area consisted of small
ethnic groupe, each with its own culture &nd language and
living in isolated pockets in the mountains,’ Among these
were the Abunge who lived by trapping small animasls, the
Taa Gule who probebly originated from the Agoro mountains,
and Pader who are also believed to be original inhabitants
of Agoro, The settlement of Agago was affected by out-
bresks of famine, aftermaths of which were the influx of
gettlers from the west, Two Nadl groups, Madil Oduny and
N¥adi Kiloc, dispersed at Pubungu Pakwac and came to Agoro
apparently fleeing from some catastrophe, ¥From Xilak the
Lukor and Laemogi moved out in the periocd ¢,1625-1652 and

1, 1Inid,
2, J. B. Webster, The Peopling of Agago, P. 3.
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settled in the Ogili mountains near the modern Wol area,
Amyel island and Labwor Otuke also appeared to have
received immigrants at this period, In the same gene-~
ration, the Lakwar and Paranga, both originating from
Nyakwal, settled at Amyel and Labwor Otuke respectively.
They provided leadership in their respective areas, Also
in the same generation, Ajali's first dynasty - the Loka -
moved southward in the direction of Amyel island, The
Lango Tiro came from the north and moved south towards
Amyel, The agglomeration of ethnic groups at Amyel island
presented an explosive situation which led to conflict
between the Lango Tiro and the Madi, The latter were
exterminated as a group, The few who escaped did so by
amalgamating with other clans and hiding their 1dent1t1.1

The inter-ethnic mixture at Amyel dictated the need
for a more centralized and stronger leaderkhip than the
one hitherto provided by the Lakwar, The recently victorious
Lango Tiro and the Lakwar formed a coalition, with the
former as the senior partners, becoming the Kal while the
latter were accorded a secondary, but aristoeratic position
within the new kingdom of Patongo.

G S et a
Esstern Acholi, Wakerere Sem ver, 1970,
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The pre-Palwo epoch in Agago thus had much in
common with that of west of the Aswa -~ small groups
sometimes struggling to maintain their identity, though
famine sometimes forced them to disperse. They could
be described as segmentary in so far as no elaborately
centralized political structure existed, but they were
not completely averse to the idea of centralization, In
fact, as the activities of the Lakwar and Lango Tiro
lhmd.l some of these groups possessed what could be
called "outlines of centralized government" before the
Palwo came, But with the coming of the Palwo, the cent-
ralization became more pronounced.

When Omol, a Palwo refugee, arrived at the eastern
side of the Ogili mountains, he met the Taa~Gule and the
Atura each governing itself separately with its own rain-
maker, Omol negotiated with Acut, the leader of the Taa-
Gule, Acut accepted Omol's leadership and, in turn, Omol
accepted Acut as his chief priest, After some initlal
hesitation on the part of the Atura, they also accepted
Omol's leadership but kept their own Jok while the Jok
of the Tai—@ule became the national Jok, Webster explains
Omol's success in terms of the protection which the new
kingdom guaranteed.> "Another reason", "seems to be the

1. J. B. VWebster, The Peopling of Agago.

2, J, B, Webster, Formation vel
Bastern Acholl, p.
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complimentary nature of the economies of the two scm:.m;ioa".:L
The indigenous people were cattle rearers while Omol and
his people were agriculturalists, Omol was said to have
travelled around, encouraging people to engage in agriculture
by distributing seeds and hoes, Devotion to agriculture
alongside cattle rearing produced a stable, prosperous
community which attracted other migrants,

Among thosé who came to join Paimol kingdom during
Omol's lifetime were clans of Lwo, Jie and Karimojong
origin, Some of them were like some groups in west Acholi,
compelled to Join in times of famine and hence had very
little bargaining power. They had no representation in
the political system, They were not represented in the
Lukwena, the Palwo-type king's council,

In Agago area, there was a man, Rwot Atiko of Patiko,
who applied the Palwo ideology to his small chiefdom, He
had been influenced by a Palwo man, named Alero, Under
Atiko, there was a great expansion of Patiko, In ¢,1679-
1706 Rwot Lapono, a Madi, after separating from Atiko at
Got Goma, brought two elan nm into one political
entity and thus set the stage for the emergence of the
Lira kingdom based on Palwo 1dcology.2 Lapono's son, Lira,
continued the process of state-building and many clans,

1. nid.
2, J. B, Webster, Lira oli St



escaping from the hard conditions created by the out-

break of the Laparanat Famine, joined the kingdom, By

the time of Lira's death, his kingiom comprised thirteen
clans, There was also a grouping of clans at Nount Lapono
headed by the Paican royal clan which had its origin at
Mount Ajulu, They were probably originally Lwo-speaking
Madi, A third group of clans also existed at Agago., In
reaction to the anarchy created by the Nyamdere Famine

gome of these clans formed the Agengo defensive or protective
alliance which posted lock-outs for warning against attack,
Thus, the ground was already prepared for Omongo, the

Palwo man, whose activities shaped the course of history

in these areas, He did not have to start dbuilding en
empire over segmentary peoples., By the time Omongo came
the political entities headed by Lira and Paican in Agago
had grown enough to be described as kingdoms by nb-hr.l
In spite of that, the coming of the Palwo-man, Omongo had

a great impact on the history of the area, Omongo of
Panydwongo clan was said to have left Bunyoro because the
Omukama began a policy of suppression of the small Lwo
states in Pawir which had hitherto been allowed to funection
with only a minimel recognition of the Omukama's suzerainty,
Omongo or his father might have been one of those who backed

1, 7Ibia,
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Biakaia against Olimi and had to flee in omder to
escape persecution, When he arrived at Lapono with his
brother Acer, the Aburu and Amenda clans of the Agengo
protective alliance invited Omongo to be their ki.na.l

The decigion to invite Omongo to head the alliance
night heve been motivated by some defensive considerations,
At the time of the arrival of Omongo, the clans had the
shadow of an external attack hanging on them, The need
for a joint protection againgt external attack has been
the primary consideration which brought the protective
alliance into being, Omongo who was probably a member
of one of the Palwo royal family might have been deemed
to have something extra to offer, poessibly a royal drum,
and other regalia, powers of rainmaking and perhaps the
ability to protect them ageinst external enemies, What-
ever might have been the primary consideration of members
of the Agengo protective alliasnce, Omongo's emergence
as king over the various hitherto independent clans
represents a revolution in the political history of the
area, At no time had so many clans come under one such
single unified authority.

This incident should not be taken to mean that every-
where the Palwo went, they were invited to become rulers,

i1, J, B, vebster, Lira Palwo: An Expanding Acholi State
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There were cases, even wvhere the Palwo establiched kingdoms,
when some groups refused to join but were later forced to
45 e0 by a senee of insecurity arising from famine, This
wag why Paican, for instance, joined Cmongo. The Lira
kingdom was another example, The people of Lira refused to
be incorporated into Omongo's kingdom snd scorned their
neipghbours for having accepted him, The recistance of this
Lwo group t0 Palwo domination was however broken by the
of the Laparanat famine during which the c¢lans, the Lakwena
and the king fled in aifferent directions to seek sustenance.
This ultimately led to the breskdown of the administrative
structure, In the disturbed conditions, efficiency at
fighting and procurement of food beecane the criterion for
lesdership, When the famine was over, and the clans returned
to the east, the king decided not to go dack to Lapono mountain,
Some of his people stayed with him while others returned to
Lapono, 3

Weanvhile, Okidi ti wadit, had become the Rwhot at
Lapono, 4&s those who refused t0 stay with the Lira king
csme to Join him, Okidi found himself ruling an even
larger area then Omongo, He adjusted the sdministrative
system to accommodate the incoming groups, He appointed
Amot of the Peimut clan as Jagho over the Lapono-Katet area,
Hore Lira clems left their king and came to join Okidl ¢1
Nadit, A little while after the end of the famine, Okidi
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succeeded in reducing Lira to half of ite former size, Yuch
as the Taparemat Famine Aisloeated Lirs, Okidi's ability
to take advantapge of the situation also contributed to the
enlargement of the kinpdom, Added to this was the fact
that in the course of their flight, the Lira lost their royal
drum, Thie accounted for the failure of the Lira Rwhodi to
save the kingdom from incorporation into Lira-Palwo,

The Lira~Palwo kingdom thus grew from strength to
strength., By the time Ryemarot was Rwhot, the problems
of establishment and consolidation appeared to have been
solved, Ryemarot's paramountey deriving from the size and
stability of his territory, had been recogniged by the
neighbouring chiefdoms, As the group of kingdoms in the
Agapo area were being threatened by external aggression
and the individusl kingdoms were not powerful to resist
invaders, the nesd arose for a pooling of military resources,
A council of Rwhodi to plan joint defence came into being
and Ryemarot was elected the mh-nn."

Thus, by a eombination of politieal ingenuity and
favourable circumstance, the Palwo managed to establish
thenmselves ae the dynasties of some east Acholi kingdoms,
They cannot be deseribed as founders in that kingdoms had
already existed before they arrived, They, however, built

1. J. B, webeter, The Peopling of Agago, P. 8.
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on what they found. Two earlier kingdoms,; Paleam, and
Iire were incorporated as sub-chieftainshipe within a
larger kingdom; the segmentary Agéngo clsns had been drought
directly under the Palwo Rwhot and so many clans had joined
the two new Jaghoships - Kako and Kaket whiech had been
ereated, Lira-Palwo was probably the kingdom vhich demonstrated
the success of the Palwo ideology in Palwo hands better than
any other, By 1910 when the British began to set up their
adninietration, Lire-Palwo was the largest state south of
Padibe and east of Puranga,
Zhe Palwo in Pajule

Attempts of the Palwo to establish themselves as
kings in Pajule (central Acholi) met with failure, The
pre-Falwo Fajule consisted of several clans, the oldest
of which was the Palenga, They claim to have been original
inhabitants of the Okaka mountains, while some clans aseribe
a Lango origin to them, /Among the clans that are known
to have migrated into Pajule, the earliest were Pajol,
Pajas and Ogolo clans coming from the east in e,1679-1706,>
The first two were probably Madi while Ogole came from
Paimol, The three clans lived together as good neighbours,
each maintaining its independence and identity., In the
following generation Lukeel and Gem clans came from the
airection of Lango, Thie generation also witnessed the

1, Maura Garry, op.cit., p. L,
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arrival of the Madi clans of Boyo and Lukwor in Puranga,
A small clan from Lango later known as Lukwor Faiwol joined
the Tukwor and became their dong (servents), Thus, before
the Palwo came, the Pajol, Pajaa and Ogole formed a cdn-
federated grouping of clans, while Lukwor, Bolo and Lukwor
Paiwol formed another, They co-operated for the purpose of
defence, Otherwise, the clans maintained their identity and
had no overall central authority to administer th-.l

It was in ¢.1706-1733 that the Palwo started arriving
in Pajule,? Some of them claimed they had fled from
Cilabwani's pc.ramim while others migrated fro social
and economic remsons, for example the search for a better
place of settlement, It seems clear that Owiny Opok led
the group whish fled from Xyebambe's persecution, On his
arrival at Wount Ogalm, the Palengo, Tokaci and Painata
accepted Owiny as king, Another Palwo man called Lagoro
Aboga came with regalia from Northern Bunyoro, and suceeded
in establishing himself over the Opyang, a Lwo group,
He then went back to Punyoro to get his father's blessing
on his kingdom, He¢ died while in Bunyoro and Owiny Opok
took over his regalia, This proved distateful to the
Oryang group who made a forceful attempt to recapture the
regalia, Though Owiny's group was defeated in the fight,

1, Ibia,
2, Inia, Pe 80



he still managed to keep the regalia, It is, however, not
surprising that he failed to win the allegiance of the
people of Oryang, TFrom what has been described sbove, it

is difficult to regard Owiny or Lagoro as state-builders

in the sense that Alero, Omongo and Omol were, Lagoro only
established himself over a group of clans whils Owiny's
'kingdom to be' never got off the ground, Had Owiny succeeded
in adding lagoro's territory to his, probsbly a semblance

of a kingdom might have emerged, The elghteenth century

thus ended with the Palwo doing little to alter the politieal
structure of Pajule,

The outdreak of famine in the middle of the nineteenth
century tended to create a situation conduecive to the uttbua-‘
ment of kingdoms by the Palwe, The fanine forced the Pajule
to flee to Abam, the confluence of the Pagor and Aswa rivers,
mainly to escape from the onslaught of incoming famine-stricken
Lango Dyang, At Abam, where the clans were closely settled,
Liing Paco Otto, a Palwo man, emerged as the dominant figure
and appeared to have established a good reputation for
leaderchip,’ Though he was a leper, he mamaged to secure
the services of an able warrior, Ojuku, who successfully
led the Pajule in wars againet Padibe, Pajok and Labongo,

1. Ibid., p. 10. r‘§
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Moreover the Oryang were mystically instructed by
Lagoro to recognise the authority of Liing, This added
to Liing's territory snd gave a sort of religious and
nystieal justificstion for his political authority.® Tt
was this famine as well as Lagoro which contributed to
the expansion of Liing's euthority,

In spite of theee events, it seemed as if the Palwo
were not destined to succeed in Pajule, Just as Liing
was sbout to reach the highest point of his prestige his
wife deserted him, teking awny his dasughters and the heir
to the throne.” Lilng married another wife but she could
not provide a male heir, Another group of Lwo descendants
of Cunmor from the house of Labongo attempted to take
advantage of Liing's lack of en heir to secure the leadership
by taking the drum, Surprisingly enocugh, the majority of
the Palwo supported Labongo's action, This was because of
Liing's physical deformity, Thus, after the death of
Labongo, Okiru kept the drumy but when the re was famine
and Okiru could not provide rain, he was compelled to
return the dmun to Liing who had earlier on refused to
sacrifice without it., Though the drum was returned to
Iiing, the support given to Labongo's action showed the
extent to which Liing experienced opposition even among

1, Ivid,, p, 11,
2, TIbia,, p, 12,
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his fellow Palwo, He thus found it difficult to cope
with opposition to hie dominance from other groups who,
perhaps taking advantage of internal opposition to him,
frustrated his efforts at enlarging his territary and
thus building a kingdom, Liing, for instance, falled
to bring Lamogl under his control, His attempt to appoint
hie man as ruler there was suceessfully resisted, Even
the Iukwor clan which did not accept Liing's authority
attacked Liing's place, Although they were forced to
pay compensation, they never tendered the expected apology.
Thus, at best Liing could only be described as first among
many heads of clan groupinge, His rule never extended
beyond that of his clan and some of the Oryang, Vhat
happened in Pajule could at best be described as the trans-
fer of a settlement in Northem Bunyoro to Pajule, There
was no question of building a kingdom over others as in
Agago and west of the Aswa, But even though no kingiom
could be said to have been built by the Palwo, there is
the fact that their presence resulted in a mixture of
very many ethnic groups out of which Lwo bocame pre-eminent,
end Lwo became the lanmage,

The Palwo in Busoga
Busoga is another area to which the Palwo migrated in

the late seventeenth century, Their arrival in Busoga was,
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however, preceded by the settlement of Lwo communities,
probably part of those who came directly from the north,
These early Two had established fairly centralized govern-
ments over "fishing peoples, fammers snd hunters in the
north",} With the arrival of the Palwo the process of

state dbuilding continued, Wemy Pelwo groups smong which

were the Abaise Mpdola, Abaise Naminha and Abaise Kirugl, came
from northern Punyoro and established dominance over groups
they met on the spot,

The Abaise Menha were, however; the first Palwo group
to arrive in Busoga, They were sald to have emerged from
a complex of Lwo and other groups whose movements took them
from Pawir through Buruli, Punyala and northern Busoga,
Another group from the same direction wae the Abaise Mpina
clan lod by Ksimire vho displaced the Lwo Wusumbo clan as
the ruling group at Bukohe, Wusumbo, the formmer leader,
was said to have been neglecting his people, When Kakaire
arrived at Pukche he gave them gifts, The people were
happy with him anl with their instigations and support,
he deposed Wusumbo after which he established his authority
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The late seventeenth and early eighteenth centuries
can therefore be described as a period of Pelwo's extemal
activities, Their impact was felt in the territories
bordering and at some distance from Northern Bunyoro, In
all the cssesy; thelr nctivities had to &0 with the formation
or maintenarce of large political entities and establishment
of dominsnt groupe, As has been shown, they achieved varied
but sipgnificant smccess in most of the areas they migrated to. [
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Yot all the Palwo lef't Northern Bunyoro as a result
of the war waged against them by Olini Isansa, the Bantu
king, The chiefdoms of Pajao, Munyal, and Paitwol seemed
relatively unaffected by the war, The inhabitants of
these chiefdoms stayed in their territory and did not
flee as some of their neighbours in Pawlr, Koc, Kisona
and Xisoga were compelled to do, But even in the chief-
doms affected by the war, somc of those who left ceme
back, Moré Lwo migrants alse arrived in Northern Bunyoro,
The result was that it ald not take the Pelwo a century
t0 recover from the loss they suffered in terms of popu-
lation, The restored Palwo population in Northern Punyoro
seemed not to have forgotten the incident of thelr humi-
liation by Olimi, They still felt that the crown in Kitara
ghould belong to them, They thus sought weys of regaining
what they believed was their inmlienable right, Taking
advantage of the inherent wealmess in Kitara's political
structure, which was accentvated by the shorteomings of
some of the Rantu Abalama who reigned after Olimi, the Palwo
successfully carved out e power base within Kitara and,
from there, launched their first military attack on the
Omukama in an effort to regain the throne of Kitara, The
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Palwo were able to launch this attack becauss the circumstances
were favoursble to them, For example, during snd immediately
after Olimi's war, the situation in liorthern Bunyoro was not
totally unconducive to the furtherance of this ambition,

Aern _Sunyoro LUuring ne “Xogau

It has been said that the chiefdoms of “ajao, Paitwol
and Nunyai were not seriously affected by Olimi's vax'.1

It is poseible to explain the non-involvement of these

three chiefdoms in terms of their origin, They were founded
by people who came from ¥adi,” ‘fhey had not yet arrived
in Northern Bunyoro when Rukidl set the pattern of appointing
only sons born by ILwo women a8 Abakame, The war waged by
0limi againet the Palwo was centred on the contimuity of

the pattern of succession set by Rukidal, It is possible
that at the timeg-of (limi's wer, the Medi-Prlwo had not

yet become sufficlently intermingled with their Lwo brothers
as to sympathise with their aspirations, The inhebitants
of Pajao, Munyai, and Paitwol were probably still more Madi
than Lwo at the time of the war and since the issue at stake
was the struggle for the throne between the Lwo and Bantu,
the Madi-Palwo probably felt unconcerned and did not support
any eide,

1.(a) Okelo Wange, P.H.T, 70, Kirwala, 11/7/71,
{b; william Ochanda, Ojok, Olays Atiya, p{;ﬁr. ol,
Wiruka headquarters Dima,

£ Bee Chapter II pp,36 above,
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There is also the faet that in ¢,1679, ¥odo the
founder of Pajac, was disobedient to the Omukema of
Kitara and was replaced by Kagoro® who, though a Mubito
prince, wss likely to have been born by 2 Zantu woman
(as the name suggests). Xagoro's descendants continued
to rule in Pajao, fince the new momarchy in Fajao was
Bantu, it night have been more eympathetiec to 0limi then
to the Palwo, Nore s0 as Olini represented a Bantu
atterpt at putting an end to the Palwo's exclusion of
the Bantu from the throne of Kitarsns In the circumstance,
Olini's forges would not have attacksd Fajao.

Ancther possible reagon for the non-participation
of the ¥adi Palwe in the war was the motive which O0limi
set out to mchieve. Ae mentioned earlics,” 0limi's prin-
ecipal motive wao t0 kill Piakaia who was the focal point
of resistance to his authority. The Omukama was not out
to punish all the inhabitants of Northern Bunyoro, Some
inhabitante of Pawir, Xoc, and Kisona suffered because
they aided end sbetted Biakaia's rebellion by allowing
Biakaia to pitch his camp in their territory. sSince
Biakaia 4id not have a power base in any of the Madi-
Palwo chiefdoms, 0limi's soldiers had no reason to attack

1, See Chapter IT p, 37 abeve.
2, f8ee Chapter III p, 66 above,
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the area whatever might have been responsible for the
¥adi-Palwo's non partieipation in the war, the three
chiefdoms econtinued to exist and grew in population, The
fact that they were not attacked by 0limi's soldlers
lessened the amount of loss which Northern Punyoro would
have suffered in terms of population,

But even in the areas where the war took its toll in
tems of population, it was not too lang before the loss
was recovered. The result was that by the end of eighteenth
century the population of Northern Bunyoro was as high if
not even higher then 1t was before Olimi's war, Perhaps &
testimony to the increase in Palwo population is the fact
that unlike during Winyi's reign ¢,1679-1706 when Northern
Punyoro was ruled by ome Saga chief, Omukama Nyamutulura
©.,1786-1830 had to divide the area into two separate Sasas
udl'tth“lmcm.l

The recovery of the affected Palwo chiefdoms can be
explained in a number of ways, Omulama Olimi direected his
war agninst Biakaia and some Palwo princes who supported
hin, It was these men whom Olimi's soldiers were sent to
kill, As soon as these men were killed, Olimi's soldiers
returned to Bunyoro, Innocent civilians who left their
home in fear came back on being told of the cessation of
mnntuu.’

1, Nyakatura, p, 5, p. 67.
2, Isaya Byewarjo, P,H,T, 93, Chopelwor, 18/8/71,
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It is even possible that Olimi encouraged innocent
Palwo men to come back and live peacefully in Kitara
because he stood to gain by their presence in hies empire,
The higher the population, the more tributes will be peid
to the Omukama, and the wider was his scope for recruiting
men to fight his wars, Olimi might have avpealed to the
Palwo by impressing 4t on them that he had no grudge
against them but against Biaksia and his "rebel collabo-
rators”, The sitwation might have recembled what happens
in present-dsy political conflicts which centre around
the preservation of the integrity of a politiecal entity,
The man whose authority is being undermined tries to draw
a distinetion in his attitude to the rebel leader on the
one hand, and the people who are being led to rebellion
on the other, For example, during the Higerian civil war,
General Gowon appealed to the Ibos t0 come back and live
in areas liberated from Ojukwu end his rebel cligue, Whether
or not Olimi appealed to the Palwo to come back and live
peacefully in Northern Punyoro, some of the inhsbitants of
Pawir, Koo, and Kisona came back after Biakaia had been
killed, They came back for various reasons one of which was
frustration, It will be recalled that in all the areas to
which the Palwo migrated, they attempted to establish their
authority over the people they met on the spot, They were
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successful in certain areas and failed in others, It is not
unlikely that some of tle Palwo came back after having failed
to achieve their purpose,

Moreover, in areas to which the Malwo migrated, recur-
ring outbreaks of famine snd epidemics compelled mot only
the Palwo, but also the other inhabitants migrate to
Northern Bunyoro, For instance as a resuli of Laparamat

famine which occurred in Bast Acholl in the period ¢,1785-1792,

most of the kingdoms in that area broke up and the inhabi-
tants had to cose to Northern Bunyere,’

Thus, the effect of Olimi's war on the population of
Northern Bunyoro was not lasting, However, the memories
of 01imi's war contimued to haunt the politieally articulate
men among the Palwo, They felt that the successful perver-
glon of tradition by Olimi should not be allowed to con-
tinue unchecked, They were therefore looking for an oppor-
tunity to resssert by force thelr exclusive claim to the
throne of Kitara, As it happened, it was not until the
reign of Xamurasi that the Palwo launched a military attack
on the Bantu usurper., Bui before then, they had succesded
in carving out a power base within Kitara from which foreeful
attempts were made to regain the throne,

1, I am grateful to Alex Apecu of Makerere for this
information,

|
|
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Isctors Alding Palwo Efforts
Tn the pursuit of thelr gozl, the Palwo hed many
faetors t0 their advantage, One of them was the inherent
weakness in the political structure of Kitara, Uszolgwe
has described the empire as “"far flung, heterogeneous
and loosely administered”,’ Tis means that it wes too
wvide for effective administration, It demanded a stromg
persomality to hold the emnire together.” There was also
the high incidence of succession digputes during vhich
not only 4id the component parts assert thelr independence,
but elso the kingdom iteelf was rendered liable to external
aggression, These weaknesses became more evident when the
throne was occupied by weak and ineffective kings,
Tneidentally, the period following Olimi's reign
witnessed the advent of weak and impotent Abakama, The
centre lost coptrol over the provinces end Pugenda menaged
to annex some parts of Kitara, Owa “ujlwiga 1731-1782 who
mecesded 01linmi failed to eontain the rebellion of one of
his sons and died while fighting to recover some of his
territories lont to mw-na-.3

1, G, XN Ulolro "Eabalega and the making of a new Kitara)
s’ ’ob 2”19”. *

2, One of the ressons wvhy Olimi was chosen despite the
fact that he was born by a Bantu woman was the fact
thtmmuwmiumntmdumddnltm
nnuu ty. There were threats of intemal dls~

tion and external aggression, Vor details
unmmrnxpp.&)-ﬁm

3. Nyakatura, op.git., p. 59.
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Ccwa's successor Olimi Kasoma reimmed for only four
years before Nyamutukura, his elder brother, overthrew m."
Nyamutukura's reign 1786-1835 has been dsseribed as the
"low watermark in the history of Kitara® because this was
the period when meny of the princes vhon the Omukame had
appointed as provincial chiefs rebellsd against their
father's authority. They declared thelr aréas independent
of their father's control,

Omukama Fyamutukura veigned for too long, 1786-1835,
The older he grew, the lese effective was his hold on the
affairs of his kingdom, Noreover, he had manychildren
some of whom he had appointed ae rulers in the provinces,
Some of these children were t0o ambitioucs and became
impatient of waiting for their father to dlec before taking
up the mentle of authority in Xitare, Torhape the most
anbitious of the princee was Kacope bom by a Palwo woman
and who, having been imbued with the idea of Malwo exclueive
right to Kitara throne, did not want to spare sny effort
at beconing the Omukama, Fisher described him as being "of
a very scheming and cunning nature who was always plamning
in secret how he could securs the kingdom for himself on
his father's d.th".s He decided that the only way was to
remove all other brothers, He instigated Xarasuma one of

1, Tbid.

2, G, N, Ugzo
Makerere H

3« A, B, Fisher mzmummnm
(London 19115. De

g ﬂL" FTOIO-- 1\
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his brothers, to wage a war againet their father as a result
of which the prince lost hies lito." Eacope Imew that
Kaboyo was the Omukama's favourite son and perhaps the
greatest obstacle to hie becoming the Omikama, KacOpe
then went to Kaboyo and intimated him of the Omukama's plot
against Keboyo's 1ife,

It 4s difficult to estimate the extent to which
Xacope 's intrigue led to the breakdown of relations between
Omukama Nyamutukura snd his favourite son, However, a
little while after, Kaboyo left the palace, visited Toro
where he was invited to come and become king independent
of the control of Nyamutulura, At firest, Kaboyo was said
to have felt reluctant, but on being assured of an arny
and probably ecoupled with Kacope's warning, he decided to
accept the offer,> Conflicting evidence sbound on the
reaction of Nyamutukura to Ksboyo's secession, Palwo and
Buwm’ sources claim that the rebellion was unchallenged,
wvhile um“ gives the impression that Nysmutukura made an
unsuceessful military effort to erush the rebellion, Vhether
or not Kaboyo's secession was challenged, the important
thing is that from 1830 onwarde Toro became independent

1, NRyakaturs, op,¢it., p. 65.
2, Yor details of Kaboyo's activities in Toro, see J, Wilson,
op.cit.

3. U’"‘" LAayolLu
P.H,T, 62

4. J. wilson, gp.eit.




- 108 =
of the control of Omukama Nyamutulkura,

Kaboyo's sucgcess in taking Toro out of Kitara is
important in that it encouraged the Palwo to create a
power bese in Northern Bunyoro, It is possible that
Kacope had this idea in mind wvhen he alienated Kaboyo from
his father, Kacope might have wanted to watch the reaction
of lNyamutukura t0 such an action, In addition, he might
have wanted to assess the Omukama's capacity to crush
rebellions against his authority., The fact that Nyamutulura
was not able to crush Kaboyo's rebellion wmust have been a
moral booster for XKacope and his men,

By the time Kacope was planning to get rid of possible
rivale to the throne of Kitara, he had already been appoin-
ted as faza chief to the Palwo county of K!Jmm.l Another
Babito prince by & Palwo woman, Isagars Katiritiri was Sasa
chief of Talwo county of Xibanda. It was the custom of the
Babito to appoint princes ae provineisl chiefs, These
princes were given areas from vhere their mothers originated
to govern in the interest of the Omukema, While in Northem
Bunyoro as Saga chiefs snd subordinante agents of Omulama
Kyebambe Nyamutultura, Kacope and Teagara FKatiritirl were
esccorded all the honour and respect due to a king by the
heads of the chiefdoms, The Palwo Rwhodi of tle chiefdoms

1, FNyalatura, m.' Pe 67.
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saw themeelves as subordinate agents of Kacope and

Isagara's suthority, Tt was to Kacope and Isagara that
tributes were paid for onward transmission to the Omukama's
capital, Appeals against the Rwhodi's judgement were
referred to them for adjudication, It was XKacope and

Isagara who arranged for the presence of the ralwo at the
Omukama's court during the empango festival, The situation
thus looked likes another superstructure of authority over

the Rwhodi, BSuch an arrangement was workable for two reasons,
First, they were princes and seen as personal representatives
of the Omukama, Secondly, they were Falwo men whose lan-
guage culture and aspiration the people over whom they were
ruling shared.

However, the exercise of authority in Palwoland fell
far short of vhat Kacope and Isagara wighed, As Palwo men,
their ambition was the throne of Kitare which they believed
should only be held by princes born by Palwo women, It
was towards ensuring that he became king of Bunyoro-Kitara
empire that Kacope caused confusion among the princes and
alienated Kaboyo, the favourite prince, from his father.
Kaboyo's successful rebellion proved an eye opencr to
Kacope and Isagara, They felt they too could take their
provinces out of the control of the Omukama as a first step
in the effort towards seccuring the throne of Bunyoro-Kitara
for themselves, They planned to comsolidate thelr hold
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ameng their people in Palwoland® and acquire enough military
backing to wage a war against any rival to the throne of
Kitara,

Kacope and Ieagara then took steps to severe con-
nections with the Omumma of Bunyoro-Kitara,” During ome
of their usual visits to their areas of authority, they
did not come to report at the Omukama's palace as was
expected of them, Tributes paid to them for onward trans-
migeion to the Omukama were withheld, They did not arrange
for the presence of the Palwo at the Omukama's court during
the empango festival, Kacope and Isagara later informed
the Palwo of their decision t0 break ties with the Omukama,
The major reason was to consolidate in order to wrest the
crown of Bunyoro-Kitara from the hands of the 'Bantu usurpers'.

But Kacope's county of Kihukya was composed of the
chiefdoms of Pajeo, Paitwol, end Munyai, inhabited by Palwo
people who were of Madi origin, They were therefore less
sympatheti¢ with the Lwo separstist feeling than the four
other Lwo chiefdoms were, Having settled on thelr terri-
tory with the Omukmma's permiseion, the Palwo of Madi
origin seemed to have owed loyalty to whoever was the

1. One could now begin to cyll Northern Punyoro wsmmkems
Palwolmd becamse from this time
they stayed here permanently and regarded it as their
home - a base against Bantu usurpers,

2. Nyakatura, m. p. 68, also Pauolo Ochewa, Kyeganywa,
P.n.;_.n 45, s Okelo Wange Kirwala, P, H,T. 73,
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Omukama whether Lwo or Bantu, The respect they had been
according Kacope was because of the fact that he derived
hie authority from the Omukama of Bunyoro-Kitara, Vhen
Kacope told them that he was no longer having anything to
do with Nyamutukura, snd thet henceforth he should be
treated as the Omukama, the Pajao felt he had lost the
basis of his authority over them, The Pajao Rwhot thus
continued to send tribute to Fyamutukurs,® The action of
the Pajao Rwot can also be explained in the light of the
fact that, following the change of dymasty after the
execution of Modo, the founder of Pajao, Kagoro who became
king, was a Wubito, hence the ruling dymasty in Pajao had
been Babito since the time of Kagoro, It was not easy for
them to support a rebellion ageinst a fellow clan member,
This explains why they did not at first co-operate with
Kacope, The Pajao Rwhot continued to attend the empango
festival and took tributes to the Omuksma, In Paitwol,
apart from refusing to acknowledge the sugerainty of Kacope
and paying tributes to Nyamutukura, Dator made an attempt

to fight Kacope. FKacope was said not to have made an effort
to bend these people to his wishj; but with time, these Madi-
Palwo reconciled themselves to the situation and accepted
Kacope as king,

1. Okelor Wenge, Kirwala, P,H.T. 75, W/7/71,
PH,T, 75, as previously cited.
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Oral tradition is silent on why, and how, the MNadi-
Palwo changed their attitude t0 Kacope, It is however
plausible to explain the change in the light of the fact
that although the miling dymasty in Pajao and posaibly
Munyai, end Paitwol was mtu,l‘ and were loyal t0 Nyamutukura,
a Bantu Omukama, majority of the inhabitants of the
chiefdoms, at least at that time (1830) wére those born
in Northern Bunyoro and have been living there since, They
might have forgotten the Madi origin of their ancestors and
regarded themselves as full-blooded Palwo, It is very likely
that they shared the aspirations of their Palwo brothers
for a recovery of their right to the throne of Xitara, Thus,
the attitude of the populace to Kacope might have been dif-
ferent from that of their rulers, Wvhen, as it happened,
the Rwhodi of these Chiefdoms changed their attitude snd
accepted Kacope, it might have been a reaction to popular
opinion in thelr chiefdoms,

while it took Kacope sometime t0 be accepted by the
Nadi-Palwo, Isagara did not encounter any difficulty in
goetting his authority acknowledged in Pawir, Koe, Kisona,
and Kisoga, These areas were inhabited and governed by
people who were of Lwo origin, Both the rulers and the
people shared the sspirations of Xacope and Tsagara, To

1, B8ee Chapter II pp. 37-38 for the replacement of Modo
by Kagoro.



- 111 -

them, it was a national struggle, an attempt to regain
their ancient rights, Xacope and Isagara were therefore
seen as national heroes, symbolising Palwo aspirations,
with time, Xacope and Isagara consolidated and
assunod the position of Omuksma in their respective areas,
The Palwo, in fact, addressed them as Ryhot, Kacope built
his palace at Puodi in Paitwol while Isagara built his
in Koe, The pslaces were larger than those of the Rvwhodi
of the chiefdoms and contained more slaves, visitors and
tributes, They were built of special type of grass called
Apudi,

The relationship between the Rwhodi of the Palwo
chiefdoms and the new kings was cordial, Kacope and Isagara
merely established a super-structure over the prevailing
syetem, They made use of what they found to meet their
needs, The Rwhodi of the chiefdoms were allowed to
exercise authority over their people and behave as they
had been doing before in ego far as they recognised the
authority of the new rulers, peid tridutes to them, and
ecarried out thelr wishes, The Rwhodi of the chiefdoms
retained all vestigee of authority, To Kacope and Isagara
they looked like Jaghi (equivalent of Bunyoro saga chiefs),
but the pecple they had been governing continued to regard
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them as Rwhodi, They were still selected in the old
way, by the people among the sons of the dead king, Fven
though one Mtomntl eaid the new Rvhodl (Xacope amd
Isagara) could refuse to confirm anyone chosen, he could
not mention an instance when that power was exercised,

Thus Kacope and Tsagara suceessfully created a power
base for the Palwo, Unlike Kaboyo whose secersion was a
permanent reality and who even refused wvhen called upon to
become the Omukama of nunym-ntm.' Kacope and Teagara's
rebellion was only a first step in the effort to regain the
crown of Punyoro-Kitara empire and stop what seemed to
them "the perversion of tradition by the Bantu usurpers,”
Their aim was t0 consolidate snd build emough support,
have a sort of base from where the attempt could be made by
forece if necessary, to regain the crown of Bunyoro-Kitara,
The Palwo never wanted to stay out of Bunyoro-Kitara, an
empire which they regarded as theirs and to which they had
a strong sense of attachment, Had Kacope and Tsagara wanted
to do this the Palwo could not have supported them, XKacope
and Isagara's assertion of authority in Palwoland was there-
fore only a means to0 an end., The end wae the assumption of
authority over the whole of Bunyoro-Kitara empire, The
only thing they could do during thelr father's life time
was t0 create a power base and prepare for a show of forece

1- Okdo 'll!l'o POROT- ‘7’ nmh. 9/7/71.
2, FNyakatura, p, 67.
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against other Bantu usurpers, This was perhaps why
Kacope and Isagara organised raids into neighbouring
territories, expanded their sphere of influence, and thereby
increased their following in preparetion for the war against
the Bantu \uurpou.l

They were further helped by the inability of Nyamutukura's
suceessor, Nyamboge to crush rebellious designs, By the
time of his accession, he was too old t0 be an effective
ruler, During his reign of thirteen years 1835-1848, he
was far too much occupied with catitle to pay any attention
to the request of the lost provinces, He was succeeded
by Olimi Rwakabole who, like his predecessor, could not erush
Kacope and Isagara, This Omukama's short reign of four
years wae bedevilled by attempts by his brothere to unseat
him, After killing his elder brother, Rwero, for attempting
to rebel, his younger brother Kamuraci staged a successful
coup d-etat against hin,? Kemuras! himself 41d not immediately
find things easy, Though he killed Rwakable, he first had
to undertake a purge of princes who were loyal to his brother
and who had not accepted him as king, For the first four
years of his reign, affairs in the Punyoro-Kitara capital
were far from belng settled,

Palyo Attack on Kamurasi
Kacope and Isagara were not unaware of wvhat had been

1. Okelo Wenge, Kirwala, P,H,T, 54, 24/6/71.
2, Nyakatura, op,eit. p. 70.
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happening at the Omukama's court ever since the reign of
01imi Ryakabale, The situation at the Omukema's court
during Eamurasi's reign wee seen as a good opportunity to
lpunch sn attack on Kamuwrasi's palace, kill the Omikama
and regain the crown of Bunyoro-Kitara for the Palwo, The
Palwo at first thought they would catch Kamurasl unawares,
The Omukama heard of their coming through one of his spies
and before their arrival at his court, Kamurasi had organised
troops to resist the Palwo offensive, When the two armies
were posed to attack esch other, the Palwo uttered the
following words which clearly indicated the motive behind
their attack:

"We are the true heirs to the throne of Kitara

m;z a r I:’:uao mﬂog:l from Mwenge
your w sbou ng
delicate drinkers of uu.& i

Tighting later started and Kamurasi's forcec were
overpowered, ¥amrasi himeelf escaped and this had a
demoralinsing effect on his troops. The Palwo looted the
Omukamn's palace, and captured many of the instrumemts of
royalty such as drums, spears, etools and crowns,

One would have expected them to seize the mantle of
authority at this stege and gain the crown of Bunyoro-
Kitera, They could not however do this for two reasons,
One was that according to the custom in Punyoro-Kitara,
anybody wanting to seize the throne had to make sure that

1, Ibid., pe 77.



»118 «

the former Xking was dead before he could assune authority,
In this case, Famarasi was still alive, he had only escaped,
Until the Palwo princes had killed him, neither of them
could become the Omukama, The other reason was that, even
if Kemurasi was dead, the Palwo princes hnd not yet decided
on which of them, Kacope or Isagars, should become the Omukama,

Meanvhile, with Kamurasl on the run and tl& Palwo
having gained access to the Omukama's palace, the victors
settled at Kokoitwa to celebrate their initial victory, They
drank 0 much beer that many of them got drunk, MWeanwhile,
Kemurasi in his place of refuge reorganised his forees under
Prince Omudaya's leadership, and while many of the Palwo
soldiers were still drunk, Kamurasl's forces fought back
unexpectedly, The Palwo were heavily defeated and many of
the Princes died, Xacope and Isagara snd their sons, Mupina
and Ruyonga respectively, were among the few Palwo princes
who -nrvind.z

Kamurdgl regained the throne of Kitara but did not
make any effort to dislodge Kacope and Isagara from their
base, This was probably because Kamurasi dld not have
euificient military strength to wage a war of aggression
on the Palwo, He still had many supporters of Rwakabale

1

to deal with, In that circumstance, a war of aggression
on the Palwo would probably have complicated issues for

1, P.H.T, 130, John Williem Nyakatura, Hoima, 25/11/71,
2. DNyakature, op.cit., p. 78,
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the Omukams, Hies rivels at the capital might have taken
adventege of the ebeence of Kamurasi's trcops to attack him,
liorgaver, Kamurasl might have felt that a war to end Kacope
and Teagara's rehallion was not worth the trouble, The Omukama
new that Kacope and Isagara's aseertion of suthority in
Palwoland wae for a purpose - the capture of the crown in
Kitara. B8ince Kamuraei had been able fo withstand the
attempt, and he had other rivals to contend with, it might
be worth the Omuksma's while to consolidate his authority
and make sure that he was not overthrown, It seemed that
what mattered to the Omukama was not the maintenance of
Kitara's integrity but the maintenance of his position as
the Omukana,

After Kamurasi had managed to regain the throne the
Palwo did not make any major effort to regain the throne
of Kitara until the accession of Kabalega. Even at that
time, what helped the Palwo to challenge Ksbalega was the
impact which economic changes had made on thelr social and
political life, These changes and thelr effects will be
examined in the next chapter,



CHAPTER V.

BALNO ECONOMY, SOCIETY AND FPOLITICS

Although this work is concerned with the politieal
history of the Palwo, the changes vhich occurred in the
economic life of the Palwo had a great impact on their
soclety and polities not only at the local level, but aleo
in terme of their wider struggle to regain the throne of
Kitara., In view of this, it is pertinent to examine the
economic changes in Palwoland in order to see their impact
on soclety and politics,

Even a casusl study of Palwo economic history shows
a chenge in emphasis from pastoralism to agriculture and
then to hunting, These changes in emphasis were a result
of three factore: firet, the natural and environmental
conditions affecting the Palwo economy; secondly, the
influence of new ethnic elements absorbed into the society,
and thirdly, the effect of the extermal traders such as
the Arsb and Basombwa traders from the mid-nineteenth
century onwards, These three factors not only altered the
pattern of the economy but also caused substantial changes
in the social and political life of the Palwo,

Three: phases of Palwo economic history can therefore
be identified, The first coincided with the period of
settlement in Pawir during the reign of Nyawir c.mos-ms."
Pastoralism and hunting were their occupations before they

1. PYor details see Chapter one above,
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settled in Pawir, Farming was at that time, a subsidiary
occupation,

The Pagtoralist FPhase: to C,1680

As earlier mentioned, the Palwo are a branch of the
Lwo vho migrated from Sudan t0 parts of present day Uganda
and Kenya, Continuous migration, transhumance snd pasto-
ralism have been associated, People who are continuously
on the move have frequently been cattle rearers, Craszolara
and Ogot both assert that the Lwo were essentially cattle
rearers, Ogot writes:
"In mu- m.m homeland there were vast stretches
ch of which was not suitable for cultiva-
ua\. uthommnh-n-woto-mmrhu
vhere they could find fertile soil and good grazing,
they never had to bother with the means of fodder
storage or devise proper methods of manuring and
could afford to run down their ?tth vhich formed
the mainstay of their economy".
Crazgolara indicates how the early course of their migration
was affected by the desire to find adequate graging lands
for their utth.a When the Palwo pettled in Northern Bunyoro,
they remained dependent on eattle, Cattle and other domesti-
cated animals served a variety of purposes including payment
of dowry and sacrifice to the gods, Ogot however observed
that as the Lwo migrated southwards into Uganda and Kenym,
they arrived and settled in forested places more suited
to agricultural communities than pastoral ones, The extent

1. Ogot, gp.ecit,
2, Crasselara, The Lwoo, Part I: Nigrations
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of dependence upon cattle therefore decreased as the Lwo
moved southward from the Sudan into Uganden and Kenyan
areas, By ¢.1409-1436 when Nyawir led the Palwo across

the File, moat of her followers were tired of the seeming
endless journey to an unknown destimation, They therefore
settled with their cattle on the south bank of the Nile

in an area which came to be called Pawir after thelr leader,
The: choice of settlement was probably dictated by the
availability of water from the Nile and the luxurious growth
of grasa, The very act of settlement meant less mobility
and consequently less grazing land for cattle, The abundance
of tse-tse fly in the area also discouraged pastoralism,
Apart from the tsetse fly, there were also recurring outbreaks
of geny, a disease from vhich cattle became emaciated and
quickiy died,

Together with these factors militeting against pastor-
alism, the fertility of the soil arising from proximity to
the Nile encouraged the adoption of farming, At first
farming was an adjunct to pastoralism but later took pre-
cedence over it, Initially, Palwo methods of cultivation
were simple, Digging sticks were used as hoes, but after
they came under the Bacwesl empire of Kitara, some iron
hoes were obtained from Bunyoro, The introduction of iron
further stimulated the change of emphasis to agriculture
which could be described as the second phase of Palwo
economie history,
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Ihe Farming rhase, 1680-1860

By 1680, 1t seeme that farming had become the ma jor
oceupation of the Palwo, Farming took precedence over
pastoralism for two reasons, Pirst, the new environment
was better muited to farming than ecattle, fecondly, new
settlers vho were iron workers came to Palwoland, Tn the
generation ¢,1657-1679, a quarrel between two brothers in
¥adilula led to the arrival in Palwoland of a group of
Sudanic Madi migrants led by Wodo, After being introduced
to the Omukama of Kitara, Modo established the chiefdom
of Pajao which later expanded and fragmented to form Munyai,
and Paitwol chiefdoms.! The coming of the fudanic peoples
must have encouraged the development of iron industry. It
is not clear whether the Palwo learned iron mining and
smithing from the Banyoro or whether the iron industry was
begun by the fudanic immigrants, Informants give the
impression that iron was being mined prior to the settlement
of Paitwol by the Sudanic Peoples, But it is very significant
that the Sudanic peoples settled in Paitwol vwhere the iron
depoeits were, Tor iron working peoples, migration was often
determined by the availability of new and better source of
iron ore, Webster notes that in the Agago area of Rast
Acholi, Orom iron workers came into Wol purposely to exploit

the iron ore ruenm.’ However, by ¢,1700 iron mining

1, Bee Chapter two pp. 36-37 sbove,
2, J, B, Webster, Acholl NMistorical Text, No. 22,
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and smithing have emerged as an important occupation in
Palwoland, The iron industry considersbly assisted the
adoption of farming,

The production of iron began with the collection of
lela (iron ore) in large quantities usually with the help
of lineage and clan members, The lela was first broken
into smaller manageable rocks with the hard wood of a tree
ealled Jitoll or Dapends (mahogany). They were then heated
in a furnace until they became red hot, The smelt iron was
allowed to cool for two days and was then cut into smaller
pleces known as Kitengere. The Kitengere was then fashioned
into the desired shapes such as hoes or large knife blades
to vhich wooden bandles were fitted, The emelting process
up to and including the production of the Kitengere was
handled by men cslled Ruklela (smelters). The emithing
process which prodnced the finished tools was far more
skilful and handled by men called Datet.:

At first, iron smithing was only the part-time occupation
of the Palwo who were mainly farmers, But with time, the
demand for hoes increased £0 much that some farmers became
full-time iron makers, trading their implements for food,
In time, they organised a form of guild which regulated
exchange rates and set rules governing vecruitment into the

1, Odero and Peter Apile, P,H,T, 19, Kiryakende, 12/5/71.
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profession, Admission into the buklela class was relati-
vely easy but the mumber of people joining the Datet class
was strictly limited., Though efficiency as a iuklela was
the ostensidle qualification for admission into the Datet
class, only relatives of the established Datet found 1t easy
to join the fold, Gradually the occupation became the
preserve of the clans and families of the first group of
datet notsbly, Duchobo, Dabwang and Dudwd,l The importance
of the development of the iron industry lay in the encoure-
gement 1t gave to farming, Farming assumed importance
over pastoralism and the Palwo deslt more with plants than
cattle, But in spite of the preoccupation with farming,
the enviromment of Palwoland was such that the Palwo could
not do without practising hunting - at least far the pur-
pose of safeguarding their lives and crops if not for
securing meat, ‘This was because Palwoland was probably one
of the richest hunting areas south of the Nile and north
of Nyanza,

Thue, while the Palwo turned from a preoccupatiom with
cattle to greater dependence to farming, hunting remained
an important secondary occupation, In faet, after the loss
of cattle it may have become even more important as a
source of meat, Both occupation - farming end hunting -
required iron implements and contributed to the rising
demand for the products of the datet,

1, Pulasio Oyundu and Werre, P,H,T, 83, Katulikire, 29/7/71.
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Hunting and its Effects

Before the arrival of the Arebe and Basombwa, the
Palwo had several wayes of hunting animals, There was the
chase method by which people divided themselves inte groups
and chased the animale towards places vwhere their gompanions
armed with spears and nets were waiting, There were also
various trapping metheds, Ome of them was the 'Muya' which
was digging a pit and filling it with sharp pointed oplan.l
Animals were expected to fall into the pits and get killed,
Another method was the use of a snake with a deadly poison
to kill animale, The animals were lured towards the spots
where the snakes were staked down. As soon as the snimals
were bitten by the snakes they dled, In the Tong Atwok
method, a big spear hung on a tree, descended on animals
that were driven towards the tm.'

Hunting went a long way in increacing the material
prosperity of the Palwo, Bushbukk, pig, and buffalo provided
meat for human consumption, A kind of sandal was made from
the skin of the bufallo, Various animal ekins were also used
in making clothing, After being dried, the animal skin was
treated with a type of oil (foga) dried and uged in covering
the body. PTerhaps the most valuable commodity secured from
hunting was ivory, It was the search for ivory which brought

1, Simon Kasigwa, P,H,T. 47, Kiryandogo Gombolola head-
quarters, 13/&/71.

2, Pauolo Ochewa, P,H,T, 49, Kyegemywa, 15/6/71.
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the foreign traders to Palwoland,

The search for Ivory among other things, prompted
Khedive' Mohanmad Ald to send Salim on an expodition to the
White Nile in 1839. 6Salim reached Gondokore and brought
back reporte of the aveilability of material resources
especially ivory which could be gainfully utilised by who-
ever controlled the area, An immediate result of Salim's
discovery was the establishment of trading poste in Southern
Sudan and Northern Ugands including Palwoland by Arad traders
who were in the services of stme Puropean businessmen based
in ¥hartoun,

Salim's discovery aleo encouraged some organisations
and individuals to send expeditions to the Southern Sudan,
For instance in 1862, the Royal Ceographical Society sent
Speka and Grant to the Nile dasin, Pamuel Paker in the
same year visited the interlacustrine region. He discovered
lake Albemt, and believed it to be the source of the File,”

1, thedive All sponsored the tion in order to
increase the economic strength of his country, His
najor aim was to tap the resources of this area, For
details see Richard Gray,

1839-2889,

(Oxford Unive By Ps O,
2, Vor details of Speke's visit, see J, H. Speke,
4 (Lm 1863), %

m . .
W(Ml
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By the time the two explorers eame, Kacope and Isagara,
the Palwo leaders had died and had been succeeded by their
sons Mupina and Ruyonga as Rvhodl of Kikukya and Kibonda
respectively., The two new Palwo Rwhodl were bent on com-
pleting the tack set by thelr fathere, that is, wresting the
erovn of Kitara from the Bantu usurpers, However, the visits
of the explorers did not have a visible impact on the Lwo-
Bantu vower struggle though Xamurasl attempted to solicit
the help of the explorer agsinst the two Palwo Rehodd,’

Economically, the visits of Speke, Grant, and Baker
served the same purpose as that of Salim, The two explorers
reported the availability of ivory thus emphreising the
sconomic potentialities of the area, The report prompted
the Tgyptian Medive Tamail to attempt to bring the area
under the protectorate of Egypt and deeclare an Bgyptian
monopoly of trade in this area, Ismail sought to 40 this
by sending éxplorers, nemely Baker, Cordon, and 3min Pasha
tothonm.e

But before this explorers came, a group of traders had
visited Palwoland and traded in ivory, Their activities
affected many aspects of the lives of the Palwo, These
traders were the Arabs from Khartoum and Zangzibar and the
Basonbwa, As mentloned earlier, one effect of Salim's

1, fee J, ¥, Sipeke « h05-428, and 0, ¥, Baker
on.cii.s P, 34, ey 28 . !

2, The activities of these men will be discussed in chapter
six below,
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vieit wae the setting up of trading centres by Arsbs
slong the ¥ile including Palwoland, Another group of
Arebs came to Palwoland from Zanzibar, They were sent
by Fulten Sayd Sedd o find ivory,® This wee part of
the multan's effort to ecreate n comereisl empire in
Znat Africa, These men had goods which they.adwvanced to
Pelwomen who orgenised the collection of 4yory for them,
Along with the Arabs, come a group of people lmown in
parte of present-day Ugande as the Basombwa, They are
believed to be the Nyamwesl from the Tehors area, All
these men came $0 buy ivory end brought several types of
comnodities in exchange for ivory, The result of the
trede in ivory was a chanpe in Palwe economy and society
for the better, Few standards of taste and dress emerged
and Palwo soclety becsme more sophisiicated,

Whether the Palwo saw more of the Zanzibari Arebs
and Basombwa-than the Arebs from Ihartoun is not clear,
But contrary to the reports of raiding and pillaging
conducted by the Arabs from Khartoun on the Southearn
Bnumu.e the impression one gets is that all the traders
who came t0 Palwoland conducted thelr trade peacefully,

1, Tor details of Sayyd Said's sctivities see R, Coupland
East Africa end its invaders, (0.U.P., London, 1938)
2, The Arabs from Khartoum augmented the ivory trade with
trade in slaves, They thus looted the inhabitants of
Southern Sudan in order t0 get alaves, B8ee Orayy
PPe 25-55.
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Oon their arrival, they were said to have visited Ruyonga
and Vupina and intimated them with the objects of their
mission, It was the Rwhodi who later introduced the
traders to the Palwyo, In return for ivory, these traders
brought various goods imcluding clothes, trinkets cowries
beads, cups, plates, saucers, and later on guns, The
Rvhod's palace was for a long time the place at which
ivory was exchangsd for the exotic goods, At firet,
standard prices were fixed, A roll of cloth or a basketful
of cowries was the priee for a tusk, Later on the rate of
exchange came t0 depend on the interplay of the forces of
demend and supply and the relative bdargaining power of the
parties, A nevly arrived Arab or Nusonbwa paid more for a
tusk than one who had got enoush and was only persuaded by
nhnm“mnmcnumm.l As ivory assumed
economic importance, the Rwhodi further enhanced their
position by making sure that ome tusk of every elephant
killed was given to them, They thus had more of the
commodities brought by the traders than even the elephant
hunters, The goods brought in exchange for ivory became so
highly priged that those Palwo who had acquired the skill
to kill elephants completely abandoned farming and specialised
in hunting elephants, The need to kill more elephants in
order to cope with the demand for ivory led in turn to an

2. Odm. PeH T, 16. Kimh!ﬂ.. 9M10
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increased demand for iron weapons such ag epears and Imives.
The Datet entered yet another period of prosperdty.

¥hile faming and hunting remained the main cccupation
of the Palwo throughout the nineteenth century, a new class
of specislietes arose within the society, the ivory hunters,
Possibly the ivory hunters were mmall in number in relation
to the whole Palwo population, but they had an effect on
Palwo soclety and polities far beyond their number, They
represanted a new elite class, rivelling the traditional
chiefly elite, Traditional hunting activities were still
carried on but from among the hunters, = specialist group
of elephant hunters - the Aligo - emerged, whose major pre-
occupation was to secure ivory for the slien traders,

In response to the demand for ivory, the aligo organised
themselvere into a guild which regulated prices, controlled
recruitment into the oceupation and orgmniced large scale
hunting expeditions, Munting parties were divided into
three groups, The Duleks, regnrded as the most junior,
was charged with the responsidility of loeating the
elephant, This was done by throwing ashes in the air and
observing the direction of the wind, fince the elephmnts
were believed to move in the same direction as the wind, the
Duleka would then follow the direction and start dlowing
horns 80 that the elephante might run towards where other
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men armed with heavy spears and on the trees were waiting.
At first this system worked well but later the elephants
began avoiding the trees, It thus became necessary to
station another group of men called Dulyek not very far
from the tree. Vhen the Duleka started chasing the elephants
the Dulyek prevented them from ruming away from the trees
by setting fire on poesible aslternative routes, thus foreing
then t© pass by the trees where the Dudwar, the master
strikers, were waiting for them, A man wanting to join the
aligo first had to serve as a duleka after which he was
promoted to the Dulyek group, A long and impressive record
as a Dulyek coupled with evidence of good behaviour were
prerequisites for admission into the Nudwar ohu.l

Issues like price determination, recruitment, diseipline
and promotion of members were discussed at meetings held at
the residence of the head of the Aligo. In Pawir, Dadoo
Olego headed the Aligo group while Powa was the chairman
in Pajao, In Munyai, Olegodi, the eldest of the elephant
hunters, was the leader. Usually, the head of the aligo
recomnended promotions which had to be ratified by other
members during meetings, The occasion for such meetings
was when a man, having been considered fit to be a dudwar
and having been handed a spear by the head of the alizo,

1. Antonio Oyuru, P,H,T., 120, Gombolola Headquarters,
Mutunda, 20/9/71,
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killed his first large animal (not necesrsarily an elephant).
The new Dudwar then had to ¢all the senior Dudwar shoruas
nearest at the time of the kill, The senior Hudwar then
tied the new dudwar's arm behind his back with a type of
grass called Obiha and asked him to perform the apeya,
(moving round the animal thrice). The new Dudwar was then
made to stand on the head of the animal and to blow a horn
thanking Orongo, the god of hunting, for helping him to
kill the animal, After this the animal was taken to the
house of the head of the aligo, cooked and served to all
menbers of the dudwar, The Dudwar sang epecial songs thanking
Orongo for his help, At this Geremony the new recruit and
the other dudwar would be possessed by Orongo, Only Dudwar
could be priests (kibandwa) of Orongo, After the ceremony
other matters relating to the profession such as recruitment
into the duleka and determination of prices were discussed,

Turing #upina and Ruyonga's reimm,t when the foreipn
traders first arrived in Palwoland, they concerned them-
selves only with the purchase of ivory without taking any
intereet in the methods used to secure it, ILater in these
reipgns, however, some of the traders anxious to secure more
ivory brought guns end taught the Palwo how to use them,
The guns soon became widely used and replaced the spear
as the most important instrument of hunting,

1., Punyoro sources such as Nyakatura say Mupina died in
1887, Ruyonga died before Mupina,
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The availability of guns affected both the elephant
hunters and their organisation, Wwith guns it was no longer
necessary t0 undergo a period of apprenticeship before being
allowed to kill an elephant, Onge a man knew how to handle
a gun and what part of the elephant to shoot at, he had only
to colleet people to help him carry the flesh if he wanted it,
The importance of guild leaders such as Dadoo decreased, The
guilds collapsed, individual hunters sold fusks at uncont-
rolled prices and Orongo, the god of hunting, declined in
importance, One of Orengo's main functions had been to
prevent hunters with spears fron being killed by animals,

FNow the gunes ensured that animals, if not killed outright,
were rendered impotent, The danger of hunters being killed
by animels was reduced,

The introduction of guns also affected the economic po-
sition of the Patet. The availability of guns at first resulted
in a decrease in the demand for iron implements since guns were
being used to kill enimale, Some of the Datet were therefore
compelled to change their occupation to hunting., But with the
defection of some of their colleagues, the fortunes of the
remaining datet increased even more, As more people hunted
elephants and other animals, though with guns, more swords
and knives were needed to cut the animale killed, Yoreover,
the first type of guns brought by the traders could only earry
single charge, S%ome animals, especinlly elephants, unless hit
in the neck or in the stomach, did not die immediately, They
still had to be killed with sharp spears, Thus, the demand for

anatwa and As 10 *
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The economic significance of the increased trade in
ivory lay not only in the increased prosperity of the datet.
It aleo lay in the change it brought t0 bear on the system
of exchange., AS noted earlier, foreign traders brought,
among other things, cowries in exchange for ivory. The
Basombwa, who firat brought them, took the cowries to
Mupina end Ruyonga and persuaded them to start using cowries
as money, IHitherto, exchange of commodities had been by
barter, The Rwhot distributed cowrdes to heads of families
and in time they became adopted as currency,

An established currency; apart from facilitating ex-
change, also increased productivity, particularly as the
consumer goods brought by the traders becane popular, The
elephant hunters were fortunate t0 have access t0 these
goods, They, however, needed foodstuffe and other commodi-
ties for which they depended on their neighbours, They thus
had to secure enough ivory to sell for cowries with which to
buy food,  Bimilarly, a farmer wanting cups, plates and
beads had to increase his output beyond that needed to
feed his family, to sell the surplus and to buy the recently
introduced commodities from those vho had them, The sane
applied to the Datet, who had to produce more iron imple-
nenta 80 as to get cowries sufficient to cover his food
expenses as well se his demand for the exotiec gpods,
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Inecreased specialisation, stendard currenéy and a
higher volume of exchange ultimately hastened the erosion
of the subsistence economy, It was replaced by a more
impersonal epecialized and monetary one in which the "Jack
of all trades" no longer had a chance, One had to be a
master of eomething to compete. Presumsbly some famers
remained outside the new economy. It is impossidle to esti-
nate what percentage of the entire population they were,
Neverthelesss, as will be shown latery there was great social
pressure especlally from the vomen upon the men to secure
the new and prestigious goods brought by the traders.

The coming of the traders provided job opportunities
for some Palwo, When the Basombwa and the Arasbs first came,
they were faced with the difficulty of locating the homes
of the elephant hunters even though upina and Ruyonga sent
word through their chiefs about their arrival, The traders
obtained the services of some Palwo as guides who took them
to the places where ivory could be bought, In time these
guides assumed the role of middlemen known to the elephant
hunters who eollected ivory from the hmnters snd sold it to
the traders when they came, At first they were given a small
monetary commission by the hunters, In time they gained
enough cowries to purchase ivory from the hunters on their
own account and to sell to the traders at prices which
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yielded them substantial profits, Lakor Mande of Tidikata
was one such middleman who rose from a commoner to acquire
cattle and goats and had married five wives by the time of
VYupina's death chout 1887, Other Palwo men served as potters
for the traders and were pald in cowries with vhich they
worksd their way into the position of trader middlemen,

The Palwo developed new tastes in dress, Warikheni
andl kernecke, clothes were worn on special days 1ike festivals,
the Rwhot's visit as well as during marrisge, naming and
dburial ceremonies, Samwiri Oduonga recalled that during
wedding ceremonies, people dressed in bark cloth were not
allowed to come near the centre of activitin.l Beads were
worn by men and women and a men vihose wife had no beads would
be compelled either to buy some for her or to put up with her
incessant complainte, Women took a particular fanecy to gold,
A man wvho could not afford to buy gold Tor his wife was
looked down wupon,

Vealth and status became reflected in the mamner of
dressing, The Jaghi and Batongole were in the habit of
weering these imported cloths on ordinary daye because they
could afford them, Their wives wore numercus gold bangles and
drew attention to themselves by jingling the bangles, Tn

1., Samwiri Oduonga, P.H,T, 23, Kigumba Market, 23/5/71.
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their houses they used cups, plates, and sancers, Vhen
Pnin Pacha arrived at Vupina's court, he found him using
plates, dishes and glassec which he had purchased from
ATab traders.,’ The elephant hunters prospered more tham
any other group, Okelo Ayuek, ¥anito Kiburu, Lemoye, Amut,
Ochien Eskura were a few of the men who took advantages of
the presence of the Arsbs and the Basombwa to acquire a consi-
derable amount of wealth, Ongwech who 1ived at Kitonusi
was sble to afford the marriage of five more wives and the
purchase of three men and four women slaves, His wealth was
inherited by his descendants, Wera, his son, lived and dled
in plenty. The elephant huntere prolonged thelr naming snd
marriage ceremonies becaunse they had sufficient means to
entertain mests,”

It was not only Palwo men who felt the impact of the
new trade, The sglavee who were an integral part of the FPalwo
economic community nleo did, Originating from Madl, Okebu,
Acholi and rango, where they were captured in raids organised
by Palwo Ryhodi, the slaves were dlstributed to influential men
in the community who accorded them the same treatment as free
bhorn citizens in reward for their good behaviour, An obedient

. Ga Znin Pasha in Central Afrieca
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2, Zacharish ¥anyuru, °,H,T, 30, Kiroke, 29/4/71.



.

male slave had his dowry paid by his master and could marry
2 Palwo girl, vhen hunting became more profitable, some of
the slaves who proved capable in the puleka and pulyek
class were even admitted into the dudwar class,  They how-
ever remained subservient to their masters to whom they
gave proceeds from the sale of ivory and who rewarded them
accordingly, The income from the sale of ivory could pro-
vide the payment of their bride price without having to
depend on one's master, They also built houses near their
master's compounds but even after being sble to support
themselves they still continued working for their masters,
There was no inhibition against s slave marrying a Palwo
girl; thus inter-marriage decame common, In the political
hierarchy, the offices of the Jagho and Mutongole were
hereditary within certain clans, vhemever the incumbent

of such an office died without an heir, a slave who had
acquired enough wealth could fill that office,

Despite the newly acquired wealth of the slaves, their
magters were still sble to control them, This was because
the masters who were also elephant hunters were richer and
more powerful and could call on fellow elephant hunters
and loyal slaves t0 dring to submission rebellious slaves,
or group of slaves, Nirogera's loysl slaves foiled the
attempt by one of them to run away after killing one of
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his master's children in revenge for Nirogora's poor pay-
ment for tusks,) Though there were instances when some rich
slaves perpetrated atrocities, they were by and large sub-
nissive to their masters whose income rose as a result of
the ivory trade and who in fact constituted a mew elite,
It was not lemng before the nouveaux riches, started
making their presence felt in the political scene, Next to
the Rwhot, the office of the Daker Nadit was the most
importent in the Palwo political hiemarehy., The Daker Madit
apart from being head of the administrative hierarchy, was
the Rwhot's principal adviser, chief justice and commander-
in-chief of the forces, He occupied a position similar to
that of Bunyoro's Munyoro Mukumu or Buganda's Katikire.
Appointment to this all-important office was based on popu~
lar selection, Whenever a vacancy occurred, two or more
people signified their intention to £1l1l it, The people
had to make their choice known through the Batongole who
reported to the Rwhot the most popular of the candidates,
Usually it was a contest between three or four senior Jaghi,
as the Jaghi were next in rank to the Daker Madit, The qua-
lity moet looked for was bravery, because the Daker Madit
would personally head the Rwhot's army, and in addition
other qualities such as intelligence and impartiality were
needed to dispense justice, Thus vhen Mupina's Daker Madit

1, Isaya Byewarjo, P,H,T, 101, Chopelwor, 26/8/71,
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died, a contest developed for the succession, One of the
contestente was Okelo Ayuek, He was only a Mutongole,
but was also an elephant hunter, He secured the position
against Bimera and Kiisza Pateka who were both Jaghi and
who by virtue of their high position and experience seemed
better placed according to traditional rules, The reasm
behind Okelo's unprecedented victory is not obscure, Being
an elephant hunter, he sequired a great desl of wealth with
the coming of the traders and hence won the respect of
people living around him, As a hunter, he used to be a
regular member of Mupina's oceasional army of invasion, This
made Okelo a favourasble candidate at least for the post of
the head of the forces, Finally, with his weath which that
of his two opponents combined could not match, he was able
_to canvass for more support. He thus won the contest and
overturned the old convention by which the Daker Madit was
always chosen from the ranks of the Jaghi,’

As noted earlier, one of the tusks of every elephant
killed had to be glven to the Palwo Rwhot, In additionm,
gome Palwo elephant hunters gave presents to the Rwhot who
rewarded them vhemever the opportunities arose, One such
rewvard was made wvhen a Jagho died without an heir, Though
the office was hereditary within certain clans, the Rwhot,

1, PH,T, 30, as.previously cited.
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had the right to appoint anyone in the absence of a suit-
able male heir, Flephant hunters were often chosen to i1l
such posts, This was how Oyara was appointed as Jagho of
Kal in Munyal by Okwir, Also in Pawir, Okona appointed
¥1§ja in the same manner,'

The recently sequired wealth by the elephant hunters
tended to make some of them unruly and develop a feeling
of immunity from the law, However, those of them who mis-
behaved were promptly put in their proper places, This was
largely because the Rwhot still remained the richest and
most powerful person in the soeiety, Though he did not
take part in hunting, he was @given one of the tusks of
every elephant killed, This meant that he had more tusks
and hence more guns, slaves and foreimm goods than anyone
else, Far from bdeing undemmined, the rvhot's suthority
became strengthaned by the introduction of the ivory trade.
Elephant hunters vho behaved as if they were abave the law
were promptly dealt with, TFor ingtance, an elephant hunter,
Odonga of the Duwiro clan at Xoc chiefdom, was used to
oppressing his poorer neighbours, An example of this was
the raping of Apeo, Okoro's wife by some of Odongo's slaves
ascting on their master's instmetion, When during a dance
to mark the degimming of harvests he ordered his slaves to

1, 0OJok Adem, Olaym A PH,T, 97, Miruka Headquarters
Dina, 2a/h/me AT ’ ’
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dieperse the partieipants, Ruyonga, who reigned ¢,1860-1887,
mmamwunnummmuntonmuum.‘
There was also the case of Bagenda in Nunya vwho, because he
had so much gold purchased f'rom the Basombwa, started rough
handling women vho attempted to duy gold from him, MNupina
ordered his arm to be out,”

The availability of guns aleo influenced local poli-
ties, Shortly after Ruyonga's death, members of Payetegi
clan who were elerhant hunters took advantage of the
absence of the Rwhot and of thelr possession of guns to
settle o0ld scores with the Paboo, The Paboo were a clan of
fishermen of considerable wealth derived from the sale of
fish, In fact, in the pre-Basombwa period they had been
considered to be the richest clan in Koc chiefdom, Living
next to them was the poor Payetegi clan whose members had
tried to combine hunting with faming, with the introduo-
tion of the ivory trade, the Payetegi not only acquired
wealth but also gune which made them aggressive, A dispute
flapred up, Ochaka, of the Paboo clan, was said to have
made advances to a woman in vhom Umsh of Payetegi wae
interested. The Payetegi with anobo, Olike and Dachamba,

1, P.H,T, 126, Prancis Kimube, Combolola Headquarters,
“ml 23/9/71.

2, 7Ibia,
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elephant hunters anxicus to dleplay their newly-acquired
superiority, launched an attack on the Paboo, Infomants
are agreed that the attack was inspired by Fayetegi's desire
to digpossess the Paboo of their wealth., The eomparatively
defenceless Paboo were attacked and forced to flee hotly
pursued by their agsailante who captured all their property
and killed those they could lay their hands on. Payetegi
is at present a wealthy clan in Palwoland and informants
do not hesitate to point to this war as the origin of their
wealth, Peboo on the other hand became improverished.
Ancther example of the effect of ivory trade on loecal
politics is the feud which developed between Kihukys and
Kibanda counties, The counties, both occupied by the Palwo,
had been traditionally on the bdest of tems, But Kihukya
was richer in elephant and thus profited more than Kibanda
from the trade in ivory, Jealousy developed between them
and the people of Kibanda ware soon allying with the Langi
against their fellow Palwo in Xihukya, The langl and the
Palwo had been in the habit of raiding one another, thortly
before the denth of Nupine, ¢.,1887, one of euch raids was
attempted on Xibends by the Lamgi,’ e people of Kibenda,
after repulsing the Langl, urged them to rald the wealthier
Bahukya, At the battle of Kitonusi, the Langl and Xibanda
found the Kihukya tougher than they expected, The invaders

1, PH.T. 30 as previously cited,
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were driven back and many Langl and Kibanda people died,
This raid and the support given by Kidanla to the Lengl
against thelr om ralwo countrymen created long etanding
111-will between the two Palwo sections so that when in 1911
the colonial adminigstration asked the Bohukya to evacuate
their settlement decause of the tsetse fly, most of them
preferred to go to Yimakulu in Acholl or lLango instead of
settling with their fellow Palwe in Kibenda ocunty.l

Perhaps the most lasting comsoquenceé of the trade in
ivory and the availability of guns in Palwo society was the
inereased aggressive attitude of the Palwo towards the Bantu
elements in Bunyoro-Kitaras, The urge to wrest the crown of
Eitara from the Bantu "usurpers” received s new military
impetus resulting from economic prosperity and the acquisition
of guns. Nupina and Ruyonga thus adopted an aggressive dis-
position towards Kemuresi who managed to resist the Palwo
until his death, With the accession of Xabalegs, the Palwo
Rvhodi bocanme more aggressive md were in fact the fivet
to attack Xebalaga, They were so confident of thelp
newly acquired economic and military strength that they
thought 1t would be easy to overthrow Xabalega amd thus
achleve their ambition, The extent to which they succeeded
in this will be seen in the next chapter,

1., P.H.T, 30,
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PHE THRONE OF KITARA

In the midst of the economic boom, the Palwo and
their Rwhodi never forgot the task to vhich they had
committed themselves, The Lwo-Bantu struggle for supremacy
in Xitara had become such an lmportant 1ssue that every
opportunity was taken by the combatants £6 achleve their
aim, The Palwo took the opportunity of the trade in ivory
to improve their military organisation after which they began
the offensive against Omukama Kabelegz, The course and, to
some extent, the outeome of the war was however affected
by the sctivities of forelgn traders, Thic was largely
because their asctivities had a real impact on Palwo military
organisation,

Palwo Militery Organisation
Before the advent of foreign traders, the militery

organisation of the Palwo was centred around the Rwhodi
and mncu.‘ warfare was a respectable recreation snd the

1. Jaghi (singular Jagho) were heads of Chiefdoms and were

g o ntes ad Ttaves Siay astsek ke BErN.
Kacope sagara ey as on

of provineial chiefs, Thay reaponsible to Kacope
and !n?n who ruled the Kihukya and Kibanda counties
respectively, Kacope was succeeded by Yupina as the
Rwhot of Xihukya while Ruyong succeeded Isagara as the
Rwhot of ¥ibanda., Fihulkya county comprised Keoc, Pajac,
Munya, and Paitwol, Kibanda consisted of Pawir, Koec,
Kisona, and Kisoga. (See Chapter 2 pp, 50-51 sbove for
duties of Jaghi to the Rwhot).
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Rwhodi encouraged it, more s0 as it was important for the
attainment of the objective of the Palwo, thould the
Pwhodl see the necessity or possibility of an ocutbreak of
war, they consulted with their officials and Jaghi, fince
there was no regular army, a decigion to make war was
followed by the ralsing of troops, Druns were gounded
at the palace to alert the population about the imminence of
war and to invite their assistance, This aAsaistance was
fortheoming from all able-bodied men, They would arm them-
selves and go to the Rwhot's palace, Their enthusiasm
tended to be inspired by two main consideratioms: first, the
desire to fight and thus contribute towards the attainment
of the objective of their group, and secondly, the prospect
for booty,

It was not only Ko¢ and Paitwol where Kacope and
Isagara respectively built their capitals that supplied
the bulk of the soldiers, Other chiefdoms also mpplied
men to join the Rwhot's ammy, As earlier mentioned, the
Palwo saw a commitment to ralding as an essential element
of thelr prosperity. Even before Kacope and Isagara
asserted their authority in Palwoland, the petty chiefdoms
had been organising reids into neighbouring territories
making use of men who were called from thelr peace-time

—
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oecumum.l Thus, when Kacope and Isagare later began to
champion the cause of the Palwo against the Rartu, they
recruited soldiers esgentially along the same line, though
on a much wider cesle, The heade of the chiefdons organi-
sed recrultment of soldiers in their areas aftor which they
were assenbled and sent to the Rvhot's palace. There they
were informed of what to© do endl the strategles to de adopted.

There were two types of military expeditions under-
taken by the Palwo, Vars that were considered tc be of
ma jor importance and took a fairly long time to plan, such
as the battle of Kokoitwn, were led by the Rwhodi or the
Paker Wedit®, Winor raids on ad joining territories wider-
taken for the purpose of collecting human and naterial
booty in preparation for major wars were led by individuals
of good military reputation .3 Thus, when Facope and
Isapara ralded the Lengi and the Alur for the purpose of
collecting more soldiers with whom to fight Kamurasi at
Kokolitwey outstanding warriors who had no place in the
political hierarchy led the expeditions, However, not all
the -Palwo militery engagements with the Banyoro were

1. An instance of this was the battle of Kokoitwa
which Kacope and Isagara fou apainet Kemurasi,
g::tgm.' four, pp. 1ll4~117 above for details of the

2, Zachariah Mesnyuwmu, P,H,T, 102, Kiroko, 1/9/71,

35« An example was the raid conducted by Paynor Rwhot of
Paitwol on Pawir,
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premeditated, Ruyonga, for instance, carried out some
spontansous raids on Kamurasl tsking adventage of the
presence of the Khartoum Arad ivory traders in his capital,
On such occanions; the Arad traders were supplemented by
the Revhot's Parupure and Baregana &s well as tho -hw-.l

The institution of the Berusura was not peculiar to
Puyonga Mupins and ¥amurasi also ned.? 14 wae s party
of armed ind vifuals who provided the king with special
peroonal guard., They watched the royal residence through-
out the day and kept order at public sseenblies, They
forwvarded royal despatches to the chiefs of the outlying
provinces and broucht meesages for the king., They lived
in the royal palace and Wwere clothed and fed by the king
in returm for their services, The Bamuesura constituted the
nesrest approach to regular troops in the interlacustrine
rogion,

The mmnas was perhaps peculiar to the Palwo, It
consisted of poor men who made themeelves available for
any type of job the Rwhot might offer them in returmn for

2 P H.T. ,B. fachariah Wanyuru, Kiroko, Mm.
2, Thies was what Unotgn meﬁ to a8 Palace mm.

3, The ro might or might not have had such an
institution,
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their memme of livelihood. 6Ghould the need arise for the
ranks of the Barusurs t0 de strengthened, the Beragsna as
well as the glaves were always called upom,
The aifference between the Barapena and the slaves was
that vhile the former voluntarily submitted themmelves for

the king's service and could lenve the palace As esoon as they

felt their needs had been met, the slaves were in perpetual
bondlape and could never leave the valace. The Barasura,
the Barngana, and the slaves thus formed the core of the
Rvhot's amy, Tt was they who formed the dulk of the raid-
ing partios as well as the amy t0 ficht warr, They were
sometimen supplemented by the ordinary peovnle who responded
to the esll for enlistment,

The coming of the Arads and the Basombwa ivory traders
inerensed the nmunber of the Rvhodi's Barusuras, Baragana,
and the slaves, Since ome tusk of every elephant killed
was given $0 the Rwhot, hig material prosperity inecreased
more then that of eny individual in hig domain, He was able

to sell the ivory and get in return more of whatever he needed

including foodetuffn to feed the people, Thus, more men

flocked to his palace as Baragena, The number of the Rwhot's
slaves alpo swolled, More men were recruited into the Barusura

because the Rwhot had the means to maintain them, Ruyonga
and Yuvina's punitive measures against recaciltrant elephant

hunters were implemented by the muerically increased Barusura

|
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who, apart from having the foree of nmmber to their
advantage, were aleo better equipped than any elephant
hunter eould poseibly be.>

Ancther effect of the ivory trade in Palwoland was
the scquisition of political influence by the elephant
hunters, The story of Cjok's election to the office of the
Daker Madit in Mupina's county of Kihukya has already been
t014.%2 tome other elephant hunters slso ot appointed to
offices 1like Batongole (sub Jagho) and clan heads, Such
men had their own company of slaves with whose assistance
elephants were hunted end who eould be deployed for mili-
tary service should the need arise, They were qguite farmiliar
with the use of guns,” The importance of hunters as Chiefs
lay in the fact that they had the personality to persuade,
and the means to farce people to enlist in the Rvwhot's army,
The remult was that at the time of Kamrasi's death, the
Palwo had more human and material resourees than ever to
fight wars, They seemed very well equipped for a foreceful
attempt at restoring their privileged position in Punyoro-
Kitara empire, Thus, when ¥sbalega became the Omukama,
the Palwo were very well prepared t0 launch attacks on him
wvith a view to regeaining the throne of Kitara,

1, GSee chapter five pp, 139~140 above,
2, ESec Chapter five pp. 137~138 sbove.

3. Tor details of the political influence acquired by the
elephant hunters see chapter five pp. 137-138 above,
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Zhe Palvwo and Kebaleds

Kebalega wae Dorn by a women from 'roro.l His early
years were spent in Bulegs in Alur vhere he and his mother
wereconpelled to flee when the Falwo had driven his father
Yamuraei out of the Bunyoro-Kitara capital, EKamurasi later
fought back to regain his capital at the battle of Kokoitwa,
Vhen ¥sbalega came back from Alur, he grew up-in the palace
with his elder brother Kabigumire under the care of Prince
Omudaya, In spite of the guardian's liking for Xabigumire,
Kamuraei indicated his preference for Hegbalege as his successor.
When Kamurasi djed, XKebigumire at once seized and buried his
father's body. According to Bunyoro-Kitara custom, the prince
vho buried his father's body and killed his opponent would
become king, Kabalega would not secept defeat, Civil war
wae inevitabdle,

Ugoigwe claims that "It was an umsual succession war”,
Formally aristocratic support in Kitara tended to de
balanced between the opposing candidates, This tims 1t was
different, Practically all the Babito princes and other
important people were in support of Kabalega's opponent,

It was not in their interest to support a candidate who

1, Vor deteils see 3, ¥, YWsoigwe, "Rabalega and the Making b

of a Now mtm'.m

2. n“.
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had made lnown his intention of surbodinating the aristo-
eracy and concentrating all power on himsgelf as king., While
Uzoigwe's explanation of the stand of the aristoeracy in
the succession strugzle might be plausible, it does not
seem likely that Kabalega as a young prince had any ideas
about kingly power, But when he became a candidate for the
throne, he found the aristocracy againet him poesibly because
of his hurble origin on the maternsl pilde, Wis mother was
eaid to be & palace maid of Alur oripgin, The aristocracts
would no% want the son of a palace maid to be erowned,

Given the hostility of the aristoecracy, Kabslege had to rely
upon the sumport of the common men, He thue became the
common men's candidate, Tnitially ¥abelega's prospect of
success appearad slim but with the surport of Yamureei's
"Berusura® snd the ecommon people he, by 1871, had appeared
victorious, ¥ost of the chiefs and princes later professed
their loyalty to him, But Kabalega never really trusted them,
and certeinly sought to keep them from acsuming thelr former
vower und prectige.

Odven Kabalege's exporience in the esrly vart of his
life mma during the struggle for the gthrone, it 1s easy to
understand why his policies were dirccted nt reducing the
power and influence of the princes and the aristocrats. It
was Babito princes (of Lwo Origin) who, when fighting his
father, drove him to Pplega. Bebito princes also attempted



- 151 -
~%osstand between hin and the throne of Bunyoro-Kitara
even vhen his father had indicated that it was Kabalega
vho should be made king, If he was to be a master in
his own house, and halt the disintegration of Kitara empire,
Kabalega rightly saw that the princes and the aristocrate
must be put in their proper places, Uzoigwe quoting one of
Kabalega's surviving sons, Aramangi NWurumbi, said,
"Kabalega made up his mind to re-assert the authority of
the royal power, centralise the kingdom, stamp out dissident
and rebellious elements, snd restore the fortunes of the
once powerful and famous empire of Kitara by reconquering
the rebellious mvtuu'.l Anyone who prevented the
realisation of this goal was an enemy and must be resisted,
The Palwo were obvious obstacles to the realisation of the
goal,

The Palwo were the embodiment of all what Kabalega
stood against, The apparent existence of Palwoland as a
separate entity from Bunyoro-Kitara showed that the Babito
princes were undermining the authority of the Omukama,

Kacope and Tsagara took advantage of their royal bdlood to
carve the area out of Kitara empire, vhile Mupina and Ruyonga
succeeded their fathers and were constant thorne in Kamurasi's
flesh, In addition, the Palwo were not slow in indicating
that the attempts made to dethrone the Bantu king and re-
place hinm with a Palwo one, would continue during Kabalega's

1, 7Ivia,
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reign, Purthermore, there was the fact that, the memory
of the humiliation vhich Kabalega suffered vhen the Palwo
compelled him and his mother to flee to Bulega continued
to haunt him, He was therefore prepared to revenge on them,
Imnediately after Kabalega had defeated Xabigumire,
¥upina and Ruyonga sent meesages to Kabalega ssking him to
abdicate or face a forceful eviction from the threne,’
As far as the Palwo were concerned, Kabalega, who descended
from a usurper like Kamurasi and whose mother was a non-
Palwo had no claim to the Omukamaship, Kabalega not only
refused to abdicate but also made lnown his intention of
subduing Vupina and Ruyonga to his suthority. The stage
was set for a military confrontation,

Palwo Preparations for War
The Barusura were the first to be geared into ncﬁm.z

Having been saddled with the responsibility of defending

the Rwhot, they did not need much instructions in the art

of warfare, They were supplied with guns nequired dy the
Rwhodi during the ivory trade and informed of the task ahead,
The very nature of the position of the Baragana renders them
available for any type of job the Rwhot might want them to

1, Palwo Ochewa, P,H,T, 45, Kyegarywa 11/6/71,
2, Zacharish Manyumu, P.H,T, 21, Xiroko 14/4/71,
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do, They were also prepared for war and were trained in
the handling of the guns by the Barusura, With the
approach of war, many more people came to join the Baragana
hoping to acquire booty, Many of the provinecial chiefs
were elephant hunters and these contributed to the building
of the army, They brought with them their personsl armed
retainers and other individuals bound to them by family
or other allegisnce, The response of the commoners to
the call for enlistment was only nominally voluntary for

any man who was considered fit and refused to join the army

stood the risk of being condemned to death, It was the
Jaghi's personal armed retainers who trained the ordinary
-mmaommwnmmdmnenetm.l
Apart from the army raised from their territory,
Nupina and Ruyongs also made use of thelr esstern neigh-
bours, the Lengi, The Langl were seasoned warriors whose
love of fighting was such that when they had no opponent
to fight with, they would fight among mlulvn.z In Lengi
soclety the respect an individual comnanded wes mainly the
result of his proven military skill, wilitarism was a
quality e0 highly valued that slaves of good military

1, 7Tbvid,, Prancis Kiruba, P.,H,7, 123, ¥utunda 21/9/71.
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ability were made heads of elms, Odoyomo,. in showing the
importance attached to wars by the Langi, described how
soldiers returning from battle were accorded heroes' wel-
come and conferred with honours at ceremonies attended

by most of the inhabitents of the territory, A woman whose
husband or son had done well enough to be so honoured
counted herself lucky, The MOT names (special names given
to distinguished war heroes), according to Odyomo, was more
coveted by Tangl youths than a kmighthood ever was in the
British society, To get married to a man with a YOI name
was the ambition of most of the Langi girle, Vhile the
warriors were accorded respect and honowr, those who did
not participate were the targets of all sorts of abuse
and derision, WNilitary skill had more to offer than the
soclial prestige, The wars were always rewarding in terms
of the booty cecured, The likelihood of the acquieition of
wealth prompted Langi men to participate in wars out-
side their territories especially the cnes between the
Palwo and the Banyoro, lupina and Ruyonga as well as
Kabalega made use of the Langi in their struggle for the
throne of Bunyoro-Kitara,

1, 7Tbia, p. 12,
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The Langi mﬂn had no personal stake or patrio-
tic interest in the ralwo~Banyoro comflict, Tnitially they
fought on either side, Mowever, they were likely to
gravitate to thoe glde which was winning and could provide
more booty, Thus the Langl were one of the declsive factors
in Xabalega's eventual victory, In the 1880s mafiy Langi
soldiers swelled the ranka of Kabalega's Abarusura as long-
time gerving mercenaries, In other wordas; they did not go
to Bunyoro merely for omec battle and them return home; they
remained for considereble length of time, some on almost
permanent basis, taking leave from time to the.l There is
no record of this happening in Palwolend, However, it seems
unlikely thet in the 1870's Kabalege had organised either the
Avarugura or his fimances to the extent that he could
maintain permanent Langi mercenary troops, He must therefore
have fought with his father's palace guards and occasional
Langl measurements,

The relations between the Palwo and the Langi were
founded on trade, It has been soen how the Palwo Datet
prodused iron implements which aided farming,” The hoes and
cutlarses were taken to Lango and bartered for goats. At
first the trade was conducted peacefully, With time,
however, some Langl, especially those living at the border

l., G, N, Ngoigwe, Rgvol

2., fee Chapter five p, 121 ambove,
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with Palwoland, started raiding the Palwo, depriving them
of their hoes and goats, The Palwo were frightened to go
t0 Lango. The Langi were in need of hoes and had to come
to Palvoland,’ The Palwo were reluctant to sell but the
Ryhodi intervened, Mupina and Ruyonga not only arranged
for the Langi to meet the Datet but also made sure that the
hoes and cutlasges were purchesed cheapér than defore, The
Palwo Rwhodi also provided accommodation for the Langi,”
This was probably because of the Rwhodi's awareness of the
military ability of the Lengl and the poesibility of having
to call on their assistance in the event of an outbreak

of war,

Vhen the stage appeared set for a military clash with
Kabalega, Mupina and Ruyonga called for the assistance of
the Langi, Nupina's Dapker Madit and the Jaghi were sent to
Odong Aja, & Lengi on whom Mupina had showered favours and
who had also taken part in many of Mupina's minor raids on
neighbouring territories, He took Nupina's officials to
meet well known Langli war leaders namely, Obong, Agoro, who
lived near precent day Lira as well as Ogwette, who lived
at Assba,” Obong Agoro mentionel by the Palwo might be
Abwang Agoro who was the head of a large Langi military

1, P,H,T, 45, Pauolo Ochewa, Kyaganywa, 11/6/71,
2, Ibia,
3. Ibia,
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confederacy the centre of which was the Lira kingdom, Not

much has been written about Abwang Agoro, Ogwang-Apeys

who mentioned Agoro in his mesenrch on the Tangi of Adworil
recalled Agoro's aseistance to Xabalega, There is no

place where Agora was said to have recruited mercenaries

for the Palwo, However, this omly points out the importance
of the point made earlier that the Lengi fought for the

higheat bidder and that in the early 1870s, the Palwo Ryhodi
could offer as much Af not more then Kabalega. As will be seen
presently, they could not do this a decade later,

However, Ohong and the military Commanders, organised
the recruitment of able~hodied men who were taken mcross
the River Nile in large canoes which Mupina had provided,
Ruyonga also had his friends among the TLengi, Individuals
like Igwera, Abingo, Akulu, and Otwal had bhenefitted from
their asnoeintion with the Rvhot, They had mecured cheap
supplies of hoen, cows, and guns from Ruyonga, As if the
Rvhot was anticipating the necessity of calling for thelr

1, fee Tugene Ogwang-Apeys, W
m ¥akerere Unive atory

say .
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asristance, Puyonga had been allowing the Langl to go
eway with booty captured in earlicr raids on neighbouring
territories, The Palwo who participated in such raids
were expected to submit thelr booty to the Rwhot, When it
became clear that Kabalega would have to be militarily
eonfronted, Puyonga sent to these men for 'ln'im.l

The recruits from Lango as well as those from the
provinces were assembled at the Rwhot's pelace and trained
by the senior mervbers of the Barigura, The Daker Madit was
in charge of the training, accommodation, and general care
of the recruite, The large number of people at the Rwhot's
palace were fed on foodstuffs given to the Rwhot in form
of tribvutes snd gifts.

The Pelwo aleo solicited the support of the Jogi
(gods) in thefr militery endeavours,? The two Rwhodi con~
tacted Kamboja's and Katipo's Kibandwa, Ruyonga sent
Advong while ¥upina sent Openya to ask for the Jogi's
blessing, The two Rwhodi were asked to kill a goat and a
chigken and bury them in 2 hole on a route through which
Xsbalega's soldiers were expected to pass, The enemy was
expected to lose half of his strength after passing over

1, PH,T, 45, 123, on, eit,
2, Francis Kirube, °,¥,T, 128, Wutunda, 25/9/71,
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that spot, Katigo also sent to the Rwhodi a leaf from

s tree called Olwado which after being blessed by the
Jok wee used to rub the gune, Pinally, a left-handed
men called Dacam was instructed ¢ stand with his back
towarde the direction vhere the Palwo soldiers moved, He
would then throw a leaf from the Opok tree towards where
the soldiers moved, All the moldiers would then jump
over the leaf making sure that no part of their dody
touched 1t, All these were suvposed to enmure viectary
for the Palwo,

One surprising thing sbout the eonfliect between
Vupina and Ruyonga on the one hand, and Kabalega on the
other, is that while the two Palwo Rwhodi shared the same
aspirations and prepared for the war along the same line,
they never combined to launch a joint attack on Kabalega
as their fathers Kacope and Tsagara Md against Kamuresi at
the battle of Kokoitwa, Tt might have been a strategy to
keep Kabalega busy on two dlfferent fronts am thus weaken
him militarily,

It also seems that the boom in the ivory trade had
built up such eonfidence in both Ruyonga and Mupina that
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each of them thought he might de able to defeat Kabalega
without the assistance of the other, This was what made
Uzoigwe argue that "the nineteenth century 'Chope' (Palwo)
wars were important for their nuisance value in the sensge
that there appeared to be a lack of a concerted definite
objective, Because, although both MYupina and Ruyonga wanted
to drive Kebalega away, there was no agreegment as to who
would be king in the event of Kabalega's acfoat."I It de
not unlikely that had either Yupina and Ruyonga succeeded
against Kabalega, they would have had to confront each other
militarily in order to decide on who should be the Omukama,
The wealth acquired from the sale of ivory had boosted their
personality so much that nothing short of the Omukemaship
would have satisfied either of them,

Eilitary Fncounters: First Thase
It 42 difficult to Imow who first attacked, or was

first attacked by Kabalega, The Omulmma, just after defeat-
ing Ksbigumire, received threatening messages from the
Palwo, At this time, he was not reslly feeling secure on the

1. G. K. mi‘“' discussion, Makerere Uninﬂity.
Kampala, April 1972,



throne becsuse there were still pockets of Kabigumire's
supporters t0 deal with, Kabalega built his capital at
Masindi the boundary of the Bantu-speaking part of Bunyoro~
Kitara with Palwoland,’ It was from there tat he launched
and repulsed attacks from the Palwo. On the eve of the bdbattle,
the Palwo Rvhodi spoke to the soldiers asking them to fight
bravely and promised handsome reward for the soldiers in

the event of a successful outcome of the war, The military
confrontations were always preceded by intensive intelli-
gence activity, spies, and bridery being mich used, Once

the opposing armies met and battle was joined, it was to

a large extent a game of ghance, Oenerzl plans of attack

or combination of movements were seldom arranged, The leader
took up his position well in the rear usually near to a

very large tree suited for observation, then dattle started,
the action resolved itself into a series of isolated skirmishes,
The movements of brigades, division in mass, forcing of
position and platoon firing were uniknown, 7The troopys spread
themselves out anyhow and skimmished away until the men

and amgunition were exheusted,>

1, Nyammtura, gp.eit., p. 79.
2, PH,T, 23, 123, 128 as previously ecited,
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Ruyonga was said to have been informed of the intention
of Kabalega to attack him, His soldiers led by Olwal
waited for Kabalega's soldiers to rech Aleolu the place
where the chicken and goat ordered to be killed and buried
by Katigo as part of preparations for war had been hidden,
Thereafter Ruyonga's men confronted the Omukama's soldiers
and battle was joined, Both sides lost men, but Kabalega's
invading army was stopped from going beyond Aleolu, Some of
them were driven back and even pursued towards Masindi by
Ruyonga's soldiers but Ksbalega's Barusura® drove them back,

The success of Ruyonga's soldiers, in at least driving
Kabalega's soldiers away from thelr territory, can be
attributed to the bravery of the large numbers of the
Barusura who handled the guns very well, Ruyonga was said
to have been very happy at the performance of his soldiers,
As it was not a ‘war during which apprecisble quantity of
booty could be captured and given to the participants,
Ruyonga had t0 arrange a feast in honour of his warriors,
Those whose performance was exceptional, especially the
Langi, were given presents of women and slaves from the
Rwhot's household,?

Mupina also waited to be attacked by Kabalega, As
soon as the Omulama's troops entered Buguma where the

1, Should not be confused with "Abarusura" which was yet
to come into being, Barusura was the institution of
king's personal body guards,

2, P,H,T. 123, as previously cited.



chicken and the goat were hidden, Mypina's farees confronted
them, Kabalega's men were stopped from advancing into
Ruyonga's territory but unlike Ruyonga's men who pursued

the enemy, Mupina's men were satisfied with chasing Kabalega's
men out of Bugoma,’

The two confrontations described above were the
begiming of the series of battles between the Palwo and
Kabalega. Rwot Hupina was sald to have continued train-
ing his Barusura and Baragana in preparation for a surprise
effensive on Kabalega, Ruyonga, while also preparing for
another major encounter, was at the same time sponsoring
some intermittent reids on Kabalega's palace with the
assistance of the Langi.

However, the encounters had no vigible effect on the
political situation in Bunyoro-Kitara, The Palwo Rwhodi
must have undereatimated Kabalega's strength, and thought
that the Omukama would be defeated easily because he didn't
have gune, fowever, what Kabalega lacked in equipment, he
made up in men, The territory over which he exercised
authority was twice as big as Palwoland, he thus had a wider
scope for recruitment of soldiers, His army was therefore
larger than those of Ruyonga and NMypina, MNoreover the gune
used by the Palwo were such that could only shoot once,

1, PH,T. 45, as previously cited.



~ 16l -

This no dcubt slowed down the pace of their operations,
The Palwo found Kabalega more difficult then they had
earlier thought., On his part, the Onukama was brought
to realise the threat posed to his authority by the existonce
of Palwoland as a separate entity from Kitara, He thus
saw the need to bring the Palwo to submission, But the
military elashes did not end decisively, One thing was
clear to the combatants - they would have o fight again,

It is perhaps necessary to make some cbservations on
the Palwo and Kabalega with a view to understanding the
reasons behind some of Kabalega's policies during his reign.
The succession war between Ksbalega and Ksbigumire lasted
till around 1871, By the time Baker came back on his second
trip in 1872, the Omulama had had one encounter each with
Vupina end Ruyonga, The Omuksma had hardly settled on the
throne vhen he had to face the threat poised by the Falwo,
It 4s on this basis that the writer tends to see Kabalega's
war againet the Palwo more as an effort to consolidate his
position on the Kitara throne, than reetoring Kitara to ite
formmer glory by conquering the rebellious provinces.
Unlike Toro which did not question Kabalegn's claim to the
Omukamaship, the Falwo were questioning the walidity of
Kebalega's accession, The Palwo were as bad an enemy as
Kebigumire, They were not like the Batoro clamouring
for a separate existence dbut regarded themselves a part
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and parcel of the empire asserting thelr claim to its
headship, This was perhaps why Xabalega chose to deal with
then first before any other subject, Of course, he could
not have done otherwise, The mood of the Palwo was such
that if Xebalega had not attacked earlier, they would
have attecked him, Except for the Palwo, no "dissidemnt"
element in Bunyoro-XKitara threatened to fight Kabalega.
The Batoro for instance remained indifferent to develop-
mente in the capital, It was the Palwo who wanted the
throne of Kitara, Uzoigwe mentioned that Ruyonga and
Yupina established a stronghold of opposition in 'Chope’
(ralwolsnd), "Rebellion and threats of rebellion", he saiad,
"plagued the early years of Kabalega's reign" and he had
to develop a wide network of informants to keep a check
on potentisl rebels, particularly the Palwo,’ Thus, by
late 1871 or early 1872 when Kabalega was fighting the
Palwo, he had not felt secure on the throne. The succession
war wvas gtill on, It is not therefore surpricing that
when, in 1872, Beker came and informed iabalega of his
intention to establish a protectorate and introduce
legitimate commerce, Kabalega quickly told him that it
was uselecs to talk of such things until Ruyonga and
Wupina were killod.” This 1s quite understandsble because

1., Usoigwe, "Fabalegs snd the Making of a New Xitara® Joc. cth
2, 8, W, Baker, Mo' Vol. I, pp. 192-193.
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Kabalege had to feel safe on the throne hefore he could
discuss the promotion of trade in his domain, With the
ware against Ruyonga and Mupins yet to be concluded, and
with both eldes preparing to resume the offensive, Kabalega's
priority was how to feel safe on the thrame.

The recuring nature of the Palwo - Bunyoro wars seems
to have influenced a major development 4n the military and
political policy of Kabalega. He had perhaps hoped to
defeat the Palwo quickly and then carry out his ambition
of restoring Xitara to its former glory, But with the
Palvo proving difficult snd threatening to attack him,
¥abalega had to take measurés t0 contain them, Usoigwe
has mecribed Yabalega's militsary and politicel achisvements
to his ereatiomn of a new army called the Abarusura,
Unfortunstely, TUzoigwe did not suggest a date for the
establishment of the Abarusura, He, however, stated that
the new arfy evolved from Xamurasi's mards, "Barusura®,
end from the traditiomsl militery orginisation® - the
esgentisls of which were, like the Falwo's, provincial armies
supplied by the chiefs to the Xing for the purpose of
external aggression or defence of the coamtry, Perhaps
the only difference between the old and the new army was

s & KN, Ulo’-m, Reve
Pe ,c
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the fact of the latter's permanemnce, and use of modern
military equipments - breech loaders snd sniders, to
mention but a few, But coneidering the time when Kabalega
claghed with the Palwo, the idea of a permanent, regimented
and highly egquipped army could not have materialised even
if it hnd been conceived., Fabalega defeated Xabigumire in
1871, and thus became confirmed as the Omulama, By 1872
when Baker came, he had slready clashed with the Palwo,
The building of such an army as the Abarusura would
nornally take a much longer time, Noreover, Kabelega
equipped the ammy with ammunitions secured from Arad
traders from Zanzibar who took slaves, salt and iron
complements, Fmin Pashs who visited the interlacustrine
region in 1877, said that the first Arad to reach Kabalega's
capital did so in 1872,  Witherto, Wutesa of Buganda had
been preventing them from visiting Bunyoro, FRvidence
from Lango’ als0 show that vhen Omukema Ksbalega was
prosecuting the first in the serles of wars against Ruyongas
and Mupina he made use of recruits from the area, The
Langi vho fought for Xabalega did not stay behind in
Bunyoro and were not drafted into s permanent army,
They eame back t0 Lango, All these tend to suggest that

1. G, Schweinfuprth, ¥, Ratzel, R, ¥, Pelkin, end G, Hartlaub,
op.cit., p. 115,

2, Odyomo, gp.cit.
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at the time Kabalega firet fought apainst the Palwo, he
made use of the Obwesengese and hin father's 'Rarupura’,
e "Abarusnyn” had not hHeen ereanted,

Howaver, the mature of the conflict with the Palwo
seeme t0 have necessitated e stonding army, The first
encounters ended inconclusively, The Palwo were bent on
driving ¥abalege away and eovld attack at sny time,

Ruyonga end YWupine were therefore seen as formidsble enemies
against vhom the Omukmme should be prepared to fipht at
all time, This, perhape with other considerations, seems
to have dictated the need for a standing army, Vhen the
Arebes from thertoum came to éxchange guns with local
produets, the army became better equipped, It thus seems
thet the Prlvwo factor was one of the primry considerations
that brought the Abarusura, s permanent standing army into
being, As the etnrlict was prolonged, ¥abalega recruited
more men end epuipped them with puns suppliied by the Arabs
from 7angibar the mmber of vhon gradwlly ineressed in
his ocourt,

pot of Foreign Visitors on Palwo-Punyoro Wars

The political and military relations between the

Palwo and the Banyoro were, after the first round of battles,
affected by the activities of explorers who were in the

service of the Khedive Tsmail of zZgypt. Tt will be recalled tha
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the expedition by salim in 1839 which was eponsored by
Khedive Muhammad Ali of Egypt revealed the economic poten-
tialities of the southern Sudan, It also led to an interest
in the dlscovery of the source of the Nile, This was why
Speke and Orant, and later Samuel Baker visited the inter-
lacustrine region in the 1860s, Fhedive Ismail whose
interest was arocused by the reports of fpeke smd Grant
decided to send Baker on an expedition to put the inter-
lacustrine region under the control of Egypt, Baker passed
through Palwoland, met Kabalega the Omukama of Bunyoro-
Kitara at Masindi,

According to Baker,’ Kabalega aceepted the protection
of the Egyptian government but surprisingly refused to
fulfil his obligations to Baker a representative of
the suserain power, Vhether or not Kabalega accepted or
understood the implications of the protection offered by
Baker, is a difficult thing to say, However, a series of
ugly incidmnts arising from a mis-understanding of each other's
intentions strained aml embittered the relations between the

1. Yor details of Baker's relations with Omulmma Kabalega

s T, Baken o Vol, 11, ana
Ko 7. ey, wﬂm SeiBt 22 Ras e e

111'0. of Kabarega presented to the Uganda Society Library
by As J, ¥ason, Literary executor to Sir John CGray,
Uganda Museum, Kampala,
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Omakama and his guest, The situation arose in which Baker
had to confront the Omukama's forces militarily, At the battle
of Masindi Baker's troops were overpowered, and had to beat
a hasty retreat northwardes towamis Palwoland, Baker was
not unaware of the hostility between the Palwo and Xabalega.
Fortunately for him his arrival in Hoe, Ruyonga's head-
quarters,; was at & time vhen the Rwhot was plamning an attack
on Kabalega.

inxious to secure the support of ¥abalega's enemy,
Baker was very cautious and tolerant in his dealinge with
Ruyonga, He was full of pralse for the Palwo Rvhot, Baker
described him as "A handsome mah of about £ifty with ex-
ceedingly good marmers, He had none of the stiffness of
Yamiresi nor the exceedingly qauche beering of Kabdelega®,®
The common hostility to Xabalegn seems to have prepared
the grounds for an accord between Baker and Ruyonga, Baker
told the Rwhot of his intention to put the area under the
protection of the Rgyptian govermment and appoint
Ruyonga &8 the reprecentative of the "Porte', Ruyonga
declared that he would alwaye remain the representative
of the Fhedive's government dbut at the same time they
(he and Baker) must entar into a blood pnet without which

1, 8, W, Baker, on.,cit., p. 373.
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the people would not rige in his favour, Baker agreed,
The following morning, Baker, and some members of his
party went through the exchange of blood,

Baker discussed ways of improving Ruyonga's plan to
attack ¥abalega, The attack was, at Reker's request,
postponed because Baker had to leave for Patike the
following day, From Patiko, Baker sent a perty of troops
under A1 Oranati to join Ruyenga.l These soldters who eame
from the north to join Ruyonga were perhaps the ones vhom
the Palwo refer to as being brousht by Prince Nsale to
fight against the Banyoro for having killed his son at
the battle of Yokeitwa,? The battls of Mesindi in which
"Naale's" soldiers participated was, sccording to the Palwo,
the one in vhich Ksbalege nearly lost his 1life, Tuyonga's
army consisting of the Palwo and the Tangi vho came in large
mber (becsuse 6f Ruyonga's eppreciation of their role
in earlier encounters) snd Raker's irregnlars vere led by
¥onde, ong of the Baragana, We was aseisted by Kichomere,

a provincisl chief at Dyeng, They pounced on Kabalega

1. '. '. w. MO ". mm'

2., DNesale was one of the Palwo Babito princes, His son
was those killed when Kamurasi fought back to
defeat the Palwo at the battle of Kokoitwa, He was
:uwhmpe:nmduo?;tﬁ’br:utr?s

revenge on Banyoreo, P, H,T, y Zachia Jao,
Kinsgarana, 9/6/71.
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unexpectedly and the Omukamn in order to save his life had

to evacuate Masindi and move to Bugahya, The Palwo

soldiers looted the inhabitants of Nasindi snd plundered

the Omukama's palace, Kabalega had, however, taken alomng with

him, the instruments of smthority such as dmmns; deads, stools

and regalia, Thus, even though the Palwo occupied Masindi,

Ruyonga could not be legitimately proclaimed as king, The

ingtruments of authority had been removed and Kabalega was

even still alive, No other king can, acecording to the custam,

_ be proclaimed while the former holder still lived, This

was one of the reasons why the Palwo could not assume

authority after driving Kebalega away from the palace at

Kokoitwa, Just as KEamurasi regrouped and drove the Palwo

out of Xokoitwa, Kabalega aleo drove them out of Masindi,
Ruyonga's initisl victory can be explsined in terms

of the military benefite derived from the trade in ivory,

and the co<operation of the Langi emong whom the Rwhot

seemed to have had a tremendous amount of good will, The

contr ibution of Baker's troops must not be underestimated.

They were quite familier with the use of guns and other

military equipments, On Xabalega's part, his "Abarusura"

mnight just have been beginning to emerge, The encounter
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was in late 1872 or early 1873, The wlume of trade with
the Arabs from Zanzibar which fetched Kabalega the guns
with vhich he equipped his army must by then be low, decawse
it was just a year of Kabalega's accession, If by that
time, Xabalege had had a standing army, it geems improbable
that the ammy was s yet well equipped, Ruyonga, had many
advantages on his side, there was the help he received from
Baker vhose men vere well armed, e aleo has the advantage
of taking Ksbalega unawares, he was thue able to force
Kabalega to evacuate the palace, But it was one thing to
defeat an army on ite home ground, 1t wae snother to
oceupy the area permanentlys The latter task would be
more difficult to accomp}ish in Bunyoro where the populace
was hostile to Ruyenga's troops and remained loyal to their
xing,! They knew that Ksbalega's flight from the capital
was temporery aml was for strategic reasons, It is not |
curprising thet Xebalegs spent only a few days outsids iasindi
before he was able to drive the Palwo out of the palace, |
Baker was in contact with Ruyonga. ife was 80 much
excited by the news of ¥ebalega's withdrawal fraom Nasindd
that he 4id not wait to hear the aftermath, We went back
to Egypt and jJubilantly ammounced his success in declaring

1, A, J. Gray said Kabalega sessed that divini
wihich lda‘d%'nﬂ made him nr:ho :untr; over v
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an Tgyptian protectorate over the area and the replacement
of Kabalega with Ruyonge as the representative of the
Khedive, Ruyonga, Baker told the world, wes the new
Omuksma of Bunyoro Kitara.' However, Ruyonga did mot at
this or any other occasion obtain snything in the nature
of a permanent footing in the Bantu~-spesking part of
Bunyoro-Kitara, His sugcess in driving Kebalegs from the
throne was short-lived,

Baker had told the Khedive that the interlacustrine
region was under the protection of Egypt., The Forte in
an effort to0 consolidate Baker's 'schiovements' sent
Colonel Charles Gordon to the interlacustrine region, He
was asked to "enfarce his suthority over the lawless slave
traders and to secure & monopoly of all trade in the area",
Before Cordon's arrival in Bunyoro-Kitara, Ruyongea had sent
hin a message exprecsing his desire to be on friendly temms
with the Egyptien govemnent. Gordon, therefore, sent
Chaille Long $0 secure Ruyonga's friendship smd good will,
Long met Ruyonga and described the Palwo Rwhot as "exseedingly
well disposed towamds the government”. Iie msked Long 0
secure Egypt's support in his attempt to regain some of
his lands teken over by Kebalega, "There is something",

1. A, Je Gray, m
2, 4, B, M11, Colonel Oomdon in Centrsl Afriea, (London, 1881)

3. m uﬂ)wmmuw ‘
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gald Tong, "in the countensnce of Ruyongs vhich at onte

m-yromm-muw."l But beyond expressions of
respect end sympathy lLong mede no positive contribution

towvards the atteinment of Ruyonga's alm,
was 2lso sent £0 Ruyonga and was also impressed.

men however discovered that Baker's claim that Ruyonga had
deponed Xabalega was false, John Gray, quoting Tdnant,
said, "They found that Ruyonga was dut a druised reed who
eould not possibly hope to supplant ¥ebalesa®.? uch of
the territory through which they had to pass had until
recently belonged to Fuyonga but had sinece been wrested
from him by Xabalega, Perhaps with three years of trade
with the Zangibar Apebd, Kebalega was beconing more
powerful than before., The combined Paker - Ruyonga attack
was the nearest the Palwo went to unseating xebnop.’ After
that, Kobalega began to have the upper hand,

Tt should be remembered that Ruyongs was not the only

Palwo opponent Kabalega had, lupina the son of Xachope

had earlier fought Ksbalega .h He was however not as involved

Tinent Rellefond
These two

1.
2.
3.

b4,

Cheille m. m.’ P 77-

Gray, on.cit.

Though he was shortly afterwards forced to evacuate
the throne by Gordon who hed hoped to0 replace him with
Inuu' it was 2 war fought solely by Gordon, even
vupina's men 2id not take part in the war,

Pauole Ochewm, PM,T. 45, Kyesmnywa 14/6/71,

— -
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with foreign clements as Ruyonga .1 fiis attacks on EKabalega
were in league with the Langl, It was Palwo men who formed
the bulk of his army,

After Linant had met Ruyonga, he moved westwards and
came across Mupina, There he found two or threc thousand
Langi camped opposite to Mupine, They had just returned
from a raid in Mupina's name into Bunyoro,  They claimed that
they had killed a lot of people, taken @ lot of cattle and
made prisoners of many women and children including among
others, a sister of Ksbalega, l!upine was persuaded to senmd a
representative to Linant's camp snd recognise Egyptian autho-
rity, Considering the amount of territory under Wupima's
control, Linant felt that Mupina was preferable to Ruyonga
when it came t0 the question of replacing Kabalega on the
throne, Gordon agreed and it was plamned to send a nunber of
soldiers to Mupina to aid him in his wars against Kabalega., A
fort was to De built in Mupina's territory from vhere the
campaign to stemp out the slave trade would be launched,

Thie fort, along with the garrison which Baker had earlier
on established with Ruyonga at Fovotuz would, it was hoped

1, This was probabdly bomu wupina's territory 414 not
lie along the traveller's route,

2, Baker during his nooaﬂvld.c left a garrison of troope
at Fowelrn nenr Ruyonga's palace to maintasin contact
with Fatiko and Cairo, He seems to have taken the
noldiers with him, This 4s vhy he had to reach Patiko
before he could send soldiers to help Ruyonga
KXabalega, It seems that Gordon replaced the men when
he came back,
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1ink the equitorial region with the Sudsn and check the
traffic in slaves.

Gordon inherited Baker's prejudices ageinst Kabalega.
He felt that Kebalega must be removed before the authority
of the Khedive could de established in the interlacustiine
region, Gordon therefore sought to remove the Omukeama snd
replace him with Wupina, With Mupina as the Omikenma,
Gordon thought that he would be able t0 attain his objective
of establishing an Rgyptian monopoly of trade in the
interlacustrine region, Gordon's interest in Wupina was
for selfish reasons,

However, the plan to attack Kabalega through MNupina
never materdalised, 'Nier Ager', the officer sent, did not
go to Mupina's palace, Me alleged that "upina aid not
want to have troops with him, BSeeing that all his efforts
to 1iquidate Ksbalega indirectly were mot succeeding,’
Cordon devided to move to Masindi, attack and kill Kabalega
and then replace him with Fupina, Ksbalega got to know of
Cordon's plan and withdrew from Masindi, taking his instru-
ments of muthority with him, Gordon did not find any

1, Gray, 9p.cit.
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opposition in Masindi but killed many of Kabalegn's
men, Besides, nothing was achieved in terms of the veplace-
ment of ¥abalega with Mupina or the establishment of forts,
Kabalega later re-occupied his capital; Cordon was so0
frustrated that when in 1876 he left for Fhartoum he
pronised never to return to the interlacustrine roc!tm.1

Another visitor 6 the lake region was ©ain Pasha,>
e wae in 1876 sent to Rubaga to secure the release of
gyptien troops held by the Kabaka of Pugands,” On the
completion of the task, "min left for Nruli from wvhere he
left for Mparo to meet Ksbalegs, The Omukama" defended

1, Gray, m.

2, HWis real name was Rduard Schnitzer. TFor details of
his vieit see Scweinfurth, et al, gp,cit., A. R, Dunbar,
op.eit., p. 66,

3. In an effort to secure Lake Victoria for the Xhedive,

soldiers from Nu + B8ee A, J, Gpay "Mutesa of Buganda",
Ugands Journal, Vol.l, Wo, 1, 1934. :

4, Tor detalls see G. Ratmel, 0, Schweinfurth and
G, Hartlaub, m.. PP h‘-‘ﬁ.
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himself against Baker's allegations and explained the
reason for his wars ageinst Ruyonga and Yupina, Kabalega
also succeeded in convineing ®min Pasha that he was not
opposed to the Egyptian government's intentiom of declaring
a protectorate over the interlacustrine region, In return,
"min Pacha promised to effect the withdrawal of Fgyptian
suppert for Ruyonga and hnhl.l

By 1878, vhen Pmin visited Kabalega, the Omukama seemed
to have made up for all the handicape he had vis-a-vis the
Palwe at the beginning of the conflict, By 1871, the trade
with the Arabs and Basombwa made Ruyonga and Mupina econo-
micelly and militerily equipped to feel confidsmt of a
military victory over Kabalega, But by the time Emin came,
Kabplega had been able to establish similer contacts with
the Arabs from Zsngibar snd increased his economic and
mlitary strength,’ mmin Pasha deseribes how the "Wagemda
and Wanyoro brought commerce to & more advanced state of
developnent® and attributes it to the trading expeditions
of the Arobs from Zansibar, An extensive square of irregu-
lar shape was said to lie behind Ksbalega's palace, It was
there that commercial transactions were carried ocut, Slaves

1, Sehwanfurth & etal, 9p.eit., pp. 105-106,
2, Tvid. pp. 111112,
3. Ibdd,
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end ivory were the chief exports, Though Kabalega's terri-
tory was not rich in ivory, he wae sble to draw a large
part of his ivory from the Western Lengo dletriet, Alur,
and the southemn part of his kingdom, The sglaves snd ivory
were =old to the traders vho on their arrival had to pre-
sent half of their goods, especially guns, powder and lead
shots to the king,’ The Omulmma then arrenged in return,
anlequivalent amount of ivory and slaves, With the ammuni-
tion secured from the Arabs, Kabalega was able to equip
his amy, which, in the light of the fact that he had a bdbigger
territory from vhich to recruit was bigger than that of
the Palwo, Kabalega made the ammy into a pemanent standing
one, It was able to fight more efficiently than those of the
Palwo which was compesed mainly of individuals largely une
trained in the art of warfare mnd hurriedly recruited on the
proclamation of war,

One of the advantage which the Palwo initially had
over Kabalega was the support they were receiving from the
foreigners, Ruyonga fought Xabalega with the assistance of
fiamuel Baker, Oordon aleo attacked Kabalega and hoped to
replace him with Mupina, An immediate consequence of Emin's
vigit was a withdrawal of the Egyptian govemment support
for Ruyonga and Mupina, Though Rmin visited Ruyonga after
the interview with Kabalega, he plainly told the Palwo

1, 7Thia,
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Rwhot that the soldiers he was sending to Mruli through
Ruyonga's territory were not to raid Kabalege but to occupy
Mrull so as to have a point of connection with the ivory
trade. Ruyonga's relations with Emin were not as friendly
as they had been with previous representatives of the
Khedive, Ruyonge for instence, had casuse to complain against
the choice of the leader of the troops brought by Fmin to
his territory,’ Neither was mmin impresssd by Ruyongs whom
he described as being "rather more stupid than he used to
be owing to his indulgence in Mwenge and spirits"” a
striking contrast indeed to tributes paid to Ruyonga's
personality by Baker, &min Pasha also passed through Nupina's
territory, but beyond expressing adniration for Mupina's
friendliness, comportmént and sophistication, nothing was
done by mmin to further Wupina's interest against that of
Kabalega,
Nilitary mncounter: fecond Thase

The coming of "min Pasha seemed to be the beginning
of a new phese in Palwo - Panyoro rivelry. The Palwo had
censed to be on the offensive, The end of the Palwo alliance

1. A. 7. Gray, m.
2, MNwenge is local beer in Bunyoro-fitara,

« PBEmin deseribed Yupina as "the only negro gentleman
: T have known e Yutesa's me nminister ¥atikiro",

He was impressed the drees of MWupina's men and
their generosity.
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with the foreigneres appeared to have prepared the ground
for Kabalega's eventual victory, Though his Absrusura

was not yet as strong as it was on the eve of the coming of

the Mthh.l he was able to attempt an attack on Toro as
part of the plan to reconguer itara's rebellious pro-
vinces.’ Thereafter, he began the offensive o the Palwo,
His men marched towards Koc and though they were driven
back, the loss suffered by Ruyonga's men was more than
they had ever experiemnced, relwo informants attribute the
loss to the fact that Ruyonga 4id not get mufficient
warning to plan adequately for the war, Most of his Langl
friends did not participate, The Rvhot didn't even have
time to consult Kambeja and perform the necessary pre-war
rituals,’

The Omikama, while being happy at the loss suffered
by Ruyonga's men, was not satisfied that the Palwo Rwhot
wae 6ti1ll alive;, The very fact of Ruyonga's continued
existence contimied to haunt Kabalega, The Omukama then
sought other means of killing his enemy, He conspired with
one of Ruyonga's men to give him poisoned oil, 4is soon as

1. By then he had conscripted the famous Palwo warriors
!:gm and Ruyonga's Barusura and Baragana into his
rusure .

2, Uszolgwe, "Kabalogs and the ¥Making of a New Kitara"
30 “.H.Ta 128 a8 mﬂmh dm.
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the Palwo Rvhot tasted the oil, he dled,’ Ruyonga's death
coincided with the evacuation of the Egyntimn positions
in Bunyoro in 1889,°

Following Ruyonga's death, many of his Merusura and
Raregana flocked to Mupina to seek protection,  Yupina's
strength wo much reinforeed,” Tt wes tham that he
leunched serd es of military sttacks on Kabalega, The
Omukema suceesefully repulred Ifupine's attacke ond later
launched a night attack on the Palwo during which Mupina's
pelace was nearly o.ﬁrd.“ Mupina had to escape to
Yukimere in Lango yhere he dled shortiy afterwards, The
death of Mupina marked the end of the attempt of the
Palwvo to regain their privileged position in Punyoro-Kitara,
Ksbalega established his auwthority over them, It remains
to sce how they fared under the man to whon for twelve years
they constituted the greatest intemsl prddlen,

1. PJ.TV 85, Pulagio Oyundu gnd Yerre Katulikire 31/7/71.
2, A7, Oray, gD.Sit.

3.  P,H.T, 85, as previously cited.

L. Ivia,
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After the death of Mupina, XKabalega took measures

to reassert his suthority over the Palwo and guard against
a possible re-occurence of their insurrection, ¥e had 1
succeeded in doing this before Africa was partitioned, |
During the partition, Bunyoro came under the British sphere
of influence, It was later conguered and a British colonial
administration was established, This means that from the
death of Mupina until their total dlsintegration, the Palwo
had two suceessive masters: Kasbalega and the British,

Palwoland Under Kabalegs

Immediately after Kabalega learnt of the death of Mupina,
he sent Katongole a leading member of the Abarusura to
m'ohuunnm.l Katongole was accompanied by a
company of the Abarusura to take care of any pocket of re-
sistance t0 the Omukama's authority, The Palwo daid not,
however, offer any resistance to Katongole, They submitted
to the Omulmma's suthority and offered Katongole the respect
due to a king's representative., The Palwo had to do this
because they seemed to have had no dther choice in the
circumstance, The death of their Rwhodi seemed to have i

1, P.H.T, 45 as previously cited, ‘
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resulted in a loss of morale, Much as they felt strongly
about their claim to the throne of Kitars, the loss of
Ruyenga and Mypina who had been championing their cause
seemed to have compelled a resignation to fate, Hence no
single voice or action was raised againet Katomgole.

The appointment of Katongole, a Murusura, as saga chief
wvas cne of the measures taken by the Omukama to prevent
further rebellion against his authority, Kabalega had
broken with the practice of appointing RBabito princes as
the Omukama's representatives in the vad.uou.l Incumbente
of such postes for example, Kacope and Isagara, had hitherto
been using their position and royal blood to undermine the
Omukama's suthority by creating self-ruled empires out of
the provinces,’ Kabalega not only appointed commoners but
made sure that even the commoners did not stay for too long
in the provinces, They were for most of the time supposed

1, Kabalega's experience with the Palwo was the reason
for this major change of policy, -sSee tura,
2R.citer P. 1208,

2, It was not only the Palwo who did this, Kasoro used his
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to be in the Omkama's palace and vieit thelr territories
only when the occasion demanded i1t, The idea was to
prevent them from building loeal following which might be
used against the Omukama, The day-to-day administration was
left in the hande of the loecal rulers appointed by the people,
In Palwoland, the Jaghi were allowed to contimue muling
the chiefdoms but made to realise that they had got a new
master in the person of Kabalega, They were directly
regponsible to Katongole who served as & link between them
and the Omukama,

The Palwo were not slow in reconciling themselves to
the fact that an end had come to their hope of restoring their
privileged position in Punyoro-Kitara empire. The tributes
hitherto paid to Wypina and Ruyongs were forwmrded to
Katongole, During harvests, tributes were also sent to
Kabalega through Katongole, ILike the other inhabitents
of Punyoro-Kitara empire, the Palwo were thenceforth
compelled to absent themselves fram thelr farms vhenever
the Omikams felt sick or indisposed,’ A1 these messures
were proofs of their aceceptance of ¥abalega's suzerainty,
The importance of the empango festival has been mentioned
earlier, Absence of the representatives of a province was
regarded as a eign of rebellion.against the Omuksma, Ever

1, Odero and Maria m’ PH.T, u' K.i.mnm. 6m.
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since the time of Kacope and Isagara, c¢,1830-1860 the
Palwo had not been attending the festival, With the death
of Vupina and the sassumption of authoriiy by Katongole,
the Palwo resumed attendance at the Omuksma's court during
the empango, It took not less than two months t0 prepare
for the ammual feetival, Katongole informed the Jaghi who
in tumn informed the clan heade through the Batongole chiefs,
The e¢lan heads were urged to collect food atuffe and other
articles as present for the Omukanma, The ¢lan heads also
selected three people including themselves as clan repre-
sentatives, All the clan represéntatives were then assembled
in the Jeghi's place and fyrom among them, “"individusls of
eufficiently good comportment to enter the Omukama's )alm""
were chosen t0 represent the chiefdoms, These chiefdom
representatives which included the Jaghi constitute the Palwo
official delegation to the empango festival, Kabalega's
centralizetion policy was such that even holders of minor
offices had to be personally introduced to him before their
appointments could be deemed confirmed, Such new appointees,
if any, nnmh;mu.ammmmmnuu.
Feaded by Katongole,” the official delegation was accompanied
by a large number of men who did some menial duties in the

1, Ibia,
2, TIbid,
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course of the journey to the eapitel, rome of them, usually
slaves, carried the tributes meant to be given to the
Omukama, Others moved in advence of the official delegation
to prepare camps vhere members of the delegation passed
the nights, Katongole, a persanal representative of the
Omukana, was not supposed to trek; he had to e carried all
the way from Palwoland to the Omukema's palace, Amid
singing and druming, the Palwo treked for three dayes to
Kabalega's palace, On their arrivel at the Omukeama's
court the Palwo used to move into the tent reserved for
them, Thereafter, the seven-day celebrations began, Af'ter
the celebrations, the Omukama engaged in routine consultations
with members of the official delegations briefing them on
wars to be fought, amd the arrangements to be made, He also
confirmed appointments made in the provinces and conferred
honoure on outetending inddviduale.®

Apart from ensuring the presense of the Pelwo at the
Omukana 't court and forwarding tributes to Kabalega,
Katongole is also remembered for having organised the
enigration of a large nunber of Palwo Barusura and theipr
fomilies to the Omukmma's pelace at Bugshya, KXabalega's
motive in ordering the emigration is not clear, Cfome
informants said that he wns anticipating the attack of the

1, 7Tbvia,
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British end therefore saw the need to strengthen his ax'-y.1

Others believe that in epite of the Palwo's payment of
tribute, the Omulmma was afraid of their military potential
and thought that the Palwo might plan a surprise lttuk.a
vhatever might have been the motive, Yupina and Ruyonga's
Barusura were rounded up and taken to Bugahya, On their
arrival, the Omulama was said to have beheaded Wupina's
well known military commanders and conseripted many of the
Palwo warriors into tle Abarusura, The remeining warriors
and their families were settled in the valley of Nuseija
Nulkuru hill, There, the Palwo encountered considersble
amount of hardship, The area was 80 barren that even the
maximum effort in faming could not yleld any appreciable
quantity of foodstuff, Kabalega secemed to have realised
thie, hence he asked the Bagahyn to bring foodstuffs to

the Palwo,” The supply fell ghort of what the Palwo needed,
Some lions lived on the hill overlooking the valley where
the Palwo were settled and for a long time, the Palwo who

had beéen deprived of their guns were easy prey for the animals, |

1, PHT. 38, Zacharish Manyuru, Kiroko /71,
P.H:'r. 36: Petror Owor, K!!'O{D. 28/5771’1:/5

2, PH,T. 55, Okelo Wange, Kirwala, 25/6/71,
3. Tbia,
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Later on Kabalega ordered the shooting of the animals,

It was while some of the Palwo were still in Kabalega's
custody in Bugahye that Rwhita Rachope, the worst famine
in Palwo history, occured. Opinions differ as to what was
directly responsible for the famine, though they all 1link
Eatigo sand Kabalega with 1t, A group of informants say
Kebalega was aware of the support given by Eatigo to Mupina
and Ruyonga. When Kabalega succeeded in defeating them, he
went and insulted Ketigo's Kibandwa, He sent to the Kibandwa
presents that were contemptuous in ron." These were ashes,
coffee fruits and waste prodmts, It wae in retaliation
that Katigo brought excessive sunshine on Bunyoro-Kitara.
Another group say that 'Ochien', a cow belonging to Katigo,
was captured by Kebalega's men in retaliation for the Juok's
support for Kabalega's rivals,” Imediately this cow was
slaughtered; an outbreak of famine occurred, Others say
that Katige's Kibandwa who was then living at Wavbroya was
taken to Bugahya and while theare, the cow was stolen,

1, PuH,T, 27, Zachariah Manyuru, Kiroko, 27/4/71.
PH.T, 41, Zachia Jao, Kinagarana, 3/6/71,

2, P H T, 87, Mays, Bweyale, 2/8/71.
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Katigo in retalistion brought famine,” While it is possible
that Katizo had to do with the famine, it aleo seems that
the sixteen years of military confrontations 1871-1887
during which not only was the productive sector of the
population killed, but in addition, attention was diverted
from farming, was enough to cause an acute shortage of food,
Thus Rwhita Rachope might have been caused by war and
diesatisfaction by Katigo, However, as & result, all the
crops dried up and people had nothiny to feed upon, The
rPalwo, especially those living in Pugahya, died in great
numbers, Those vho remained in their territory resorted
to eating the roots of bansna dbut the scanty supply could
not keep pace with demand, In desperation, some of the
Palwo gave their childrén in return for guantities of food
with vhich to save the lives of other menmbers of the family,
For some time, those wvho had been hoarding food experienced
a period of boom, They could sell food on return for
children, Oanyi had to sell his daughter to Olobe in Pajao
for & bag of millet which sustained him for some ti.lo.2 The
Alur having heard wvhat was happening in Palwoland brought
food stuffe to exchange for c¢hildren, Nany of the Palwo died,

1, P.H.T, 83, Bulasio Oyundu and ¥Werre, Katulikire
2‘/7/71 ’ ’ ’

2, PH,T. 41, as previously cited.,
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But, apart from dying in great numbers there occurred an
outbreask of small pox epidemic among the Palwo at Bugahya,
Fearing the possidility of the epidemic affecting the
Banyoro, Kesbalega decided to send the surviving Palwo at
Bugahya back to their territory. ©Some of their people how-
ever managed to remain behind in Bugshya, Descendants of
such individuals like Okele of Duchua elsn, Otim of Dugara,
Odonso of Dakwor now claim Bugshya (Nyore) eitizenship,>

It ies pomsible to see Kabalega's evacustion of the
Palwo to Buhahya and their treatment there as a reprisal
for their support to his rivals, In fact, descendants> of
members of the Barusurs sed Fabalega as a wicked hlood-
thirsty tyrant who seeméd to have derived satisfaction in
making people suffer, They believe that there was no need
for Xabalega t0 ask the Barusura to move t0 Pugahya and
settle them on a place where there was no food and which
made them vilnerable to attack by lions, It may be true
that there was an element of vengeance in Xabalega's action,
At the same time, however, therc was the fact that the Falwo,
though they were finally beaten, had demonstrated their
valour, and the logical thing for a king like Kabalega to

1, TIbia,

2. e.g. Pauolo Ochewa, P,H,T, 45, as previously cited;
and Maya, P, H.,T. 87, as previously cited,
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do was t0 conseript them into his army in order to be able
t0 execute hie internal policy of reviving the lost glory
of Witara, Kabalega did not ask all the Palwo to move to
Pugahya, he was only coneerned with the Parusura vhich
formed as 1t were the equivalent of his Abarusura,

Regardless of what the descendants of the Barusura
think, majority of the Palwo informants see the other side
of Xabalegn.' They admit that though he fought and defeated
them, he 4id nothing to punish them for their role in the
struggle between Mupina and Ruyonga &nd himself, The Barusura
formed such a negligidble part of the population that the
treatment meted to them did not condlition the opinion of
the average Palwo man, Moreover memberchip of the Barusura
was not exclusive to the Palwo, Any brave man regardless
of his origin could become a 'Murusura', Kesbalega's treatment
of the Barusura could not therefore be regarded as a
barometer of his feeling for the Palwo,

In faet, it seems as if Xobalega embarked on a policy
of wooing the Palwo snd trying to make them forget the
events of the previous decade, The reason for the outbreak

1. e,g. Pauolo Ochewa, P,H,T, 45, as puvtoul: cited,
oOkelo Yyange, PH,T. 63. as previously ecited,
zachia' Jao, P H.%, 41, as previoualy cited.
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of Rwhita Bachope hed been mentioned, The famine was said
to have stopped only after Xsbslegs made a present of seven
cows, seven goate, chicken, and many other articles to
Xatigo, Thie was tantamount to a recognition of XKatigo's
efficacy, and showed a willingnesa to care for the Palwo,
Thereafter Xsbalega was said to have been offering pgoats,
and chicken t0 Katigo during its snnual festival, This
was a major concension to the Palwo, The Omukema's
participation in the worship of their Jok gladdened their
heart and promoted their loyalty. VWoreover, Kabalega, after
the death of Mupina merried s Palwo womsn Achanda end
accorded her a better treatment than his other wives, The
Pelwo elaim that it was Achenda vho produced /Andrea mnun.‘
the Omukama crowned by the British after Kitahimbwe had been
deposed, Andrea Tuhaga also married a Pelwo woman who gave
birth to 8ir Tito Winyi, the last Omukama, ¥ven the
Banyoro do not refuse to admit that Tito Winyi was born of
a Palwo” yomen and that his real name was Owery (a Lwo nsme),

1, The authencity of this is doubted., At least RNyakatura
' Jcontests it, ©,H.,T, 130, John Nyakaturs, Hoimas, 25/10/71,

2, There 1s no doubt about this, even Nyakatura, PH,T. 130,
as ﬁoﬁmh cited, admits this, The Queen Mother was
otill alive at the time the writer was in Bunyoro, The
Banyoro say she is a Palwo woman,
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Kabalega's marriage to a Palwo woman was a master
stroke of diplomacy, It showed a willingness to compromise
with the aspirations of the Palwo, Nuch as he was not born
of a Palwo woman, hie merriage to a Palwo women gladdened
the hearts of the Palwo and made them feel that should the
son born to Kabalega by the Palwo woman become ‘king, vhat
they had faliled to achieve by war might perhaps be achieved
peacefully, Palwo informents are not sloy in mentioning
with pride that, in spite of their failure to wrest the
crovn militarily from the Bantu usurpers, the lagt Omukama
was born by a Palwo woman and thus of Lwo dlood,} e
important thing is that the marriage of Achanda to Kabalega
softened the hearts of the Palwo and they became more attached
and devoted to the Omukama, Usoigwe also recorded that
Kabalega in addition to his mother tongue Bentu learnt and
spoke I.'o.l This must have also impressed the Palwo, Finally,
the Omukama was said to have been paying particular attention
to the representatives of the Palwo at his court during the
empango festival, They were usually awarded gifts and
epecinlly taken care of, At one time, the ambition of
every Palwo man was t0 de included in the delegation to vieit
the Omukama because he knew he would bemefit from it,

1. The last Omukama, Sir Tito winyi, was deposed when
Uganda & the R licen Constitution in 1966,
This man died in 1971 was born by a Palwo woman,

2, G, N, Ugoigwe, "Kabalega and the Making of a New Kitara",
’OL crt
B
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Thusy by the time the British came, Kabalega had been
able to heal the sounds of the previous decade of war, The
Palwo had come to accept the Omukama as thelr ruler and hed
grown t0 like him, Little wonder that vhen the British came
end fought Kabalega they met with etiff oppoeition among
people regarded as his traditional enemies,

The Palwo in PBritich-Kshaleg Vare

The Anglo German agreement of 1888 ceded the control
of Ugenda to the British,’ Because of the reluctance of the
British government to assume direct control of her colonies,
the Imperial British East Afriea Company was by grant of
a royal charter given wide powers to govern the area
under concecsions or treaties obtained from loeal rulers,
The British were impressed by vhat they saw in Puganda
kingdom and sought to establish an administration there,

The Britich thus eultivated the friendship of the Bugenda

and judged other areas and people of Uganda by what the
Bugenda felt about them, Kabalega who had fought against
Wwanga in an effort to recover part of his territory lost

to Puganda was sn implacable enemy of the Buganda, He was
painted in lurid ecolours by the Kabaka, That apart, ever
since Baker's visit in 1872, the impression had gained ground
in Burope that Kabalega was an implacable enemy of civili-
gation and legitimate commerce, He was presented as a

1, John Flint, “The Wider Background to Partition and
Colonial Oecupation”, in Oliver and Mathews (eds)

History of Egst Africa, op.cit.
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person who understood no other langusge than that of
foree, Successive officers of the British Tast Afriea
Company therefore ceme in through Buganda end attacked
Ksbalega st Kafu, Mparo and Budongo,’ As Kabalega
puffered defeants in succession, he moved northwards towards
Palwoland, In every territory vhere Kebalega pifched his
tent, new recruits of sble-bodied men were made to re-
inforce the depleted ranks of his Abarasura, When in 1894
Kabalega began moving towards Rwampindo in Palwoland, Katongole
ordered a conseription of able-bodied men to fight againat
the th.z Oweny carried out the recruitment in Koe
while Okelo organised it in Pajao, Dakor took charge
of Kisoga, The new recruits were hurriedly trained and
camped at Rwampindo, (It is perhaps a tribute to Kabalega's
hold on his people that, in spite of their awareness that
the Omukama was being chased by superior forces, the
Palwo still aceorded him the honour and respect due to a
king, A palace was constructed for him at Rwampindo end
every morning the Palwo went there to pay homage, bringing
foodstuffs and cattle as a mark of loyslty and devotion,
The evenings were spent drumming, singing and dancing,
In preparation for the military encounter, Katongole, the
Jaghi, snd the senior merbers of the Barusura including

1, Marie de Kiewet Hemphill, “The British Sphere 1884~-1894"
u o:.!m and Mathews, (eds), History of Tast Africa

2, chharlah Manyuru, PH,T, 31, Kiroko, 19/4/71. L
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Jasi, the Omukema's son, trained the new recruits how to
handle the guns, The Palwo Datet also made more -pux-s.l
The British forces came later and the Palwo attempted to

use their Jmowledge of the topography of the area to their
advantage, They allowed the British to pass through
Rwampindo but before they got to river Toshi, the Palwo
encircled them and opened,fire, Though many of the British
goldiers were killed, the quality and guantity of the men and
ammunition proved the decisive factor, The Palwo were over-
powered and among those who lost their lives in the encounter
with the British were Ongwech; Dungwen, and Angwack.’
Kabalega escaped to Lango where he was finally captured
along with Nwanga by a force commanded by Rvatt, The

Kabaka and the Omukama were, in 1899, deported to Seychelles
island, Thereafter the British established their administra-
tion in Bunyoro district which included Palwo territory.

Palwo and Beitish Colomial Rule in Punyoro

By the time Kabalega was captured, Company rule had
been terminated, The British government had taken over the
task of asdministering the colonies, From August 1900
George Wilson was appointed collector for !!unyoro.l In

1, PJ,T. 40, Zachia Jao, Kinagarana, 2/6/71,
2, Thia,
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1901 a decision was made to introduce indirect rule in
Bunyoro, The dietrict was to be ruled through a system
of counties, sub-counties, and corresponding system of
chieftainships under king Xitahimbwa and assisted by a
court of local parliament, the Rukurato, In addition,
there were to be regular baraza, open air sudiences at
which public business was discussed and grievances heard,
George Wilson then invited s Mugenda, Jemusl Miti, to
come over to Punyoro with the title of sasa chief and
teach the Banyoro and the “alwo how 10 govern themselves,
By 1901, ¥iti divided Bunyoro into sagas, gombololas, and
mirukas, Of the ten faza chieftainships two were held by
the Benganda, Through ¥iti, many Bagenda found their way
into Bunyoro and served in various capacities like court
clerk, tax collectors, gombolols and or miruka chiefs, It
wae through these RBaganda and other Ranyoro chiefes, notably,
Bysbachwezi and Rwabudongo, that the PBritish carried out
ite administration of Bunyoro, The British govermment
instituted the collection of taxes, forbade the shooting
of elephants, constructed roads and public buildings and
organised courts® which adjudicated on all types of cases.

1, Tor details of British administration of Bunyoro, see
A, R, Dunbar, m.
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Though Kabalega was deported, the Palwo remained loyal to
him, and were thus hostile to the new administration, The
Omukama's attempt at reconciling with the Palwo seemed to
have succeeded s0 much that the Palwo came to hate all that
stood agrinst Kabalega, This, to some extent, explains the
attitude of the Palwo to the Colenial administration and
its Baganda agents,

¥oreover, in sdministering Bunyoro district, the British
govermment regarded and governed it as a conquered territory,
The Palwo and Bunyoro inhabitants were made to understand
that they were not like the Baganda who had a treaty with
the British government, The British were therefore free
to make such arrengements as they thought necessary without
caring for vhat the Palwo and the Banyoro felt. On 10th
¥areh 1900 as a result of the Uganda Amt.’ the
boundaries of Buganda were formally advanced to the Riveres
¥afu and Wkusi, areas inhabited by the Bantu of Bunyoro,
Thic was perhaps an acknowledgement of the help given by
the Baganda t0 the British in their wars against Kabalega,

1. A, R, Dunbar, gp.eit., p. 106,
2. Tvia,
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The British government had such to complain against
in Bunyoro dlstrict, There was the inefficiency and unco-
operative attitude of the Palwo and Banyoro chiefs who
refused t0 go far in carrying out government orders and
even flouted the law, The attitude of the peasantry did not
satiefy the British officials, Their response to taxation
and foreced labour was poor, Regulations vegarding the
shooting of elephants were not complied with, and the chiefs
especially those from Buganda failed to secure their good
will, let alone co-operation, At first the Palwo and the
Banyoro maintained a silent indifference, bordering on
non~-cooperation to the administration, ILater on their
reaction changed to one of hostility., The presence of
Baganda chiefs was the aspect of British rule most detested
by the Palwo and the RBanyoro, The climax of the Palwo and
Banyoro resistante to colonial rule was the outbreak of the
Tyangire rewit of 1906-1907,%
There were several reasons why the Falwo Joined the

Banyoro in organising the Ekyangire revolt, The Kihukya
and Xibanda countiee to which Palwoland was divided were

1, Feor 1s of the reaction of the to the
Ool.-qm‘ ™le, see 0, N, Uzoigwe, 'mmmmn 1907,
Passive Revwlt against British over rule" in
and Rovolt in Bunyoro-Kitara.
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administered by Baganda chiefs, Wika Fataki was in charge
of Kihukya while Antoni Xirube ruled Kibanda, Apart from
the fact that the Palwo, like the Banyoro, grew to hate the
Baganda for their collaboration with the British against
Kabalegs, the conduet of these particular individuals left
much to be desired, Milka Fataki was said to be awarding
the heaviest pemalty for the slightest offence. It vas
under the pretext of trying to collect taxes that he killed
nany of the Palwo in Kidopo, The reaction provoked by the
incident forced the colonisl adminiatration to conduet an
inquiry into the incident. e was aleo said to have brousht
in some Bagania as court clerks, These men forced people to
pay more for offences comnitted, Antoni Kirube® was even
worse, He forged people to dance before him, threatening to
lock up those who refused to do so, He even organised raids
on the inhabitants of his territory making use of the Langi,
Part of the goats, cattle, and farm products captured in such
raide were given to him, The British sdministration found
him guilty of illegally confiscating such property as goats
and farm products.

1, 0O, Henry, mut;ni%m;;‘un Commigsioner Masindi,
Report on Tour "Aecretarial Winute
Ugendn Archives nm{%.. Yo, 154, Hika Patexs weg '
absolved from guilt.

2 fron Geo: wileon collector of Bunyoro
* 30 Gatl 20/5/790k, Secreterial Himite Papes DEENAA
Archives mm. No. 1314,
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It was these morally debased individuals vho were
saddled with the responsidbility of executing the instruc-
tions of the Colonial government among the Palwo,  Colonia-
lism in iteelf was undesirable, Vhat made it more undesirable
for the Palwo was that its agents were from a group for
whom the Palwo had developed an aversion and who were
themselves of questionsble character, The Palwo thus saw
the Bagenda as symbolising all the evils of colonialiem
because it was through the Baganda chiefe that they learnt
of government regulations which went contrary to their
interests,

There were three réegulations which the Palwo largely
refused to comply with, These were the prohibition of the
shooting of elephante, payment of taxes and their con-
scription for work on roads and construecting publiec buildinge,
The colonisl administration, probebly in an effort to
conserve the elephante, directed that the chiefs could
grant permission to the Banyoro to shoot two elephants
on the payment of a fee of ten pomu.l To other inhabitants
of Bunyoro district who were not very close to where the

1, George Wilson to Harry Johnson, 23rd April 1901,
Pile A/12 item Fo, 13, Uganda Archives, Entebbe,
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elephants were found, the remlation did not mean muchj; byt
to the Palwo, whose lives were sometimes threatenmed dy the
elephants, the regulation was impossible to comply with,
The present lfurchison FPalls Nationsl Park in Uganda 1s located
right on the former Palwo ccunty of Kihukya, The animale
not only devoured their crops but sometimes killed their
children, The Palwo could not afford to wait and pay ten
pounds before they could shoot the elephants. Apart from
that, the Palwo had been making a lot of wealth from the
killing of the elerhants, In fact in the late nineteenth
century, shooting elephants was their most profitable
oceupation,’ vhen the Baginda chiefs informed the Palwo of
the govermment regulationg, the feeling was thet 1t was
the Baganda chief's who wanted to harm them,

Taxation was the aspect of colonialism hated most by
the Palwo, By 1904 Colonial rule was yet to be extended
to Acholi and Lango inhabited by the Lwo, The Palwo could
not understend why they should beasked to pay tax vhen
their fellow Two living in Acholi and Lengo were not
paying, ‘'hen confronted by tax collectors, the Palwo
escaped either into the bush or Lango and hid there, They

1, Bee chapter five above.
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sometimes physically assaulted the tex collectors, When
¥ilson visited the two Palwo counties, he reported that,

in Klhukya, "We found the people in great fear having heard
that I was coming, Many of them left thelr fapms and ran
off into the 'ooda"." He had to stay for a couple of days
in order to gain their confidence, He managed to evict
pronises of payment which were largely unfulfilled, Things
were even worse in Kibanda, WNost of them had moved thelr
goats, sheep and women to Lango on hearing that Wilson

wes coming., The chiefs could do nothing with them, Very
1ittle hut tax had been collected and when the chiefs asked
then they refused saying their friends in lLange do not pay.
"If the white mean triee to make them pay they will all go
to Lango",? wWilson felt that mot much could be achieved
until the hut tax was put to force in Lango,

Apart from the reluctance to pay, the procedure for
the eollection of tax was not such that would make for easy
eollection, Though the saga chiefs were supposed to
supervise collection in their areas, the village chiefs .ﬁo

1, George Wilson, Unyoro monthly R ts Peb, 10 1903 in
File A1l3 item Fo, 3, Uganda Archives Intebbe,

2, TIbid,
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really demanded the money from the people were unpaid
but allowed to exaet free labour from thelr subjects, This
privilege was often abused by the village chiefs, They
took a0 much away from their subjects, thus leaving them
with 11ttle or no time to0 work for the payment of tax,
€., ¥, Powler's suggeation that the village chiefs be paid some
portion of the ten per cent of collections being paid to
the Sese chiefs was not accepted,’ The result was that
even if the Palwo wanted to pay, the requirement of having
to work for the chiefe precluded them from doing =, Even
those who paid were without tickets. Some chiefs were
alleged to have deliberately withheld tickets and spent
money paid as taxes privately., This wagz because the
nasses were not aware of the importance of tickets as
proof of payment,- There was thus no way of differentiating
a tax payer from & mum.’

Thus, the first ten years of Coloniasl administration
brought g0 much stress on the Palvo as well as on the
Banyoro,  As in many other parts of Africa, reaction to
Colonial mle was often nanifested throwgh its agemts,
Appointed chiefs were made the scape goat for the evils
of colonialism, In Bunyoro district, the Bagands chiefs

ook "o g e R S,
1908, Pile tem No, 6, ves ntebbe,

2, TIbia,
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were seen as the twin partners of the Ruropean who combined
to bring hardship on the people, The perconal conduct of
the Bagenda chiefs and officials scemed to have lent weight
to this view, The feeling all ovor Bunyoro district was
that once the Baganda were removed there would be a change
for the better,
his was the motive that {nepired tlie itkyangire revolt

of 1906-1907, Palwo and Banyoro Chiefs, énd other leading
individuals elamoured for the removal of the Daganda and
even laild plans for the murder of @ll the Bagenda should
they not be removed, At open aily conferences, the Banyoro
end Palwo made known their dstermination to get rid of the
Baganda and backed the demend with refusal to pay taxes,
"pominent Palwo individuals like Vernaso Onyango, Ongwech
ILachara, end Olobo Joined Byabachwezl who spearheaded the
protest, to asgk for the removal of the Baganda, Though
many of them werc srreeted and imprisoned, the Colonial
government did not appoint Baganda as saga chiefs in
Punyoro af'ter the revelt and whenever any Muganda chief
or official was found guilty he was removed and replaced
with an Mmo." /ntoni Firube wae for instance

1. For details about the organisatieon and consequences
Wr- revolt see G, N, Usoigwe, Revolution
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removed and replaced with Ruyonga's son,

The removal of some Bagenda officials did not however
make the Palwo more amenable to Colomial wule, Their tax
returne was still poor and they refused to comply with re~
gulations prohidbiting the shooting of elephants, As late
a8 1910 The Assistant District Commissiner for Masindi
described them as an extremely truculent lot,’ Palvoland
was described as an extremely difficult section of the
district to deal with, Vhen as & result of the spread of
eleeping sickness to ™alwolend from other parts of Ugands,
it became necessary to evict the Palwo from their homeland,
fnowles; the Provinecisl Commissioner for Northern Province,
called for csution in the conduct of their eviction because
they are one of the wildest tribes in the mtutﬂh"..
Knowles warning was timely. The evietion of the Palwo did
not prove an easy task as will be seen presently, The
Colonial goyornmment encountered the same Aifficulty in
evieting other groups who were affected by the epidemie,

1, Revort on Asgistant District Commiseioner
luiuin 31/7/1'10. Snro{crul Minute Paper, No, 1314

Tvia,

2. mtamm-umammm
soontebb.mu ¥inute Paper Yo, 131k, Uganda Archives
™t .
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The disense wae said to have been browht by the Sudanese
troops of ¥min Pasha vhom Lugard transported to Kampala
to join the forces of the Imperisl British East Afrieca
Company.’ Tt hes also been suggested that the disease
was introduced by the Arabs from Khartoum, and Zanzibar
who visited Buganda in the 1880's and settled on the
Forthern shores of Lake Victoria in Buganda and Busoga,
From whichever direction the disease came, by 1902 how to

deal with sleeping sicimess had become an important aspect

of administrative policy in Ugande and a major concern

of scientiste in Britain, Peries of Commissions were
appointed to deal with the epidemic and Yhydham wae appointed
officer in charge of sleeping sickness administrative measures,
In a1l the areas where the epidemic occurred the inhabitants
were removed and sent to tee tse free areas, This was exactly
what happened to the Palwo when they experienced the epidemic,

1, Jarvey

CGorden Soff,
Administratl Vi w5

Univeraitiy of Syracuse U,3.A, 1971, Intrc

was quot the reasons advanced by the Uganda

Frotectorate Government,

2, Ipid, ooff's personal suggestion,
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Though it might have existed esrlier in Palwolsnd, the
Protectorate Government did not begin to notice the
sleeping sickness epidenmic until 1903, dererally known
as Mongotta, sleeping sickness mede i1ts victinms to develop
protruding bellies and insetlable arpetite later on, they
collapsed and died., The Kibandwa proved incapable of
saving the victims who on realising that they had been
affected by ¥Mongotta resigned themeelves to death, “When
Fauolo Ochewa went to collect tax in Pmsere village in
Fisona seven people died in his presence on the same dn,r.1
The chiefs brought news of the outbreak of the disease to
the attention of the distirdet sdministration, This led
to an investigation cofifucted by Colonel Thydhem,? Tt
was revealed thet ningty per cent of the pecple slong the
Juka ard Toshi Rivers had died, In nany villages,
specific date were not avallable, but many pecople were
eald to haye-died, It wae only Sawir, and Xoe counties
in Kivapda that were not seriously affected, All the
chiefdoms in ¥ihulyya county amd "isoga and Fiscna in
Zibands were seriously dcopleted by the épidemic, Vvhydham
belleved that it was necessary to remove all the survivors

1, 7P.H,T, 51, Pauolo Ochews, Kyegsnywa, 17/6/71.
2. foff, op.eit,
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in the affected area, vhydhan's suggestions were examined
by Dr, G, C, Stratham, Wedical Officer in Masindi, He
counselled with administrative officers as well as the Omukama
and it was agreed that the Palwo should be moved, At first,
it was suggested that Butobe be made the site for the
re-settlement of the Palwo, It was a fertile area, fly-free,
and had an equitable supply of water, The Dmikama, however,
felt that Putobe was too small to mccommodate the Palwo,
The Omumma then recommended Kigumbe and Masindi port,
These two arsas were situated on the mein road, had an
adequate supply of water, Besides, the settlement of the
Palwo in these areas would provide a permsnent source of
labour for road maintenance, It was hoped that it would

be ensier to get the Palwo to work on the roads unlike in
the former areans vhere they used to hide in the woods,
Plane for the removal of the Palwo were then laid down,

The plan would have been carried out in Jenuary 1911 dut
had to be postponed till July in order to allow for the
collection of food with which to feed the migrating Palwo,
It was further agreed that the Palwo be granted a two-year
period of exemption from taxation as a compensation for the
inconveniences involved in the evietion,’

1, wn«mmautammuummnmu.-
nent of the Palwo are available in Soff,
sunurhl Minute Paper, No, 131l, Uganda m.
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During the preparatory discussions, the Palwo were not
informed of thelr impending relocation, It was not until
Jonuary 1911 that the chiefs told them, Their reaction
was one of disagreement snd hostility to all those connected
with the plamned eviction, The reasons advanced did not
satisfy them, Mongotta, the Palwo said;, was just like any
of the epidemics thay had experienced from the time they
had been living along the Nile, Since the previous epidemics
did not last long, the Palwo believed that Nongotta was
also going to be of short duration, There was no need to
drive them away from a place regarded as their homeland
because of a disease the effepct of which they felt would
heve been temporary,® The mttempt of the colonial government
to compensate them for leaving their territory was not
appreciated, The two-years period of exemption from taxation
aid not satisfy them, Yhen the period elapsed, the Palwo
argued, they would be asked to resume paying taxes, The
Palwo were opposed to texation in prineiple, Aster all,
their Two brothers in Acholl and Lango were not paying
taxes at that time, The Nile basin vhich they had been
irhebiting provided an adequate supply of water, Tish,
fertile poll, and cheap meat, XNo other areas, the Palwo
rightly felt, could provide such adventages, Majority of
the Palwo thus refused to leave their territory and the
agents of the colonial administration were compelled to

1, Zacharish Manyurm, PH,T, 38, Kiroko, 31/5/71.
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burn thdrhnt-.l It was only after then that the Palwo
began to trek to Kigumba,

The trek from their territory to Kigumba end its
environs was said to have lasted three days and practically
all those who had been affected by longotta before the start
of the journey dled, The Palwo were forced to leave the
File basin but the majority of them Aid mot go to Kigumba
and VMasindi as directed by the colonial administration,
The Colonial Government made sure that they (the Palwo)
left the sleeping sickness area, but did not exerclise
enough care to ensure that they went to the areas newly
alloted to them, Thus, while same of them were found in
Kiryandongo end some aress of Bruli, majority of them went
to Minakulu, gave up their Palwo identity, and regarded
themselves as Acholi and Langi, not to mention their
descendants,

The Palwo chose to go to Minakulu instead of Kigumba
for various reasms, Pirst, Kigumba was inhabited by the
Banyoro whose language many of the Palwo did not understand,
If they had to leave their homeland, they preferred to
stay with their Lwo brothers in Minalmlu who spoke the same
language with them, Secondly, many of the Palwo had clan
members in Winakulu, and when it became clear that the Palwo

1. Tvia,
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would have to leave their territory, the inhabitants of
¥inakulu invited their clans men to come and stay with
them, One factor vhich heightened the seale of movement

to VWinakulu was that the Palwo moved in related clan
groups.® Once a clan happened to be invited to Minslkulu,
all other related clans went with it, For instance, when
Oweny Okidi went to Minakulu to meet Odongo Aroko, Dadao
Bella, the nephew of Owney Okidi, led his MNusanguyi clan to
follow Oweny, 00 also 4id Owor Oteke of Dukwonge clan,

an in-law of Dedao Bella,” Tiimly, by 1911 Acholi and Lange
were yet to come under colonial rule, Consequently, the
inhabitants were not paying taxes, This proved attractive
to the Palwo who had all the while been demonetrating

their reluctance to pay taxes, Xven those who went to
Kigurba had t6 run dack to Ninalmlu when the agents of

the Colonial administration compelled them to work on the

3 Thus meny ralwo left the Mile basin and went to
Winakulu, With these men giving up their Palwo identity
the Palwo are today very small in population,

ronds,

; 8 Otheu- P,H,T. 37 Gombolola Headquarters,
Kiryandongo, 29/5/71.

2., Inia,
3. nid.
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The outbreak of the sleeping sickmess was one of the
incidents which secattered and reduced the population of

the Palwo, More than Kabalegn's eviction of the soldiers

%0 Bugahyn, and the cutbreak of Rvhita Bachope, the epidemic,
affected a large proportion of Palwo population, The con-
sequent eviction of the ™lwo fram Kihulkya turned Palwoland
vhich Craszolara called the "Big Lwoo uttlmnt'.l into a
mere shadow of its former self in terms of populatien,

1, Oraszsolara, The Lwoo Part I, p. 78



NCLUSIO
During the five centuries covered by this work, the Palwo

made remarkable impact on the history of Kitara empire and
beyond it. This branch of the Lwo who settled in Northern
Bunyoro became a force to be reckoned with in Uganda when they
overthrew the Bacwezi dynasty and estsblished themselves as

rulers in the empire of Kitara. Royal princes of the Palwo’ q

Babito dynasty went to establish kingdoms in other parts of !

Uganda, thus making the Palwo an important element in state

formation in Uganda. -
However, the attempt of the Palwo to make the Kitara

throne their exclusive preserve brought them into conflict -

with the BRantu, The ultimate effect of the conflict was
that Palwo numerical strength was reduced. They also .
declined in importance in Kitara empire as well as in

present-day Uganda., The series of wars fought in order to

maintain or regain their control of the Kitara throne resulted

in the loss of many Palwo lives and their flight to sorrounding
areas. :
But it was not only the wars which diminished the

importance of the Palwo. The Palwo themselves seemed to
have unconsciously initiated moves, the effect of which made
them lose their identity and recognition. Having set up a
minority ruling dynasty, the Palwo made deliberate efforts
to win the loyalty of their subjects. Efforts were made to

learn Bunyoro language and government was ordered along .
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lines to which the Banyoro were familiar, The search for
acceptance by the Palwo even extended to marriage,

"hen Rukidi and his successors married Banyoro women,
they began a trend which has continued till the wnnt-dny.l
For instance, the last Omukama of Kitara who died in 1971 was
a product of a union of a Munyoro man and a Palwo woman,
Events liks the emigration of Pelwo's Barustuira to Bulgmhya,
and the 1911 eviction consequent on the putbreak of the
sleeping siclmess brought the Palwo to Bunyoro and many of
them intermarried with, and were assimilated by the Banyoro,
The one striking aspect is the ease and seeming willingness
with which the Palwo were assimilated by the Banyoro,
Perhaps the numerieal -superiority of the Panyoro explains
this,

The British’ eolonial mile seemed to have mccelerated
the process of Ranyoro assimilation of the Palwo at least
in terms of language, The British sdministratore adopted
Runyoro. as the medium of instruction all over Bunyoro
dietrict including the two Palwo counties of Kihukya and
“ibanda, Up till now, officials of Falwo's Fibanda county
conduct their businese in Runyore, Official notices, tax
receipts, and court sessions are conducted in Runyoro, In

1. See Appendix 2 for list and origin of Omukama's wives,
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Kibanda, Runyoro, not Lwo, is the language of instruction in
the primary schools, Little wonder why many of the Palwo
speak Runyoro fluentlv. Even the Lwo dialgct of the Palwo
has 80 nuch of Runyoro accent and vocabulary that a Lwo
from Acholi who was enployed by the writer as\an assistant
found it aifficult to understand the Melye, &nd had to be
replaced with a8 Palwo, Perhaps a ptriking evidence of
Punyoro cultural impevisliem is the fact that the present
trend among the Palwo is to have a RPunyore equivelent of
their neme using whichever they found convenient, In offiecial
documents, most of them usé the Runyoro eguivalent, All
these tend to justify oliver's deeclaration that in Uganda
the Lwo "were the conguerors of & culture which absorbed
them far more truly ithan they abeorbed it".]'

The 1911 relocation further acceleratod the procese of
their assimilation into Rantoro culture, It is only in
Kibanda county that one can come in contact with pure Palwo,
Those in Bunyoro as well as Acholi had been completely
assimilated by thelr areans of settlement, Those of them who
had achieved positions of eminence 4o not want to be labelled
ag Palwo, Tarticularly, those in Bunyoro, have imbibed the

1, R, Oliver, "The Interior", in History of ©ast Afyieca.
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Nanyoro attitude of looking dovn on the Pelwo, For a man of
reanonable status in life, it is derogatory to de aseribed
a Palvo origin, He prefers to be called a Munyoro,

Tn effect, no individual of considersbly high status
admitec he i8 e Palwo, Punyoro distriect, for instance, has
a total of 37 Gombolola chiefs of which only one, Srukana
nalobo of ¥Xaijubu Gombolola in Buruli county, admits he is
a Palwo.l
fommisaionar of Palwo origin not fo talk of a Nistrict

Informants could not mentian an Acsistant District

fommisnrioner, The writer did not come across a single Palwo
vho wan in anyway connected with Makerere.

vhile this could be explained in terms of the tendency
of the elite to feel shy of their Palwo origin, there is
also the fact that-the Palwo were not sble to benefit enough
from misnionary ‘activities mnd the Western education it
provided, Davosion to traditional religion was one of the
factors wvhich militated spgainst the Palwo's accevtance of
Christisnity, But thie is not peculiar to them, 7In other
African societies, Chrirtianity and Vestern education were
accepted after am initial reluctance caused by the African atta
ment t0 his traditionsl god., By the time, the sleeping sickne

1. There are other chiefa wvho admit thelr Palwo ancestry
but now regard themselves as Banyoro e.g,., M, @nock
Pigirwa, Kibanda County Chief.
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epidemic occurred, Christianity wae yet to make sufficient
impact on the Palwo., At lesst the best and most rewarding
aspect of the new religion which is the provision of Western [
education has not been sufficiently introduced to, them, Though
some Uisnion schools were established in Pravds.and Kichua, |
the outbreak of sleeping sicknens compelled their closure, ‘
It was only in Pawir and Koec chiefdoms thet' the schools :
1

survived., Even there, the fear of the nossibility of the

spread of sleeping siclmess slowed down the reate of expansion

of the existing primary schools,  Horeover, no post~primary

institutions were establishéd;' It was when the Malwo got

to Kigurba and ¥inakulu that they were converted, went to

schools and became important, They, heowever, identified

themgelves with their new areas of settlement. The Palwo of

¥ibanda wito managed to be educated were few ard dAld not

climb very far 4n the educationel ladder, The farthent they [

could go wes, to spend four years in the vrimery schoolsg,
Thusy the Palwo do not have individunls who are well

to d0.encugh as to meke other inhebitanta of Ugande aware

of thelr presence, Fxcept for the old menera’ions of their
immediate neighbours of scholi, Lanzo and RPunyoro, the
inhabitants of the remaining ten districts of Uganda are
unaware of the existence of the Palvwo, Tt is indeed an
irony of history that a group of people who formed, as it
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were, the centre of histcmenl activity by aetsblishing the
Babito dynasty the authority of which covered practically
every pert of present-dsy Ngandn belowr the Piver Kafu could
pale into mch insignificence, "he fault wre-not theirs but
that of circumstences of hintory and envidefment,



PAWIR KOC KISORA KIsoaa MURYAX PAITWOL PAJAO
Dukeno Duchobo Dukeno Dukeno - - Pabito
Dukwenga Babito Daboro Duzira Dunyako ./ Mupalabek Tusongs
Duweno Dangwen Danywen Dukonya  Dabouk’ Nyakakwer Hesimgo
Babito Dupalabek  Dabuk Dugira Duechma  Dabwomgo  Dunywen
Dukonha Dugambe Duchobo  Mukorogd ' Duyonga - Tunywen
Kicubya Dakor Basita Babito - Payetegli Payinwa
MISCRLLANEOUS

Laberto Dakor

Payetegi Basegya

Padhola Dakonha

Paboor Dakwer

Patiko Basita

Kilmgulu Dudyena

Payinluk Dehobo

They carmot be identified with particular Chiefdoms
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APPENDIX IX
PALUO CHIEFDOMS KING LIST
PAWIR KOC KISOGA KISONA PAITEL MUNYAI PAJAO
09-1436 Nyawir - Bacwesi?
1436-1463 Uyo - Babito
1490-1517 Lakturn?
1517-1544 Dalobo?
15u4~1571  Umah?
' 15711598  Ongwech

1598-1625 Omal Ocol - by Odongo
1625-1652
1652-1679 Modo
16791706 Ojok Apeche Kagoro
1706-1733 Jambe Uyo Duliech Lochara Aduor Okelo's ::v
17331760 Oweny Machicle Onwech Miro Okelo Chwa
1760-1787 Omar Okona Olendu Onyunta Pabyetekya Pagmor Ohwir Oketch Jao
1787-1814 Oner Okona Otim Ayira FKambeja Kukidi Mater Dalokar Jagho Kuchua
1814~1841 Kachope and Isagare Rebellion During the

reign of Omikama Nyamutukura Kyebambe IV.
1841-1868 Xachope and Isagara's attempt to replace

Kamurasi as Omukama of Bunyoro-Kitara,
1868-1895 (Mupina and Ruyonga versus Kabalega.



1409 - 1436
1436 - 63

1652 -~ 1679

1679 - 1706

1733 - 1760
1787 - 1814
*181Y - 181
18,1 ~ 1868
1868 - 1895

Coning of Nyawir and Bacwezi to Pawir
Arrival of the Babito

Disappearance of the Bacwezl

Hodo's arrival from ladi Lula - Establishment
of Pajao,

Nyamdere famine, Exodus from Pawir, establishment
of Koc, Kisoga, Munyai, and Paitwol.

0limi Isansa's war against the Palwo
Laparanat famine

Secession from Kitara

Attack on Kanurasi

Palwo War against and conquest by Zebalega.

* Absolute dates available,
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APPENDIX IV
GENEALOFY OF THE BABITO DYNASTY

Ocaki k_"n_ufn !2; Oyo w l!,|

‘ Winyi I ()

Olimi I (5)

Nyabongo I (6)

winyi II 7

Olimi II (8)

ﬂﬁ\l?\l”né

|
Chwa (I (10) Nyarwa (9) | Massmba (11)
Kyebambe I (12)
winyi Inl(n)

Kyebambe II (15) Nyaika (14)

0limi IXI (16) = Persecution of the Palwo
(1730) nNyakatura

Duhega I (17)

Olimi IV/ (18) Kyebambe |III (19)
l:mlmp 1z (20)
Olimi .V (21) Kyebembe IV Kamureei| (22)
Chwa IT Kebarega (23)
|
ntlh!lbn (24) puhaga II (25) winyi IV (LG)

Taken from A, R, Dunbar in History of Bunyoro-Kitara,
D. 35.



Nyabongo II
Winyd IT
Olimi IY

Ryarwa
Cuamali

Masamba Famale
regent

Kyebembe
winyd III
Rysika
Kyebambe II
Olimi ITI
Duhaga I
Olimi IV
Kyebambe IIT

Bite
Nywagi

Saigl
Bito
Saigi

g #

(ru0)

(Luo)
(zuo)
(ruo)

(r.u0)
(r.u0)
(ruo)

(Luo)
(Luo)

Bantu

Luo

Luo

Luo



25.

Nysbonge ITT
olimi IV
Kamurasi
Kaba legn
Duhaga
Wwinyd IV

*Taken from Okot, P, Bitek,
Central Lwo, op. cit., De
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Aberdi

manjo
Bagira
Sita

Mwenge
Rywagi

I?H&Bm

Rantu
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BIBLIOGRAPHY
ERIMARY SOURCTS
I Qmel Rvidence

Emcept for the last half of the seventh chaépier, the
period covered by this work falls largely in the pre~
coloniel era. fince thies wes a period when written documents
were not available, the only method by which the material
on that period could be gethered is by using orsl tradition,
At this point, it is necessary t0 1lodk at the method used
in collecting the orel tradition of the Falwo,

Between October 1969 and Decomber 1970, I was at the
University of Ibaden preparing for field work by reading
published literaturg on Ugande generally and Bunyoro-Kitara
in particular, In addition, T went through all the written
materisls on the Lwo that could be found at the Ibadan
University Library. Having established contact with Makerere
University's History Department, I was sble to read the
Department's publications on Uganda history especially those
on-Bunyoro-Kitara and Acholi,

Between Jamuary 1971 and April 1972, I was in Uganda
and was attached to Makerere University's History Department,
¥y arrivel colncided with the period when the Department
was engaged in the collection of Oral evidence for the



purpose of publishing hooks on the pre-colonial history of
Uganda, T was thue sble to work in clese collaboration with
other researchers eepecizlly these working on the other
branches of the Two,

After a month of my arrival in Ugande, T suceeeded in
getting tha permiseion of Tganda's Yationagl Ressarch Couneil
to carry out interviews amonz the Palwo, The Couneil gave
me »n letter of introduction to the nistrict Commissioner of
Punyoro, who in turn, introduced me to hig assistant in
¥asindi through whom I got in touch with the chief of Palwo's
county of Fibanda, the headquartérs of which 1s in Kiryandongo.
The county chief, in whoné honee T lodzed, introduced me to
the Combolola and Batongole chiefs the lster of vhich knew
8il the 0ld men in their villages, The village chiefe, acting
on the instruction of the county chief, informed all the old
and knowledgeable men in their areae, asking them to try to
remember all they could sbout their histery, T deliberately
refused to send questions in advance in order to prevent
premeditated answers which may not always be true.

In the conduet of the interviewe, T was guided by the
training received vhile attending a six month lecture series
on research methodology organised by Thadan University
History Department between October 1969 and ¥erch 1970, I
also arrived in time to attend the training course overated



by Makerere History Department for students collecting Oral
evidence for the purpose of historical research, I moved
around on a bieyele, and was accompanied dy my interpreter,
end the chief of the village in which the interview was

being conducted, FKiryendongo, 145 miles north of Kampala, was
my base, fowever, I had cause to spend a onth in Mutunda

and $wo weeks in scholi in order to be wble to meet some of
my informante,

The interview usually begsn with the village chief, who
in 211 caser was & Palwo and wéll known in the loeality,
erplaining the purpore of theexercise, stressing the
importanee of written history as a way of bringing the Palwo
to tre attention of {he outside world, The fact that only
they of &1l the Ta§ hs r» no writien history was emphasised,
Thie made & gool inmpression on the elders, more e0 at nany
of then were ‘sWprv of the fact thet the untransiated Runyoro
edition of Nyskatura's book was being used as the stendard
history text for their children 4in the primary schoole.
tesoolction with the village chiefn vroved rewarding. It
served 4o allay fears un t0 the researcher's intention,
and made it poenmible to get in contact with as many people
ae posnible,

At the firnt meeting with the village elders, qucotions
were thrown open for smy of them to provide answers. The
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principal aim of the group interview was to work out a king

1iet. Th some cesez, it was one or two men considered the

oldent or most intelligibls, dominamting the dincuseion with the

others only conming in to 2dd morc to the information, In
sonme other places, thewe wne o lot of argument on the

order of succertion ot kings, The group interview is perhaps
the best methud of estnblishing a king liet.) After prolonged
argumente on rel=tionship between succesgive kings, the
order of eugcewsion, the circumetances of their accession
mnd death, something approximating ‘the truth was ususlly
srrived at,

In 2 compiletion of, Palso history, twe cete of king
liete vere required: memely, the Punyoro~-Fitars geneology
and that of the Pelwo chiefdoms. Though Nyakatura could be
rolicd or with regerde toc Bunyoro, efforts were nade to
check and confirr its cccuracy, Though none of the Palwo
elders could remember all the twenty-three kings who ruled
in Punyero, those vhose reigns affected Pmlwo history were
videlv remerbered, "he events thazt occurred in the reigns of
Pukidi c,110%-1436, 0limi Isansa ¢,1733-1760, Nyamutulura,
1776~1830 sors widely remembored, Xamurasl snd Yabalega's
reimn coened 'too fresh' to be forgotten, rarticularly
with Habalege, rome of the elders claim to have witnessed
pert of his reign, The story of the coming of Rukidi and
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the manner in which he overthrew the Bacwezl seemed to have
been handed down eo well from generations that every old man
began his evidence with a narration of the story, Olimi Isansa
wvhom they call Olimi Kyebambe, meaning Usurper, is remem-
bered with bitterness for his 'persecution' which forced

them out of their territory, lany of the informants claim

to have lived to see or hear their fathers talk about, or
serve, Kabalega, Thus the kings of Punyoro vhose reigns
affected Palwo history were widely remembered, The knowledpge
of the kinglists and history of the seven Pplwo chiefdoms
depended on the origin of the infomantes i.,e, to which of

the chiefdom they belong. In this regard, descendants of
prineipal characters 4n the higtory of these chiefdoms

proved particularly useful, These were Zachia Jao from Pajao,
Zachariah Wanyuru from Paitwol, Kirube from Kisoga and Isaya
Byewarjo from Tawir.

A king list having been established, the elders were
then asked to narrate the important events that happened in
each-reign, It was in the process of answering these
questions, that the writer was able to spot those who knew

1., Bee Fotes on Principal Informants for information on
these men and the basis of their knowledge of Palwo
history.
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more than the popular stories of the coming of Rukidi,
Kyebambe 's persecution and Kabalega's wars, Arrangements
were then made to interview them individually.

Certain aspects of Palwo history are best known to
people vho are cormected with them either by desgent or
practice, Such topics as the trade in ivory, the origin,
function, and manner of worshipping of the gods are best
known to people who are somehow comnected with them,
Descendants of principal ivory traders some of whom helped
their fathers in organising the transactions proved useful,

Wy experience confirme what has been said of the vali-
dity and limitations of Oral tradition as source material
for history. The need to exercise care in interpreting

evidence, by taking into consideration the source of the
evidence, the circumstances in which the evidence was given,
and the extent .0f the inwlvement of the informant in the
issue being discucsed became more evident, Some of the
informante especially those related to Habalega's rivals
and victimé were to partisan that they painted the Omukama and
the Banyoro in very bad light, Palwo's military successes
were maximigsed and defeats minimised, The writer thus had
to eross check with evidence from Bunyoro and other unemo-
tional Palwo informants in order to present something
nearing the truth, Perhaps a description of the writer's
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experience with some of the principal informants will show
the necessity for tact in dealing with informente.

Notee on Principal Informents
Zachariah er (3
Kiroko village, Kiryandongo Gombolola. Interviewed in

April-May 1971,

zachariah is a descendant of Paynor /the first Rvwhot
of Paitwol, He was the firest person to relate the story of
the coming of the Babito and the dlsappearance of the
Bacwezl to me, Zachariah was qQuite familiar with the activi-
ties of Wupina, His Xnowledge of Palwo history was acquired
from his father who was one of ¥upina's Barusura, Rwot
¥upina was said to have been relating the story of the
Babito to members and servants of the royal household in
Justifieation of his attacks on Kabalega., Zachariah through
his father acquired coneideradble information on the organi-
sation of the Rvhot's household, and the orgsnisation of the
wars, I/found Zachariah a very useful informant. He
introduced me to three of his agemates, though none of them
had anything new to offer, It was, however, with mich aiffi-
culty that Zacharish could disclose the neme of his clan,
He refused to tell its history. This was probably because
he felt it was too personal a secret to disclose,
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o, & a of to

village, Kigumbs Gombolola. Interviewed in May-Jume 1971.

zachin is a grandson of Jao the Rwhot of Pajad at the
time Kacope and Isagara nmade Palwoland their power-base
¢.1830, Almost a hundred years old, Zachia Jao was my
principel informant on the history of this Madi chiefdom
of Palwoland, Apart from some hagzy 1deas of Wupina and
the wars with Kabalegm, Zachia, all the Palwo originated
from Pajeo., When asked t0 name-thé kings of PFalwoland,
he mentioned the Rwhodl of Pajao and claimed that they
exercised authority over all parts of Palwoland, Tt is,
however, fair to mention /that hie knowledge of "ajano history
is very detailed, Zachia emphanized the Wadl origin of the
Pajao by saying that his Palwo language has some Madi
accents, Zachia wae a young prince at the time the Palwo
were evicted from the basin of the rNile, He recalled the
efforts madé by Omuksma Andre Duhsga tO ensure that he,
being ‘@ ¥ubito prince, was brought back to Punyoro from
Acholi where one of his guardians took him, Zachia was very
co-operative, He dld not hesitate to tell us all that he
inew including his clan history,




Okelo Van illa g

2 y ‘anywen clan, Kirwals
Kiryandongo Gombolola. Imterviewed in July 1971.
Okelo “unge's great ancestor Maso was a slave to Chwa,
the third “vhot in Pajac, Maso proved to be sgo loyal a
servant that he was aseimilated into the king's household
end treated like n member of the royal family; This is vhy

the surviving members of both families, Zachia Jao, and

WSEDC

Okelo Vange now regard themselves as reélatives, Though he
444 not Xnow as much as Zachia on-the history of Pajao, he
was quite 2t home with the causes and course of the Palwo
wara againet the Banyoro, ~He lnew more of Mupina than
Ruyenga, Thies is probably because Hupina exercised suthority
over his territory. (He is = strong believer in the efficacy
of the Palwo gods,

market, Kigimba Gombolola. Interviewed in June 1971,

A grandson of Isagara Katiritiri, Samwiri is one of
the moat partisan of my Palwo informants, He did not attempt
t0o hide hie hatred of the Banyoro, After reciting the story
of the arrivel of the Rabito emphasising how they succesne~
fully displaced those, as he put it, "vhom the Banyoro had
been worshipping”, Semwiri sees no reason why the Banyoro
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should "reap vhere they did not sow". It was quite easy to
see the impact of his origin on the issues being discussed,
famwiri wae quite familiar with the wars against the
Banyoro, Though considerable care was taken in handling his
evidence, Samwiri was perhaps one of the most enthusiastic
of my informante, He was one of the informaats who came to
ny residence whenever he remembered anything he had for-
gotten to mention during the interview.

f . rjo aromnd 0 ars old, m
glan, Chopelwor Dima Gombolglay Inverviewed in August 1971.

Perhaps the oldest and most knowledgeable of my infor-
mants, Tsaya learnt tHe history of the ralwo from his grand-
father who was an agemate of Facope. He is a native of
Pawir and supplied ‘the bulk of the information on the chief-
dom, linking it with the story of the "Spear and the bead".
He also knew-about the chiefdoms of Xisoga and Kisona,
Isaya's Inowledge of the organisation and effects of the
trade in lvory wes remarkable, His faother was a victim of
the raids conducted by the Langi on the Palwo after the
latter had acquired wealth from the ivory trade, Isaya's
father also took part in the wars againat Kabalegn and
narrowly escaped deing drafted to Bugahya by the Omukama,

By the time the British came to fight Hebalega in the 1890s,




- 238 -

Teaya was coneidered old enough to supplement the ranks of
the depleted Abarusura, He showed us the scars of the wound
inflicted on him by the British army, Isays sees Ekyangire
as & Palwo reaction ageinet the Baganda, Much as Isaya knew
about Palwo history, he d4id not hesitate to express his
ignorance of or reluctance to discuss some topics,

ro 80 £ Tudw 9
Kiryandongo Gombolola, Interviewed pril 1971,

T found Odero a good informant on '“unysi chiefdom
efter the villace chief suceeeded in convincing him of the
gincerity of my intention, At firct, the 0l4 man could not
understend why a Wigerian should inquire into the past of
the Palwo, Odero is a descendant of Okwir, the first known
Rwhot of Munyai, ¥Ne claims to have been an eye witness of

the procesnion of the Palwo to Kabalega's courts dwing the
empango féstival, Odero also supplied useful information on
various aspects of the 1ife of the Pelwo notably, naming,

marriage and burial eceremonies,

Interviewed in September 1971.
Kirube is from Kisoga the history of which he knew,
His father, he claimed, was an eye witness of the visits
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of Baker and Cordon to Ruyonga, snd lmew of the efforts of
the ™uropeans to cooperate with the Palwo Rwhot against
Kabalega., Xirube's father was a Murusura, He took part in
all the encounteres Ruronga had agalinst ¥ebalega. The eye
witness cccounts were relested to Prancis, The informant is
one of the few educated Palwo men T met, ¥We 18a convinced
Oatholie vho haes completely severed cormeetion with the
Jogi, Christianity, he said, provided eduention of which he
took advantage, Rducatisn qualified hin for anvointment as
Gombolols chief Mmtunda in 1946, When 9, J. K. Raker a
grondgon of “armel Raker eome to ¥utunda in 1957, it was
Prancis vhe took him to Bujénie where he met Kosiya Labwoni,
the grandson of Ruvanga ., ,The nrohlem with Francis was that
ha pratended to have ansyers to every question put to him,
Considerable caution was therefore taken in analysing his

evidance,

Duchobo is the royal clan of Koe, Duliech, the first

Rwhot, is the great sncestor of Antonio, TIike Kirube,
Antonio's father Manyoro was a saza chiecf under Ruyonga.
Tt was through him that Antoni learnt some detaills of the
Rwhot's personal 1life, His remarkes on Ruyonga's character
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agreed with the obaervations of Gordon and #ain Pasha,
Manyoro, Antonio's father, was an elephant hunter, Antonio's
accounts of the organisatioa of the ivory trade, and its
social and political effects on “alwo soclety were, very
vivid, ‘The infornant served as a tax collector in Puodi
village., He sees Tkyanzire revolt as a regction against

tha imposition of hut tax by the Bpitlsh and not a meni-
festatian of Palwo hostility to the\ Bafendas,

Ianansi Olake, arownd 100 yeers 0ld, a member of Nukonya
clan, Katulikire, Tnterviewed in Aupust 1971,

Tanansl 43 the Xibandwe of Tubtlizo, one of the prineipal
Jogz! of the Palwo, (T% %ook a considerably long time before
Tanan3l agreed %o \dliecusc the tople about vhich he wae
partieularly nowledgoabls, 4Apart from the reluctance to
revesl vhet "o/ conaldered o saecred sccret, Tencnel feared
the posdibllity of my being s detective agent, who was
aollgeting informaztion $hat mizht lead to his detention
foS practising an 1llegal relision., But for the trust he
Had in my intorpreter who ha2 had eause to sack his assis-
tance on several oceenions, he counld not have agrsed to
speak in spite of the village chief's ansurances,
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“hen he agreed to speak, Tanansi treated us to a long
reclitel of the origin, function and importance of the Palwo
Jogi, He explalned every major event in Palwo history in
terns of religion, The Racwezi, he said, fell hecsuse they
angered the gods by giving away the drum, “aecope and
Isagera succeeded because Nyskature had thg'mudnelity to
call the efficacy of the Palwo Jogli to ‘question, Ruyonga
and Wupina succeeded initially because they complied with
the instructions of the Jogi, It-was when they ceased to
consult the Kibandwa that theymet their doom, Rwita
Bachope femine was due to Kabglega's rudeness (0 Kambega,
Christianity, he emphasised, d@ld not succeed in undermining
the importence of thé ¥aiwo Jogi, fHe elted the misfortunce
which befell thoge who deflected to the new religion to

suppoert his argument,

Omabito Komiyn Tebwoni, sprownd 90 veaya old, Pujenie
village ¥asindi, Tnterviewed in Oectober 1971,

Foaiva s s pgrendson of Ruyonga, Nis frther Rujumba
wne apnointed sazn chiaf of Kibenda Avring the esrly years
of eolonial eadminietration, Warlier on Rujumba was provided
aceommodation by ¥abalegn sa part of his efforts to recon-
eils vith the Prlwo after the death of Ruyonga, Fosiya was
born at Masindi and was educated there. He speaks the




-m-

fnglish language very fluently, He was also a sasza chief
in Kibanda in 1936 and was a member of the Banyoro delega-
tion who went to Britain to argue the case for the resto-
ration of the Banyoro's counties which were armexed. to
Buganda, FKosiya's long sojourn in Bunyoro snd-his Palwo
origin made him a useful informant especially on various
aspects of Bunyoro-Palwo relations., He speaks Runyoro and
Palwo language equally well, He is not &s sentimental as
expected in his attitude to Kabalegr, though he maintains
that the Palwo had 2 good case for attempting to win back
the throne of Kitara,

J wi 0 d
Babito glan, Foima, Interviewed in October 1971.

He 1s a Mubito, His father was one of Kabalega's
chiefs and it was he who got John interested in the tradi-
tions of Bunyoro, John was one of the first group of people
to be sducated in Punyoro, He thus served as a court clerk,
teacher, and saga chief in many counties including Kibanda
(whére the Palwo live), He was one of the delegates who
presented the petition of Bunyoro's lost counties to the
Queen in London in 1955, John was encouraged by the
missionaries to undertake the collection of Bunyoro's
historical tradition, He claimed to have travelled to all
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parts of the district to collect infomation, These were

written in a book titled Kings of Bunyoro-Kitara, but which
Uzoigwe who edited the translated text titled History of

Bunyoro-Kitara.

John, though regarded as the tradit ional historian of
Bunyoro, allowed his Banyoro patriotism $0 becloud his
attitude to the Palwo, le would not agree that the Babito
are Palwo even though he said Rukidi, the founder, came
from the north of Bunyoro and stayed in Palwoland before
coming to Bunyoro, Nyakatura also admits that the Babito
kings were buried in Palwolsnd, His attempt to explain the
succeseion of the Palwo to the Omulmmaship only in terms of
their aggresive tendencies sounds unconvineing,

However, in spite of his prejudices, T relied mainly
on his book and . the interviews T had with him to check
gome of the Palwo claims, The week long interview had to
be brought to an end when VWr, Nyakatura resorted to reading
his book in enswer to my questions,
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LIST OF INFORMANTS*

TAME
Odero -
Zachariah Manyuru -
Tegurazi Bitatule -
¥arna Nyanda -
Julius John Kahwa -
Naphatali Byenkya -
Simon Kasigwa -
Petro Owor -
Petero Apicer py
famwiri Oduonga ~
Yustapha -
Zachia Jeo -
Abakachun -
Dawokor Miro -
Wanda -
Paulo Ochewa -
Wasario -
Wenda Odyek -
Nwachakam -

® The 1list is by no means exhaustive, Many informants

especially those who took
refused to disclose their

fa

rt in group interviews
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LIST OF INFORMANTS (contd,)

RAME ELACE
20, MWodest Kakiiza - Kiroko
21, Yosish Kachope - Kyeganywa
22, Topacho Kawa - .
23. Okelo Wange - Kirwada
24, Stanley Irumba - Kikunya
25, Owor Masindi - Kigzibu
26, Alifaledi Chanmera - Kigunba
27. Jambe Maru - .
28, Okwany Yuchua bt ¥
29, Samwri Dalobo - "
30, Manyore Chola - »
31, Cruksna Rumgala - Ki juma
32, Kezechish - Kizibu
33, Owor Tkiik - "
3., Gabriel Odwee - .
35. «Jwechakam - »
36.. Odyela - Bweyale
37. Odoch - Katulikire

38. Tamansi Olake -
39. Maya - Bweyale
40. wasario - .



L7.
L8,
L9.

60.
61.
62,

~ b -

LIST OF INFORMANTS (contd,)

RAME
Bulasio Oyundu
Vierre
Janjok Obaryat
fAtanley Olobo
Dadwar Alikayi
Isaya Byewarjo
Ochawu
William Ochanda
0jok Adem
Olaya Atiya
Ernesti Ogege
Dakor Minobwa
Okumu Odoch
Antonio Oyuru
Francis Kirube
Okele
Okelo Yamana
Kija Mulala
NDlwotch Oped
Okelo Yamana
Uma Kyemanywa
Kigire

ELACE
Katulikire

Pochemh
Kalulu
Chopelwor

Dima



63.

65.
66.
67.
63.
69.
70.
.
72.
73
The
75.
76.
77.
78.

8o,
81.

83,
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